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Key Figures

IFRS
2012/13 2011/12 2010/11
before non- after non- before non- after non- | before non- after non-
recurring  recurring recurring recurring recurring recurring
(If not otherwise stated, all figures in EUR 1,000) items items items items items! items"
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue 541,673 514,180 487,948
thereof produced in Asia 73.9% 73.4% 68.6%
thereof produced in Europe 26.1% 26.6% 31.4%
EBITDA 101,885 101,885 103,356 103,356 98,582 95,947
EBITDA margin 18.8% 18.8% 20.1% 20.1% 20.2% 19.7%
EBIT 30,894 30,894 42,139 42,139 49,208 46,531
EBIT margin 5.7% 5.7% 8.2% 8.2% 10.1% 9.5%
Net income 14,102 14,102 26,514 26,514 37,709 35,032
Net income of owners of the parent company 14,101 14,101 26,550 26,550 37,845 35,168
Cash earnings 85,092 85,092 87,767 87,767 87,218 84,584
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Total assets 727,201 694,649 575,335
Total equity 312,453 283,110 229,816
Total equity of owners of the parent company 312,504 283,165 229,463
Net debt 217,409 242,536 193,726
Net gearing 69.6% 85.7% 84.3%
Net working capital 102,679 92,323 79,357
Net working capital per revenues 19.0% 18.0% 16.3%
Equity ratio 43.0% 40.8% 39.9%
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net cash generated from operating activities (OCF) 71,673 87,207 70,707
CAPEX, net 40,459 113,085 115,145
GENERAL INFORMATION
Payroll (incl. leased personnel), end of reporting period 7,011 7,478 7,486
Payroll (incl. leased personnel), average 7,321 7,417 6,987
KEY STOCK FIGURES
Earnings per share (EUR) 0.60 0.60 1.14 1.14 1.62 1.51
Cash earnings per share (EUR) 3.65 3.65 3.76 3.76 3.74 3.63
Dividend per share (EUR)? 0.20 0.32 0.36
Dividend vyield (year end close)? 2.9% 3.5% 2.3%
Market capitalisation, end of reporting period 158,360 213,402 369,430
Market capitalisation per equity® 50.7% 75.4% 161.0%
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 23,322,588 23,322,588 23,322,588
KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES
ROE* 4.7% 4.7% 10.3% 10.3% 17.2% 16.0%
ROCE? 5.5% 5.5% 7.7% 7.7% 10.5% 9.8%
ROS 2.6% 2.6% 5.2% 5.2% 7.7% 7.2%

U Non-recurring items include the closing of the Vienna office and the advanced resignment of Board Member Steen Hansen.
22012/13: Proposal for the Annual General Meeting on 4 July 2013.

3 Equity attributable to owners of the parent company.

% Calculated on the basis of average values.
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AT&S at a glance

ATS&SIS ONE OF THE WORLD'SLEADING MANUFACTURERS OF HIGH-VALUE PRINTED
CIRCUIT BOARDS Leading manufacturer of HDI printed circuit boards, at the heart of the electronics
industry with high-tech production in China, and a global sales network spanning four continents

AT&S OPERATES IN ATTRACTIVE NICHE GROWTH MARKETS Smartphones and tablets as
growth drivers for Mobile Devices, the leading supplier to the premium segment of the European automotive
industry, medical technology as a profitable niche market, and a strong standing in Asia — the world's largest
growth market

AT&GSPUTSITS CUSTOMERS AND THEIR NEEDS FIRST One-stop-shop solutions from prototype
design to series production, delivering to major reductions in product development lead times for customers

AT&S USES PROBLEM-SOLVING SKILLS TO ADD VALUE Broad-based technology portfolio with
16,000 different circuit boards, user-focused solutions at the cutting edge of the printed circuit board tech-
nology, patented technologies for increasingly high-performance and thinner printed circuit boards, adding
value beyond the production section of the value chain

AT&S CULTIVATES EUROPEAN ENGINEERING TRADITIONS Around five percent of the
Group's revenue is reinvested in research and development, 83 patent families, and countless partnerships
with leading international research institutions

AT&S IS COMMITTED TO THE HIGHEST QUALITY STANDARDS Certification of all plants
according to ISO 9001 and/or ISO/TS 16949, and one of the first printed circuit board manufacturers to obtain
certification according to the EN ISO 13485 standard for medical technology

AT&SPLAYS APIONEERING ROLEINENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION Production of highly
complex printed circuit boards with a minimal impact on people and the environment, and annual reductions
in CO, emissions and fresh water consumption

AT&S IS A SUCCESSFUL BUSINESS Diversification by industries and geographical markets, constant
revenue growth with strong margins, a stable ownership structure that safeguards the Group’s long-term
development

The Company
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Letter to our shareholders

Dear shareholders,

the 2012/13 financial year was shaped by a highly challenging
economic climate, which left its mark on the performance of our
Group. Having weathered a weak first half, we were ultimately
in a position to bring the year to a satisfactory close. Against this
operational backdrop we took the decision to enter the Integrated
Circuit (IC) Substrate business — an important step towards in-
creasing the value of the Group and a key development in the
continuation of our high-tech strategy.

LEAN FIRST HALF The first six months of the finan-
cial year 2012/13 were shaped by delays in the introduction of
new products in the market segment served by Mobile Devices.
This situation led to significant capacity underutilisation at our
Shanghai plant. However, the order book improved significantly

from the summer onwards. Thanks to a very strong third quar-
ter followed by a fourth quarter that was in line with long-term
seasonal patterns, AT&S finished the year on a solid footing.

Unsatisfactory capacity utilisation in the first six months of the
year had alasting impact on profitability, and even with a return
to full utilisation in the third quarter it was not possible to make
up for the shortfall at the start of the reporting period. Unbroken
growth in the automotive sector is an encouraging development,
and the use of electronics in vehicles is increasing all the time.
This has led to a significant upturn in demand for our high-value
HDI printed circuit boards. And we continued to build on the
strong performance in our smaller medical equipment activities
segment. We also saw demand for our ECP® technology pick up
in the financial year just ended.

Andreas Gerstenmayer, Heinz Moitzi



RESULTS OF ORDINARY BUSINESS ACTIV-
ITIES Business developments and financial performance dur-
ing the 2012/13 financial year clearly show that the AT&S Group
isabletoholdits own onavolatilemarket. AT&S finished the year
with sales of around EUR 542m —about 5% higher than a year ago.
Strong capacity utilisation in the second half of the financial
year helped drive earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA) to around EUR 102m - just below the
previous year's level. Despite the highly volatile market environ-
ment, cash earnings were virtually unchanged year on year, and
all investments were financed out of operating cash flow. As a
result the net gearing ratio dropped to around 70%, as against
some 86% in the financial year 2011/12.

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT We have taken the deci-
sion to begin IC substrate production in a strategic move de-
signed to increase the value of our Group over the long term.
Growth rates in this particular segment of the market are above
average. Valued at USD 8.9bn, it offers significant growth pros-
pects for the AT&S Group as well as providing an excellent op-
portunity for the continuation of our tried-and-tested high-tech
strategy. Our IC substrate production activities will target new
customer groups, helping to diversify our portfolio still further.

IC substrates will be produced at our plant in Chongqging, China.
AT&S will work in close partnership with a leading semicon-
ductor manufacturer to build up the required expertise before
entering the market together. Entry to the IC substrates produc-
tion business will put AT&S at the cutting edge of technological
development, as well as consolidating the company’s position as
one of the leading providers of high-tech interconnection solu-
tions in the electronics industry.

VISION FOR THE FUTURE At the same time as build-
ing up the new IC substrate business, we will focus our attention
on strengthening our core business — defending and extending our
technological leadership in the high-end segment of the printed
circuit board market is paramount. Innovation in our niche mar-
kets and further diversification of our customer portfolio will also
go a long way towards countering the effects of the low visibility
in our industry.

As one of the first manufacturers to offer patented chip embedding
technology (ECP®), we are ideally positioned to make the most of
the increasing trend towards miniaturisation. We expect strong
demand from customers in the semiconductor industry to trans-
late into further sales increases and a long-lasting upward trend
for this innovative technology.

We firmly believe that we will build on our already strong position
in the HDI segment of the market, and have identified potential
for long-term success in the Group’s new IC substrate business.
High-tech production in China combined with European govern-
ance standards is one of our key competitive advantages.

At this point we would like to thank all of our employees at AT&S
for their continued dedication and flexibility. Without their tire-
less efforts we would never have managed to establish ourselves
as anindustry leader on the high-end printed circuit board market.

With best regards

Andreas Gerstenmayer
Chairman of the Management Board

Heinz Moitzi
Chief Technical Officer

The Company

9



10

Report of the Supervisory Board

Hannes Androsch

Throughout the financial year ended on 31 March 2013, the Su-
pervisory Board received written and oral reports from the Man-
agement Board on the company’s policies and performance, and
was closely involved in the Group’s major issues. The Supervi-
sory Board met five times during the financial year 2012/13, with
the participation of the Management Board. In these meetings
the Management Board and the Supervisory Board discussed the
state of AT&S Group's affairs in depth. As part of the Company’s
ongoing reporting process and at all board meetings, the Man-
agement Board also gave the Supervisory Board comprehensive
reports on the Group's operating and financial position, as well
as on its interests in other companies, its staff situation and its
planned investments. AT&S’s entry into the IC substrates busi-
ness and the strategy and activities of the new plant in Chong-
ging in China were the principal topics: both were exhaustively
discussed, and policies were jointly agreed.

The Company

The Supervisory Board was also occupied with new statutory
requirements and the development of compliance standards in
accordance with international norms. The Supervisory Board
satisfied itself of the existence of an effective groupwide pro-
gramme of staff development and succession planning and of a
well-functioning issuer compliance system.

The committees established by the Supervisory Board carried out
detailed analysis of technical issues and reported their findings
to the Supervisory Board. Subjects included important aspects
of the accounting and reporting process, internal auditing, risk
management, the internal control system and Group manage-
ment controls. The Audit Committee met twice during the last
financial year. On 31 May 2012 Willibald Dérflinger passed the
chairmanship to Regina Prehofer, who in this function was regu-
larly involved in the quarterly reporting and who reported on
these matters to the Audit Committee.

Aftertwo and a halfyears as member of the Management Board of
AT & S Austria Technologie & Systemtechnik Aktiengesellschaft,
in January 2013 Thomas Obendrauf decided with the agreement
of the remainder of the Management Board and the Supervisory
Board to resign his position as of the end of the financial year
on 31 March 2013 for personal reasons, and to leave the Group.

The Supervisory Board acknowledges this step with regret, but
respects his personal decision. Following the resignation of
Thomas Obendrauf, the Nomination and Remuneration Commit-
tee of the Supervisory Board has agreed with the Management
Board that the Chairman of the Management Board will assume
the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer in addition
to his own until a new member of the Management Board is
appointed. Since that time, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has been working assiduously to find a successor,
and has commissioned a leading executive search firm to find a
suitable candidate.

Inthefinancial year 2012/13 the Supervisory Board again carried
out its annual self evaluation to ensure the continuing improve-
ment of its operations and the fulfilment of its responsibilities to
the shareholders and other stakeholders. Its findings confirmed
the effectiveness of its organisation and procedures. Self evalu-



ation will continue to constitute an important component of the
Supervisory Board's critical review of its own activities.

The annual financial statements of AT & S Austria Technologie &
Systemtechnik Aktiengesellschaft and the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 were both audited
by PwC Wirtschaftspriifung GmbH, Vienna, and were awarded
an unqualified audit report. The management report and the
Group management report for the financial year 2012/13 were
consistent with the annual financial statements and the con-
solidated financial statements. Based on the prior discussions
of the Audit Committee, and after its own detailed discussions
and examination, the Supervisory Board approved the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 in accord-
ance with section 96(4) AktG. Based on the prior discussions of
the Audit Committee, and after its own detailed consideration
and examination, it also approved the consolidated financial
statements drawn up in accordance with section 245a Austrian
Business Code (UGB) and with IFRS, as well as the management
report, the consolidated management report and the corporate
governance report. The Supervisory Board review did not give
rise to any objections.

The Supervisory Board adopted the Management Board's recom-
mendation for the allocation of profits: the retained earnings as
at 31 March 2013 are to be distributed in payment of a dividend
of EUR 0.20 per share, and the remaining amount is to be car-
ried forward.

The Supervisory Board thanks the Management Board and all the

Group's employees for their hard work and dedication during the
financial year 2012/13.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board

Hannes Androsch
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

The Company
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Printed circuit board — the stem
cells of the digital industry

Today's digital industry would be nothing without printed cir-
cuit boards. They are the ‘brains’ of virtually all electronic appli-
ances — smartphones, navigation systems, cameras, automotive
electronics, aeronautics — and a large number of modern indus-
trial and medical technologies. They are central to our everyday
life. In spite of this we take them for granted and pay little at-
tention to the valuable role they play in just about every aspect
of today’s society — which is why we want to shed some light on
the fascinating history of this indispensable piece of technology.

A CONSTANTLY GROWING NERVE SYS-
TEM At its most basic, a printed circuit board connects the
active and passive electronic components of an appliance. With
interconnection channels inside them, printed circuit boards are
at the heart of semiconductors and electrical components.

AN AUSTRIAN INVENTION A patent application for
a circuit board was filed in England as early as 1903, but Paul
Eisler — born in Vienna - is nowadays considered the inventor
of the printed circuit board. Shortly before the outbreak of the
Second World War he equipped a radio with a printed circuit
board, but unfortunately he was far ahead of his time. His idea
was rejected by the radio manufacturer, since at that time it was
cheaper to pay female workers to mount and wire up the radio
valves by hand. In 1943 he patented the principle of a printed
circuit board.

GLOBAL DEVELOPMENT Before the Second World
War there was no interest in Eisler's invention, but during the
War the Americans discovered the advantages of using printed
circuit boards. With the invention of the transistor radio in 1947
printed circuit board technology finally took off, and by the 1950s
printed circuit boards were being mass-produced. Printed cir-
cuit boards allowed electronic appliances to be made signifi-
cantly smaller, and their largely automated production reduced
costs in the electronics industry.

A WIND OF CHANGE 1n 1955 the Mailiifterl, devel-
oped by the Austrian researcher Heinz Zemanek, brought a wind
of change to the industry. Mailiifter] was the nickname of the
first fully transistorised computer in Continental Europe. It was
built in the mid-1950s at the Vienna University of Technology.
Formally, the computer was known as the “binary-decimal fully
transistorised computing automaton”, and the nickname was a

The Company

self-deprecating reference to the computational speeds of Ameri-
can computers. Zemanek joked that: “Even if it cannot match the
high computation rates of American models called ,Whirlwind”
or ,Typhoon”, it will be enough for a Wiener Mailiifterl (gentle
Viennese spring breeze)”. His Mailiifter] was in operation until
1966 and represents an important step in the history of tech-
nological development. From the early 1960s Zemanek worked
for IBM, and to this day he is highly regarded as an Austrian
computer pioneer.

COMPUTER INDUSTRY AS TECHNOLOGY
DRIVER 1In the 1960s and 1970s advances in the computer
industry brought increased impetus to printed circuit board de-
velopment. As computers became more powerful, the ever more
exacting requirements for printed circuit boards resulted in nu-
merous innovations, always with the principal aim of enhanc-
ing performance. The invention of the multilayer printed circuit
board, which allows circuits and I/0 (input/output) pads to be
placed on several layers, solved the problems of space and per-
formance at least for a time.

FASTER, BETTER, SMALLER The multilayer
printed circuit board was an important advance, butit was only a
first step. The emergence of portable devices —laptops and mobile
phones in particular — meant that the extra layers in multilayer
printed circuit boards quickly became too heavy. Laser technol-
ogy provided the answer and the way of the future.

PRESENT AND FUTURE Many different kinds of

printed circuit boards are in use today: single-sided, double-sid-
ed, multilayer, HDI (high density interconnect: multilayer print-
ed circuit boards with ultra-fine structures), flexible, semi-flex-
ible, rigid-flexible. Integrated circuit (IC) substrates represent a
promising future market. This technology is becoming more and
more widespread thanks to theincreasing use of microprocessors
in PCs, notebooks, smartphones and tablet PCs. IC substrates
are multi-layered, electrically conducting interconnect devices
that connect the chips to the printed circuit boards. Semiconduc-
tor structures are on the nanometre scale, and the function of
the substrate is to provide the interface to the micrometre-scale
structures on the printed circuit board. Substrates will enable
the next quantum leap, opening the way for ever greater minia-
turisation of high-tech devices without any loss of performance.



From cathode ray tubes

to smartphones

The AT&S Group is one of the world’s leading manufacturers of
high-value printed circuit boards. Today AT&S is a global enter-
prise with plants and offices all around the world, and the largest
manufacturer of printed circuit boards in Europe and India by a
wide margin. It underscored its position as a market leader with
the successful commissioning of the largest fully-automated HDI
printed circuit board manufacturing plant in China.

But the road to technology leadership in printed circuit boards
was long and hard. AT&S arose out of the merger of three com-
panies: Eumig Fohnsdorf GmbH, AT&S Technologie- und Sys-
temtechnik GmbH based in Leoben-Hinterberg, and Steirische
Elektronik GmbH in Fehring. In 1995 these three companies were
merged to form AT & S Austria Technologie & Systemtechnik AG.

THE BEGINNINGS Elektrizitats- und Metallwaren In-

dustrie GmbH (Eumig) was founded in 1919. Eumig started out
manufacturing lighters, and in the 1930s the first hand-operated
Eumig film projector came onto the market. The first steps in
printed circuit board manufacture came in the 1970s, because
Eumig did not wish to be dependent on suppliers. In 1981, after
a number of economically challenging years, the Eumig plant in
Fohnsdorf was deconsolidated from the group retroactively as
of July 1980. The company only began to recover its standing in
1983, when the manufacturing focus shifted from single-sided
to double-sided printed circuit boards with plated-through in-
terconnects.

Fehring is AT&S's oldest existing plant. The Koérting Group,
which specialised in electronics, began operations here in No-
vember 1974. Its main end product was television sets, together
with the manufacture of the necessary printed circuit boards.
The state-owned Elin Group acquired the Fehring plant in 1979
following the bankruptcy of the Kérting Group, and renamed
it Steirische Elektronik. AT&S'’s largest Austrian facility is in
Leoben-Hinterberg and was built as a manufacturing plant
for Voestalpine in 1982 with an investment of EUR 14.5m. The
purpose of the plant was to produce multi-layer printed circuit
boards under a contract signed with IBM Sindelfingen in 1981.

THE BIRTH OF ATG&S In 1987 the Voestalpine plant
in Leoben-Hinterberg was spun off as an independent company,
AT&S, and in 1990 the plants in Fohnsdorf (Eumig) and Fehring
(Steirische Elektronik) were added. In 1990 E+E Leiterplatten-
holding was founded as parent company for the three manufac-
turing plants AT&S Fehring, AT&S Fohnsdorf and AT&S Leoben.
Leading-edge technologies combined with its employees’ high
levels of expertise and commitment have enabled AT&S to be-
come a worldwide enterprise. Following its acquisition in 1994
by Hannes Androsch, Willi Dorflinger and Helmut Zoidl and its
conversion to a public limited company, AT&S set out to conquer
the world — from Styria.

GLOBAL EXPANSION Today, AT&S has established it-
self as a global player with six production facilities in Austria,
China, India, and Korea. In 1999, with the purchase of the Indian
company INDAL Electronics Ltd., AT&S acquired India’s largest
printed circuit board manufacturing plant. In 2001 a plant in
Shanghai joined the AT&S global family. Production in China
had already started by 2002, and in the following year the plant
in India was expanded. Thanks to the ongoing expansion of the
plant in Shanghai and through the purchase of a printed circuit
board manufacturer in Ansan, Korea, AT&S has been firmly es-
tablished in the global market since 2006. AT& S offers a broad-
based technology portfolio, comprising 16,000 different printed
circuit boards.

The Group is one of the world's leading manufacturer of HDI
printed circuit boards. And the start of construction of the Chong-
ginq facility in China in 2011 marked our next step on the road
to future success. The Group will produce IC substrates at this
plant from 2016 onwards. A sales network on four continents
gives AT&S a global presence, bringing it closer to its customers.

The Company
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Market developments

The global printed circuit board market is highly cyclical and is
shaped by the rapid pace of technological change. The market is
intensely competitive and highly fragmented — the largest manu-
facturer has a market share of just 4%. Experts estimate that there
were around 2,800 manufacturers serving global markets in 2012.
The 20 largest printed circuit board manufacturers account for
43% of worldwide output.

Global demand is also extremely cyclical, and output dropped by
1.8% to USD 54.3bn in 2012. However, the printed circuit board
market is forecast to expand to USD 65.7bn by 2017. This corre-
sponds to an average annual growth rate (CAGR) of 3.9%

GROWTH OF PRINTED CIRCUIT BOARD MARKET
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MOBILE COMMUNICATIONSASAGROWTH
DRIVER Smartphones and tablet computers are the undis-
puted growth drivers in one of the most technologically advanced
markets, where the need for rapid innovation shapes develop-
ments. In 2012 the global market for smartphones grew by 44%,
and experts are forecasting increased growth rates for other con-
sumer goods requiring the latest generation of HDI printed circuit
boards.

AT&S's focus in mobile end user devices is on HDI printed circuit
boards - a segment where the group is among the market leaders.

The market for the printed circuit board technologies found in
mobile end user devices (computers, communications and con-

The Company

sumer goods) was worth USD 37.3bn in 2012. Of this amount 38.3%
was accounted for by demand from the communications industry,
44.2% by computer manufacturers and the remaining 17.5% by
consumer goods such as digital cameras, portable media players
and games consoles.

SMARTPHONES AND TABLET COMPUTERS AS
GROWTH DRIVERS

1,600 - - Million units sold
1,200 mm e s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s e s s s s s e e e e
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Sources: IDC (2013); Gartner (April 2013)

ABOVE-AVERAGE GROWTH IN AUTOMO-
TIVE ELECTRONICS SEGMENT The main focus
of the Automotive Business Unit's activities is on features such
as safety systems, weight reduction, information and entertain-
ment. Customers are calling for ever greater levels of efficiency
and the highest standards of quality — not least because this
line of business also supplies to the aviation industry. The trend
towards high-tech solutions is driving demand for HDI printed
circuit boards.

Demand for automotive electronics is outstripping vehicle sales
—while the global automobile market expanded by some 37.6% to
85.7 million vehicles from 2009-2012, the value of the market for
printed circuit boards used in cars jumped 44.8% to USD 4.05bn.
Average annual growth until 2017 is forecast at around 5.7%. The
growing importance of high-tech printed circuits for automotive
industry applications is reflected in the annual growth rate of
roughly 15% forecast for the HDI segment of the market by 2017.

AT&S is the eighth-largest manufacturer of printed circuit
boards for use in passenger vehicle applications thanks to its
niche strategy. At present AT&S's printed circuit boards can be
found in transmission control, navigation systems, lane change
assistant systems, camera modules, infotainment and audio sys-
tems, noise reduction technology and sensors.



INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS The market for indus-
trial electronics is characterised by a large number of different
customers calling for a wide range of technical solutions. The
products in question span everything from multilayer printed
circuit boards with anything up to 22 layers, to simple flexible
or rigid-flex circuit boards.

Flexibility, proximity to its customers and short lead times are
the key factors that shape the Group’s ability to keep pace with
the constantly evolving requirements for end user devices and
the sheer pace of change in printed circuit board specifications.

In 2011 the printed circuit board market for industrial electron-
ics was worth USD 2.98bn. The printed circuit boards are chiefly
used in LED and lighting management systems, applications
relating to automation, sensors and various energy sector ap-
plications.

Demand for industrial solutions is largely driven by customers
in Europe and the USA. AT&S's portfolio includes the leading
manufacturers of industrial electronics in those regions. As the
largest printed circuit board manufacturer in Europe, the AT&S
Group is well placed to meet demand from the continent.

MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY Reliability, miniaturisa-
tion and weight reduction are the key concerns for printed circuit
boards used in medical technology, which covers devices such
as pacemakers and hearing aids. In this market segment AT&S's
customers profit from the Group’s experience of developing high-
tech printed circuit boards for use in smartphones. AT&S is one
of just a handful of European manufacturers that has achieved
certification according to the EN ISO 13485 standard for medi-
cal technology.

The global market for printed circuit boards used in medical
technology was estimated at EUR 810m in 2011. AT&S's printed
circuit boards are used in medical imaging (e.g. X-rays, ultra-
sound and computed tomography), therapeutic solutions (e.g.
pacemakers and defibrillators), patient monitoring systems and
other areas of medical technology.

IC SUBSTRATES MARKET IC substrates are primar-
ily used in PC microprocessors (central processing units or CPUs),
graphic card processors (graphic processing units or GPUs) and
application processors (application processing units or APUs) —
all of which are today found in every notebook, smartphone or
tablet computer. This technology is also used in GPS devices, and
in engine control systems produced by the automotive industry.

In 2012 the market for IC substrates reached a total value of
USD 8.9bn. Itis expected to expand to around USD 12.0bn by 2017,

equivalent to an annual growth rate of some 6.1%.

GROWTH OF THE IC SUBSTRATE MARKET
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Strategy

SOLID FOUNDATIONS

= AT&S Group is technology leader in the market for high-end
printed circuit boards

= The AT&S Group is the first choice for leading high-tech solu-
tions in all of the market segments it serves

= It produces the most complex printed circuit boards with the
lowest impact on human health and the environment

AT&S Group's strategy is based on continuing to develop its core
business while at the same time establishing its presence in the
market for IC substrates.

EXPANDING THE CORE BUSINESS AT&S uses
focused R&D activities to drive forward the continuing expan-
sion of the Group's core business. Every year roughly 5% of the
Group's revenue is invested in in-house development projects or
partnership projects with research institutions, with the aim of
identifying profitable new market segments and applications for
printed circuit boards. Current activities focus on:

= Extending AT&S competences and consolidating its market
position in advanced packaging AT&S Group is one of the first
printed circuit board manufacturers in the world and the only
onein Europe to have patented technology forembedding chips
in printed circuit boards (ECP®). This ability enables it to ben-
efit to a much higher degree from the trend towards greater
density, increasing miniaturisation and higher performance.
The next step is to grow the customer portfolio in the semicon-
ductor industry and establish collaborative agreements with
technology leaders.

= Usinginnovation to extend the technology portfolio To support
the major trends in the industry, such as miniaturisation, and
the integration of additional functionality, connectivity and
modular design, the Group is focusing on four key development
areas of its technology portfolio:

1. Interconnect density: continuing refinement of HDI printed
circuit boards in order to reduce their size while increasing
their functional complexity.

2.Mechanical integration: improvement of the mechanical in-
tegration of printed circuit boards with other components
in electronic devices.

3.Functional integration: integrating additional functionali-
ties in printed circuit boards beyond what is currently pos-
sible with the Group’s ECP® technology.
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4. Printed solutions: reduced consumption of raw materials,
such as water, copper or chemicals, by increasing the use
of printing technologies.

= Diversification of the Group’s customer portfolio To reduce
dependence on individual customers or industries and to take
advantage of opportunities for growth, AT&S is pursuing a
strategy of diversification, with respect both to industries and
to geographical markets. Among other things, it is encouraging
and stepping up early collaboration with its customers’ own
R&D departments, in order to identify potentially profitable
new market segments.

= Further increasing technology leadership through high-vol-
ume production of interposers AT&S Group is in the process
of making capacities available in the Shanghai plant for the
production of interposers. Interposer technology is used to
connect printed circuit boards and integrated circuits (ICs).
The Group's ability to produce high volumes of interposers
industrially further strengthens its leadership position and
creates significant synergies with the planned production of
IC substrates in Chongging.

ENTRY TO IC SUBSTRATE PRODUCTION
BUSINESS Together with a strong partner in the semicon-
ductor industry, AT&S is in the process of preparing to establish
production of IC substrates. Over the years AT&S has continu-
ously and systematically pursued technological development in
HDI technology and embedded component packaging technology
(ECP®) and is now ready to enter the premier league of printed
circuit board production. Around EUR 350m is being invested in
creating capacity in the Chongqging plant, and production is to be
ramped up in 2016, once certification has been completed. This
new strategic pillar can be built on the foundations of the com-
petence already demonstrated by AT&S in establishing highly au-
tomated high-tech production in China. AT&S has an established
reputation with the potential customers for the highest quality
and environmental standards, and for “European” respect for the
intellectual property right of others. These represent very sub-
stantial advantages to the customers and promise AT&S success
in opening up the new market.



Research and development

At AT&S, the proportion of “young” products — those brought
to market in the last three years — is impressive: In the finan-
cial year 2012/13 it was 19%. This is a demonstration of AT&S
Group's innovative ability, and also highlights the sheer pace of
technological change.

As technology leader in the market for high-end printed circuit
boards, AT&S must maintain its position at the forefront of in-
novation: in collaboration with its customers, new ideas can then
rapidly be translated into high-volume industrial production.
This is why the Group spends around 5% of its annual revenues
on research and development.

THE PROCESS OF INNOVATION Technological

innovation at AT&S is a two-stage process. Leoben-Hinterberg
is not just the Group's registered headquarters, but also the
birthplace of countless advanced technologies. This is where
research and development with respect to materials, processes
and applications takes place, up to the point where technological
feasibility has been demonstrated. Activities at the site include
both applied research and technology evaluation. After that, it
is the responsibility of the local AT&S departments for technol-
ogy development and implementation to continue the practical
development of products and processes so that the new pro-
cesses can be seamlessly integrated into existing production
operations. The key to success is a structured process ensuring
that promising new technological developments and theirmarket
potential are correctly identified as early as possible. AT&S uses
the Stage-Gate® process.

Inordertoretainits position as global technologyleader, AT&S is
working closely with numerous external partners. Requirements
and ideas for future products are explored jointly with custom-
ers, and at the same time AT&S develops new technologies on
the basis of future applications, such as embedded component
packaging technology (ECP®). In addition to its own resources,
the Group uses collaborative agreements with suppliers and re-
search institutions where required — e.g., Polymer Competence
Center Leoben (PCCL), Materials Center Leoben (MCL), Fraun-
hofer IZM and TU Wien (Vienna University of Technology).

TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY The AT&S technology

strategy has three main aims:

= Closer focus on high-tech segments — the applications for
AT&S's new products and technologies are at the high-tech
end of the various markets.

= Larger contribution to the value chain — the new products and
technologies developed by AT&S should represent a higher
proportion of the value added in the production of electronic
devices.

= Reduced consumption - and recycling — of natural resources.
AT&S's new products and technologies use smaller quantities
of natural resources (e.g., copper, water and energy) than exist-
ing products and technologies.

The decision taken in the year under review to embark on the pro-
duction of IC substrates signals a major change of direction in the
Group's high-tech strategy for the future. Substrates are the link
between the nanoscopic world of semiconductors and the micro-
scopic world of printed circuit boards.

PATENT STRATEGY Focusing on research and develop-
ment requires legal protection of the core development technolo-
gies. In thelastfinancial year 17 new patent applications were filed,
and the continuing growth of the patent portfolio underlines AT&S
Group's importance as a technology leader in the manufacture of
printed circuit boards. AT&S now has 83 patent families.

The Company
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Sites and competences

The AT&S Group currently has six production plants specialis-
ing in different technologies: Leoben-Hinterberg, Fehring and
Klagenfurt in Austria, Ansan in Korea, Nanjangud in India and
Shanghai in China. The Group is currently building a seventh
facility in Chongqing in China. AT&S employs around 7,300 peo-
ple worldwide.

Each of the plants concentrates on a specific portfolio of tech-
nologies. The Austrian plants are geared to the European market
and also, increasingly, to the American one. Short production
times, special applications and a greater emphasis on suppli-
ers’ closeness to customers are typical for Europe. The plants
in Austria, India and Korea usually concentrate on small and
medium-sized batches for industrial and automotive customers,
while in China the focus is on large volumes for mobile commu-
nications customers.

Shanghai and Leoben-Hinterberg are a major innovative force
within the AT&S Group thanks to their research and develop-
ment facilities.

® production plants

LEOBEN-HINTERBERG (AUSTRIA) ¢
HEADQUARTERS

= Staff: 759

= Opened: 1982

= Production capacity: 110,000 square metres

= Customer orientation: 7% Automotive, 93% Industrial

TECHNOLOGIES

= Standard printed circuit boards

= HDI Multilayer printed circuit boards

= Rigid-flex printed circuit boards

= ECP® (Embedded Component Packaging)

= Printed Circuit Boards for high voltage applications

CERTIFICATIONS

= DS/EN ISO 13485:2003 = Sony Green Partner Certificate
= ISO 9001:2008 = EN9100:2009

= ISO/TS 16949:2009 = AEO Certificate

= ISO 14001:2004 = UL Listing

= OHSAS 18001:2007
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FEHRING (AUSTRIA) o
= Staff: 337

= Opened: 1974

= Production capacity: 300,000 square metres

= Customer orientation: 48% Automotive, 52% Industrial

TECHNOLOGIES

= Double-sided plated-through printed circuit boards
= Rigid-flex printed circuit boards

= Flexible printed circuit boards

= Metal core printed circuit boards

CERTIFICATIONS

= ISO 9001:2008 = Sony Green Partner Certificate
= ISO/TS 16949:2009 = AEO Certificate

= ISO 14001:2004 = UL Listing

= OHSAS 18001:2007



I KLAGENFURT (AUSTRIA)

Staff: 101
= Opened: 2003
= Production capacity: 165,000 square metres
= Customer orientation: 46% Automotive,

54% Industrial

TECHNOLOGIES

= Single-sided printed circuit boards

= Double-sided, not through-hole plated printed
circuit boards

= Insulated metallic substrate (IMS)

CERTIFICATIONS

= ISO 9001:2008 = OHSAS 18001:2007
= ISO/TS 16949:2009 = AEO Certificate

= ISO 14001:2004 = UL Listing

—e ANSAN (KOREA)

Staff: 240

= Opened: 2006

= Production capacity:

= 120,000 square metres

= Customer orientation:
19% Automotive, 54% Industrial,
27% Mobile Devices

TECHNOLOGIES

= Single and double-sided flexible
printed circuit boards

= Flexible multilayer circuit boards

= Rigid-flex printed circuit boards

= Flexible printed circuit boards with
metal reinforcement

CERTIFICATIONS
= ISO 9001:2008

= ISO/TS 16949:2009

= ISO 14001:2004

= OHSAS 18001:2007

= UL Listing

« SHANGHAI (CHINA)

= Staff: 4,412
= Opened: 2002
= Production capacity:
790,000 square metres
= Customer orientation:
10% Automotive, 2% Industrial,
88% Mobile Devices

TECHNOLOGIES

b NANJANGUD (INDIA)
Staff: 1,043
= Opened: 1999
= Production capacity: 380,000 square metres
= Customer orientation: 58% Automotive,
42% Industrial

TECHNOLOGIES

= Standard multilayer circuit boards

= Double-sided plated-through printed circuit
boards

CERTIFICATIONS
= ISO 9001:2008

= ISO/TS 16949:2009

= ISO 14001:2004

= OHSAS 18001:2007

= UL Listing

= HDI multilayer printed circuit
boards

= ALIVH® printed circuit boards

= Rigid-flex HDI printed circuit
boards

CERTIFICATIONS

= ISO 9001:2008

= ISO/TS 16949:2009

= ISO 14001:2004

= OHSAS 18001:2007

= Sony Green Partner Certificate

= Canon Green Partner Certificate
= UL Listing

» CHONGOQING (CHINA)

= Staff: 53

= Groundbreaking ceremony:
June 2011

= Focus: IC-substrates

The Company
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Investor Relations

AT&S AGAINST THE ATX-PRIME

IR ACTIVITIES AND AIMS The goal of our investor
relations activities is to provide all capital market participants
with up-to-date corporate information - transparently and si-
multaneously. In the past financial year activities focused on
approaching potential investors in Asia.

The latest figures, data and facts are available online at www.
ats.net/investors. The portal has been optimised for mobile ap-
plications, and provides analysts and investors with quick and
easy access to up-to-date corporate information — at any time,
and from anywhere in the world. Additionally, AT&S now makes
use of social media: a Twitter account (ATS_News) and a video
channel on YouTube (ATundS) have been launched. The You-
Tube channel provides visual impressions of the Group and the
manufacturing processes for high-end printed circuit boards, in
a virtual experience enjoyed by many.

AT&SS STOCK There are currently 25.9 million no par
value voting bearer shares in issue, of which 39% are held by
two foundations and 10% are held by the Company. The free
float comprises 51% of the shares, mostly held by international
institutional investors.

The AT&S share forms part of the ATX Prime Index and has re-
cently also been included in the ATX Global Players Index. The
latter consists of companies listed in the Prime Market on the
Vienna Stock Exchange and whose sales outside Europe consti-
tute a minimum of 20% of total revenue.
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SHARE PRICE The AT&S share is considered a cyclical
stock, and its performance is strongly correlated with sentiment
in the telecommunications industry. For this reason both share
price and volumes traded varied widely over the course of the
last financial year. Two factors had a major impact on the per-
formance of AT&S stock:

= earnings expectations for mobile devices manufacturers gen-
erally have deteriorated,

= and the share price came under particular pressure following
the announcements of the Group’s entry into the IC substrate
manufacturing business and the investment plans for the new
plant in Chongqing.

The share price reached its high in April 2012 at EUR 9.88 and its
low in July 2012 at EUR 6.25. At the end of the reporting period
market capitalisation was approximately EUR 158.4m.

COVERAGE at the end of the reporting period the AT&S
share was being covered by six analysts (Deutsche Bank, Erste
Bank, Kepler-Cheuvreux, Hauck & Aufhéduser, Raiffeisen Cen-
trobank and Berenberg Bank). One analyst rated the share “buy”,
and the other five rated it “hold”. The strategic aim is ensure
coverage by a minimum of six local and international analysts.

ROADSHOWS 1n the past financial year the Management
Board had a busy roadshow schedule that took them from Leo-
ben to London, Frankfurt, Amsterdam, Copenhagen, Hong Kong,
Shanghai, Zurich, Geneva and Paris. The itinerary included over
170 talks and discussions with investors. There were also nu-
merous presentations of the Group at local and international
conferences to introduce or reintroduce AT&S to as wide a range
of investors as possible.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

19th Annual General Meeting 4 July 2013

1st quarter 2013/14 23 July 2013
Dividend payment date and

ex-dividend date 25 July 2013

2nd quarter 2013/14 5 November 2013
3rd quarter 2013/14 23 January 2014
Annual results 2013/14 8 May 2014




Highlights of 2012/13

MARCH 2013 / AT&S KEEPS ON GROWING The AT&S Group brings a challenging financial year to an im-

pressive close: sales were up 5% year on year, with growth in the automotive segment particularly gratifying.

MARCH 2013/ THREE AT&S EXCELLENCE GRANTS FOR ELECTRONICS UNDERGRADU-
ATES AT FH JOANNEUM KAPFENBERG In May 2012 AT&S and FH Joanneum concluded a cooperation
agreement designed to foster the development of the next generation of electronics graduates. On 18 March 2013 AT&S Chief
Technical Officer Heinz Moitzi presented a grant of EUR 1,000 each to the three most promising students from the univer-
sity’s 2011 intake.

JANUARY 2013/ AT&S LAYS THE GROUND FOR ENTRY INTO THE NEW BUSINESS SEG-
MENT IC-SUBSTRATES ATS&S has decided to expand its product portfolio and move into integrated circuit (IC)
substrate manufacturing, opening the door to a new high-tech line of business for the Group. IC substrates are used to con-
nect semiconductors and printed circuit boards.

OCTOBER 2012/ AT&S PROMOTES MUTUAL APPROACHES TO EFFICIENT USE OF RE-
SOURCES AT&S's Supplier of the Year and Sustainability Awards recognised the contributions made by its leading
partners. These prizes are intended to promote a sense of shared responsibility when it comes to getting the very best out
of existing resources without making any concessions on quality.

OCTOBER 2012/ AVIATION INDUSTRY CERTIFICATION AT&S has achieved certification according
to the EN9100 and AS9100 quality standards, meaning that the Group has the safety and reliability credentials required to
supply partners in the aviation industry. This certification and the inauguration of a sales office in Chicago mean that it can
sharpen our focus on this market in America.

OCTOBER 2012/ ZTE PRAISES AT&S’'S USE OF INNOVATIVE TECHNOLOGIES ZTE, one of
China’s largest smartphone manufacturers, opened its Central European headquarters in Vienna in 2012. The company sin-
gled out AT&S Group for praise because of its innovative technologies and outstanding quality of service.

JULY 2012/ MANAGEMENT BOARD REAPPOINTMENTS In July 2012 the Supervisory Board confirmed
the extension of the Management Board appointments of CEO Andreas Gerstenmayer and Chief Technical Officer Heinz
Moitzi until 2018, providing additional continuity and safeguarding the Group’s long-term development. In January 2013
Chief Financial Officer Thomas Obendrauf announced his decision to resign from the Management Board with effect from
the end of the financial year 2012/13 for personal reasons.

JUNE 2012/ RECERTIFICATION FOR ALL AT&S LOCATIONS WORLDWIDE Following the certi-
fication of the largest production facility in the AT&S Group, Shanghai, in mid-May, all AT&S sites had successfully achieved
recertification for the ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 standards.

JUNE 2012/ AT&S SHANGHAI HOSTS EICC CONGRESS The Electronics Industry Citizenship Corpora-
tion (EICC), an industry association, has set itself the aim of implementing a code of conduct to improve social, economic and
environmental conditions in the global value chain for the electronics sector. In June 2012 around 40 companies from the
industry, including Foxconn, Cisco and Flextronics, met at the AT&S plant in Shanghai for a meeting of the working group.
This event served to highlight the pioneering role played by the AT&S Group in areas such as corporate responsibility and
environmental protection.
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Sustainability across the board

A DEDICATED CORPORATE CITIZEN -For
AT&S, achieving long-term success is all about value-based
managerial decisions, a focus on innovation, and a relentless
drive to minimise environmental and social impacts in the pro-
duction of highly complex interconnection solutions. We know
that forward-looking approaches and the responsible use of re-
sources are the foundations of such success. We strive to achieve
improvements by driving forward change. And sustainability is
not just a means to this particular end, but an end in itself. Our
belief that each individual employee acts as a link between our
plants, society and the environment, and our focus on achiev-
ing technological advances in close collaboration with suppliers,
research institutions and customers are further evidence of our
commitment to sustainability.

OUR VISION OF TOMORROW we are convinced
that every one of us can make a difference, no matter how large
or small our personal contribution. As an international company,
we aim to fulfil our social obligations by acting as a responsible
corporate citizen. Producing the most up-to-date printed circuit
boards and interconnection solutions for our customers while
minimising the impact on people and planet is a challenge which
our plants must face up to every day. This is not our goal, but

AT B
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sg:-;f

7 -

Energy and CO, footprint

Water consumption

The Company

Use of resources

a point of departure and a guiding principle for our day-to-day
operations. Our vision is to lighten the burden on future genera-
tions by minimising our consumption of the resources currently
available to us.

And by turning this vision into reality AT&S aims to bring about
a sea change in social values. All in all, sustainability involves
a commitment to long-term planning and forward thinking, and
to attaching equal weight to ecological, social and commercial
matters. That also applies to AT&S's facilities in countries where
the statutory requirements are far less rigorous than in Austria.
This goes hand in hand with our ethos of living up to our respon-
sibilities at each and every one of our plants.

In terms of employee safety, ecological impact and social re-
sponsibility, the goal at all of our sites around the world is to
introduce the principles, high standards, know-how and exper-
tise currently in place at our facilities in the West — and to do so
to the letter. As a global business, AT&S cannot afford to make
concessions at the expense of its staff simply on the basis of ge-
ography. For example, we rigorously avoid regional differences
when it comes to safety standards for plant and equipment, or
the personal safety equipment worn by our employees.

T
A learning Thinking ahead,
organisation shaping the future



FIVE PRIORITY AREAS corporate social responsibil-
ity (CSR) is a broad concept that can cover a host of different
factors, especiallyin a global organisation like AT&S. In an effort
to make the extent of this idea more palpable, understandable
and measureable — both inside and outside the Group — we have
specified five areas of activity which we intend to focus on.

These five areas are vital to our core business and we can meas-
ure our progress in each by defining targets. This will not only
help us to achieve our goals; it will also enable us to constantly
improve the processes that lead to those objectives — and to de-
velop as a company.

= Energy and CO, footprint

= Water consumption

= Use of resources

= A learning organisation

= Thinking ahead, shaping the future

CO2 FOOTPRINT To provide clear proof that we are meet-
ing the self-imposed commitment to overfulfil emission stand-
ards, we introduced carbon dioxide emissions as an environ-
mental performance indicator some time ago. We monitor our
emissions closely, so as to chart the long-term effectiveness of
the steps taken to reduce them. Our plants have adopted a va-
riety of measures aimed at reducing carbon dioxide emissions.
A gas-fired generator has been installed to meet the electricity
and heating requirements of AT&S’s Shanghai facility. This com-
bined heat and power generation has reduced CO, emissions by
about 1,400 tonnes per year. In April 2011 the generator won us
a local Cogeneration Model Project award.

Our aim is to cut carbon dioxide emissions by around 5% each
year. Our carbon footprint is made up of two elements — produc-
tion and transportation. The production component includes all
the CO, emissions indirectly caused by electricity use as well as
those directly resulting from gas combustion to generate heat.
The transportation component comprises all the CO, emissions
that arise from shipping our printed circuit boards to customers.

The table below shows howmany kilograms of carbon dioxide are
emitted in the production of one square metre of finished printed

circuit board and its transportation to the customer.

CO, footprint (production and transportation) [kg/m?]

2009/10

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
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WATER CONSUMPTION 1n future, water will be in
increasingly short supply. Our aim will therefore be to make sure
that we use theresources available to us as sparingly as possible,
while continuing to focus on wastewaterrecovery. In recent years
we have initiated a raft of precautions and implemented numer-
ous measures aimed at reducing consumption and improving the
efficacy of purification systems. We will be looking to build on
our past record of successfully installing wastewater treatment
facilities and implementing water conservation initiatives at our
production plants. Our aim is to reduce the Group’s annual fresh
water consumption by three percent. The following indicators
show the quantities of water consumed in the production of one
square metre of printed circuit board.

Total freshwater consumption [It/m? pcb]

I AT&S Group target B AT&S Group actual performance
1000 -~
800 - - - -~ -
600 - - - - - -
400 - - - - - - - - - - - -
200---—- - - - - - -
0

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

USE OF RESOURCES We aim to optimise our consump-
tion of materials, and keep both waste and waste disposal to
a minimum. A Group-wide internal benchmark for each of the
main types of waste was introduced recently. This will help to
enhance the efficiency of disposal and recycling throughout the
Group thanks to the use of best practice that allows for the vari-
ous statutory requirements that apply to the individual plants.
The next step will be to analyse internal recycling processes and
compare activities at each of the production facilities.

We will include recycling rates under our key performance indi-
cators and monitor them over time, introducing another easy-to-
measure target. The aim is to minimise the amount of resources
we consume, and recycle raw materials after use.

The Company

COPPER: A RECYCLING CASE STUDY copper
is one of the most commonly used materials in printed circuit
boards. Copper foil is at the heart of the printed circuit board.
This special foil is produced at our plants using 100 percent re-
cycled copper. At the end of its useful life, copper chloride (used
as an etchant) is disposed of via an external supplier, which
then recovers the copper from the solution. Small traces of cop-
per also find their way into wastewater. Our wastewater treat-
ment systems recover the copper, filtering it out using a number
of different technologies. The electroplating sludge containing
the copper residue is then passed on to external companies for
recycling. All of the solid waste containing copper from the pro-
duction process — such as copper trimmings and milling waste
—is collected separately before being forwarded on for recycling.
These processes give an indication of some of the various ways
that a single metal is recycled in the course of printed circuit
board production. Similar procedures are also used to recycle
other types of waste material.

A LEARNING ORGANISATION AT&S is a pioneer
and a driver of innovation in the printed circuit board industry.
A company which stops learning and comes to a standstill will
quickly fall behind its competitors, so AT&S constantly aims
to give its employees opportunities to grow and develop — both
professionally and personally. Learning is also essential if we
want to adapt rapidly to new situations. Flexibility is a priceless
asset for a business looking to hold its own in today’s dynamic
marketplace.

Once employees have completed their basic training, certain em-
ployee target groups are given a choice of training opportuni-
ties tailored to their particular working environment and area
of expertise. Such a development programme is now in place for
the leading foremen at the Shanghai plant. A similar initiative
focusing on leadership skills has been introduced in Austria.

Positioning AT&S as a learning organisation also enables us to
attract specialists to the Group, as well as facilitating the re-
training of staff from other industries and professions. This in
turn allows us to respond quickly to changing technologies and
markets.



Customers and
markets

AT&S

Globalisation

Demographic
change

New technologies

Staff
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Personal and
social context

THINKING AHEAD, SHAPING THE FUTURE
Foresight is essential if we want to shape the future. We cannot
just keep pace with changes in our industry; we have to stay one
step ahead.

As aglobal company, we are affected by countless trends, ranging
from globalisation and demographic changes to rapidly shift-
ing social values and the availability of cutting-edge technolo-
gies. All of these factors have an impact on our operations and
our position on the market. When making key decisions we aim
to take account of their effects on three important stakeholder
groups: customers and markets, employees and their social envi-
ronment, and governments and legislative frameworks. We want
to integrate a global mindset — the ability to understand complex
international relationships and build on that know-how in day-
to-day operations — into our corporate culture. This applies to
the Group as a whole and to each employee.

EXPECTATIONS AND OUTLOOK The shifting
values in our society, rapid changes in our operating environ-
ment, and a host of internal and external demands mean that it

Changes in
personal values

Governments

\ Laws

Trade unions

is time to take action now on tomorrow’s key issues. Top-down
implementation is not the way to go about creating a sustainable
organisation, nor should the task be left to just a few dedicated
individuals. Sustainability is the business of the entire Group.
Taking a socially responsible attitude to our employees and the
regions where our plants are located is also vital in this respect.
We are strong supporters of the principle of thinking globally
and acting locally. This means going beyond compliance with
minimum legal requirements for socially responsible behaviour.
Instead, we aim to create added value and make a strong contri-
bution to social welfare by means of targeted initiatives. Sup-
porting a clinic for people living close to our Indian plant; build-
ing a kindergarten in India; providing IT equipment to schools in
Chongqging; opening alibrary, and supplying computer hardware
and software for residents at a retirement home in Shanghai;
promoting educational, social and sports initiatives in Austria —
these are just a few of the projects where AT&S has underlined
its standing as a dedicated corporate citizen.

The Company
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Principles and

Corporate Governance Declaration

AT & S Austria Technologie & Systemtechnik AG (AT&S) declares
its voluntary adherence to the Austrian Corporate Governance
Code (OCGK) as amended in January 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE 1 Austria
the Corporate Governance Code drawn up by the Working Group
for Corporate Governance under the guidance of the government
authorities responsible for the Austrian capital markets has been
in force since 1 October 2002. Since then it has been reviewed
annually in light of national and international developments
and where necessary amended, most recently with effect from
1 January 2012.

The Code contains all the rules essential to good corporate gov-
ernance, divided into the following categories:

= L Rules (legal requirements): rules based on mandatory statu-
tory requirements

= C Rules (comply or explain): rules from which any departure
must be explained

= R Rules (recommendations): rules in the nature of recommen-
dations, where non-compliance need neither be disclosed nor
explained.

The version of the OCGK currently in force can be downloaded
from the Working Group’s website. An English translation of the
Code and interpretations of the Code prepared by the Working
Group are also available there.

AT&S has for many years been following a strategy designed to
further long-term, sustainable growth in the Group’s value. The
AT®&S share has been listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange since
May 2008, and since then the company has subscribed to the
Austrian Corporate Governance Code. An undertaking to comply
with the OCGK is a requirement for Austrian companies seeking
to belisted on the Vienna Stock Exchange’s prime market. AT&S's
commitment to the principles of good governance is reflected
in the open discussions that take place within and between the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board.

With the following declarations of undertaking AT&S already

complies as of 31 March 2013 with all the provisions of the O0CGK
as amended in January 2012:

Corporate Governance Report

CRULES 27-28A AND ALL RELATED PASSAGES: These
rules were amended in the course of the review of the OCGK in
December 2009 and came into force on 1 January 2010. Rules
27,27a and 28 contained in the version of January 2010 only ap-
ply to contracts concluded after 31 December 2009. As a result,
these rules do not apply to the appointment of Mr Moitzi to the
Management Board. Due to the short period between the most
recent review of the OCGK and the appointment of Mr Gersten-
mayer as Chairman of the Management Board in mid-December
2009, and in order to avoid any departure from the remunera-
tion regulations applicable to the appointment of Mr Moitzi, the
new rules were not considered in the contract concluded with
Mr Gerstenmayer in January 2010. These rules were also not
included in the Management Board appointment agreed with
Mr Obendrauf in October 2010, in order to avoid the unequal
treatment of individual Management Board members. The stock
option plan affected by the new rules has now expired, with the
last allocation made on 1 April 2012. Options granted under this
scheme must be exercised by 31 March 2016.

MANAGEMENT BODIES OF A PUBLIC LIM-
ITED COMPANY The Management Board is responsible
for managing the affairs of the company so as to further the
wellbeing of the company and the interests of shareholders, em-
ployees and the general public. Members of the Management
Board are appointed by the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the man-
agement of the company and must meet at least once a quarter.
Members of the Supervisory Board are appointed by the General
Meeting. In addition, the employee representatives are entitled
to delegate one representative as a Supervisory Board member
for every two Supervisory Board members elected by the General
Meeting.

The General Meeting is the primary forum for shareholders to
exercise their participatory decision-making rights as provided
under statute and the company’s articles of incorporation.



AT&S AG Management Board

The Management Board is collectively responsible for the manage-
ment of the company. Each member of the Management Board is
also responsible for specific areas of the business —which does not
affect their collective responsibility. Management Board members
have a duty to keep each other informed of all important business
events and transactions. Fundamental issues of business policy
and major decisions require the joint decision of all Management
Board members. Open discussions take place between members
of the Management Board during Board meetings. If unanimous
agreement is not reached on such decisions, the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board must be informed without delay. The Supervi-
sory Board must also be informed of all proposed decisions with
far-reaching consequences. The Management Board must inform
the Supervisory Board at least once a year of measures taken to
combat corruption in the Group. Internal audit has been set up
as a separate organisational unit answerable to the Management
Board. The audit plan and any material outcomes must be reported
to the Audit Committee at least once a year. The rules and proce-
dures of AT&S's Management Board require the Board to meet at
least once a month. In the past financial year there were a total
of 30 Management Board meetings. Written minutes of all Board
meetings and decisions must be taken.

As at 31 March 2013, the Management Board of AT&S was com-
posed of Andreas Gerstenmayer (Chairman) and Heinz Moitzi
(Chief Technical Officer). Thomas Obendrauf (Deputy Chairman
and Chief Financial Officer) resigned from the AT&S Management
Board with effect from the end of the financial year on 31 March
2013 by agreement with the Chairman and the Supervisory Board.

ANDREAS GERSTENMAYER

Chairman of the Management Board

since 1 February 2010; appointed until 31 January 2018

Mr Gerstenmayer was born on 18 February 1965, and is a German
citizen. He studied Production Engineering at Rosenheim Univer-
sity of Applied Sciences. In 1990, he joined Siemens in Germany,
working first in lighting, and then holding various management
positions in the Siemens Group. In 2003 he was appointed Man-
aging Director of Siemens Transportation Systems GmbH Austria
and CEO of the Drive Technology business unit in Graz (world
headquarters). Mr Gerstenmayer does not hold any supervisory
board memberships or similar positions in other companies in
Austria or abroad that are not included in the consolidated finan-
cial statements. On 26 January 2012, the Provincial Government
of Styria passed a resolution appointing Mr Gerstenmayer to the
Forschungsrat Steiermark advisory committee. Andreas Gersten-
mayer’s managerial responsibilities are sales and marketing, hu-
man resources, investor relations, PR and internal communica-
tion, and business development and strategy. As Chairman of the
Management Board he is responsible for implementing the deci-
sions and resolutions of the Management Board, the Supervisory
Board and the Annual General Meeting, and seeing that they are
carried out.

HEINZ MOITZI

Chief Technical Officer

since 1 April 2005; appointed until 31 March 2018

Heinz Moitzi, born on 5 July 1956, studied electrical installa-
tion with Stadtwerke Judenburg (Judenburg municipal utility
company) from 1971 to 1975. From 1976 to 1981 he attended a
higher technical college of electrical engineering (HTBL), where
he completed his adult education certificate. In 1981 he worked
as a measurement engineer at the Leoben University of Mining
and Metallurgy. Mr Moitzi has been working at AT&S since 1981,
first as head of the mechanics and galvanics department, then as
production and plant manager at Hinterberg. He was project man-
ager and COO at AT&S in Shanghai from 2001 to 2004, returning to
take up the position of Vice President Production. Mr Moitzi does
not hold any Supervisory Board memberships or similar position
in other companies in Austria or abroad that are not included
in the consolidated financial statements. Heinz Moitzi's specific
managerial responsibilities cover production, research and devel-
opment, quality, the environment, safety, maintenance, supply,
and waste disposal.

THOMAS OBENDRAUF

Chief Financial Officer and Deputy Chairman

Thomas Obendrauf was born on 21 August, 1970. From 1989 to
1993, he studied business and commerce at Vienna University of
Economics and Business. He became a qualified tax adviser in
1997, and a certified public accountant (CPA) in Illinois, USA in
1999. From 2002 to 2004, Mr Obendrauf completed an executive
MBA at the University of Chicago’s Graduate School of Business.
After seven years at Price Waterhouse AG Osterreich (from 1993
2000), he moved to AAA net.com Dienstleistungs GmbH, where he
was Managing Director. Mr Obendrauf joined AT&S in 2001, ini-
tially heading up Group Controlling, and then held the position of
Chief Financial Officer for AT&S (China) Co. Ltd. from 2005-2010.
In October 2010, he moved back to Austria to become AT&S’s Chief
Financial Officer. Thomas Obendrauf decided to leave the com-
pany with effect from 31 March 2013 after two and a half years on
the AT&S Management Board by agreement with the other mem-
bers of the Board and the Supervisory Board. Mr Obendrauf did
not hold any supervisory board memberships or similar positions
in other companies in Austria or abroad that were not included in
the consolidated financial statements during his appointment to
the AT&S AG Management Board. He was responsible for finance
and accounting, controlling, internal audit, legal affairs and in-
surance, IT and back office, supply chain management and pro-
curement until his retirement from the Board. Management Board
Chairman Andreas Gerstenmayer will assume responsibility for
these areas until Mr Obendrauf’s successor is appointed.
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AT&S AG Supervisory Board

Name Date of birth

End of current
appointment

Date of first
appointment

Hannes Androsch 18. 04. 1938

21st AGM 2015

*  AT&S was originally established as a Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung (limited liability company). The shareholders’ meeting of 23 June 1995 passed
a resolution changing the company into an Aktiengesellschaft (public limited company), and appointed the Supervisory Board members including Hannes
Androsch. The Aktiengesellschaft was registered in the Register of Companies on 30 September 1995.

** Delegate of the Works Council; date of first appointment corresponds to the date of the first meeting of the Supervisory Board attended.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for policy issues and the
Group's strategic focus. Throughout the financial year beginning
on 1 April 2012 and ending on 31 March 2013, the Supervisory
Board received written and oral reports from the Management
Board onthe company’s policies and performance, and was close-
ly involved in a number of company-related issues. The Supervi-
sory Board met five times during the financial year 2012/13, with
the Management Board participating. In these meetings the Man-
agement Board and the Supervisory Board discussed the state of
AT&S Group's affairs in depth. As part of the Company’s ongoing
reporting process and at all board meetings, the Management
Board also gave the Supervisory Board comprehensive reports
on the Group's operating and financial position, as well as its
interests in other companies, its staff situation and its planned
investments. Entry into the IC substrate market as part of a
strategic partnership with a leading semiconductor manufac-
turer, and the operational focus of the new production facility in
Chongqing, China were discussed intensively and approved. The
Supervisory Board also focused on compliance with new statu-
tory regulations, and on developing compliance standards that
meet international norms. Its members endorsed a group-wide
staff development and succession planning programme, as well
as the implementation of an effective issuer compliance system.

COMPOSITION

HANNES ANDROSCH is Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
Appointed for the first time on 30 September 1995, appointed
until the 21st Annual General Meeting in 2015. He is a non-prac-
tising certified accountant and tax adviser, and has a doctorate
in economics. From 1970 to 1981 he was Austrian Federal Min-
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ister of Finance, and between 1976 and 1981 Vice Chancellor as
well. From July 1981 until 1988 he was Managing Director of
Creditanstalt-Bankverein (today part of the UniCredit Group). In
1994 he and Willibald Dérflinger and Helmut Zoidl joined in the
management buyout of AT&S. Hannes Androsch has interests in
a number of well-known Austrian businesses.

WILLIBALD DORFLINGER is Deputy Chairman of the Su-
pervisory Board. Appointed for the first time on 5 July 2005, ap-
pointed until the 21st Annual General Meeting in 2015. Willibald
Dorflinger began his professional career in 1972 with M. Schmid
& Sohne, moving to Honesta, Holz- und Kunststoffwarenindus-
trie in 1974. In 1978 he became head of technical procurement at
EUMIG Elektrizitats- und Metallwaren Industrie GesmbH; from
1980 was head of the department for circuit boards and surface
technology, and between 1986 and 1990 he was Managing Direc-
tor. From 1990 to 1994 Willibald Dérflinger was a member of the
AT&S Management Board as well as Managing Director of EUMIG
FohnsdorfIndustrie GmbH. In 1994 he and Hannes Androsch and
Helmut Zoidl joined in the management buyout of AT&S, and in
the period until 2005 he was at first Managing Director, then a
member and finally Chairman of the Management Board. In 2005
he moved to AT&S's Supervisory Board.

Other supervisory board positions held by Mr Dérflinger at listed
companies

= HWA AG

GERHARD PICHLER, appointed for the first time on 2 July
2009, appointed until the 20th Annual General Meeting in 2014.



Mr Pichler studied business administration at the Vienna Uni-
versity of Economics and Business. A certified auditor and
tax adviser, he has been Managing Director of CONSULTATIO
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft m.b.H. since 1986, and Manag-
ing Partner of the group since 1995.

KARL FINK, appointed for the first time on 5 July 2005, ap-
pointed until the 21st Annual General Meeting in 2015. Karl
Fink graduated in business studies from the Vienna Universi-
ty of Economics and Business in 1971. From 1971 to 1975 he
worked for Marubeni Corporation in international commodi-
ties trading, before moving to Wiener Stadtische Wechselseitige
Versicherungsanstalt in Vienna. Between 1979 and 1987 he was
Chairman of the Management Board of Interrisk — Internationale
Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft. In 1987 he became a member
of the Management Board of Wiener Stéddtische Allgemeine Ver-
sicherungs AG and in July 2004 Deputy Managing Director. In
October 2007 he was appointed Managing Director of Wiener
Stadtische Versicherung AG, Vienna Insurance Group. Mr Fink
retired from the Vienna Insurance Group Managing Board on 30
September 2009.

Other supervisory board positions held by Mr Fink at listed com-
panies:

= Wienerberger AG

ALBERT HOCHLEITNER, appointed for the first time on
5 July 2005, appointed until the 21st Annual General Meeting in
2015. Albert Hochleitner completed his studies in engineering
physics at Vienna University of Technology in 1965. In the same
year, he joined the Siemens Group's low voltage works in Vienna.
In 1984 he was appointed Chairman of the Management Board of
Uher AG. In 1988 he moved to Siemens AG, where he was head of
the electric motors business in the automotive technology sector
based in Wiirzburg. In October 1992 he became Chairman of the
Management Board of Siemens AG Austria. In 2005 he moved to
the Supervisory Board of Siemens AG Austria.

GEORG RIEDL, appointed for the first time on 28 May 1999,
appointed until the 22nd Annual General Meeting in 2016. Georg
Riedl acquired his doctorate in law in 1984 from the University
of Vienna. In 1991 he set up in independent practice as Riedl &
Ringhofer. He specialises in business, commercial, corporate and
tax law, mergers and acquisitions, and contract law.

REGINA PREHOFER, second deputy chairperson of the Su-
pervisory Board appointed for the first time on 7 July 2011, ap-
pointed until the 22nd Annual General Meeting in 2016. Regina
Prehofer studied commerce and law in Vienna. She started her
career in 1981 at Oesterreichische Kontrollbank. In 1987 she
moved to Creditanstalt, where she held various managerial po-
sitions in the bank’s corporate customer segment. In 2003 she
was appointed to the Management Board of Bank Austria Credi-
tanstalt AG, where she was responsible for corporate customers
and Eastern European markets. From 2006-2008 she was CEO of

UniCredit Global Leasing, in addition to her Management Board
responsibilities in Austria. This appointment gave her overall
responsibility for UniCredit Group's leasing operations. In Sep-
tember 2008 she switched to the Management Board of BAWAG
P.S.X. where she headed the bank’s retail and corporate cus-
tomer activities. In May 2011 she was appointed Vice Rector
with responsibility for infrastructure at the Vienna University
of Economics and Business. An appointment to the office of Vice
Rector with responsibility for finance followed in October 2011.

Other supervisory board positions held by Ms Prehofer at listed
companies:

= Wienerberger AG

KARIN SCHAUPP, appointed for the first time on 7 July 2011,
appointed until the 22nd Annual General Meeting in 2016. Karin
Schaupp gained her doctorate at the Karl Franzens Universitéit
Graz in 1978 and began her career as a research assistant at the
Institute of Pharmaceutical Chemistry. In 1980 she began her
careerin industry as head of analytics at Leopold Pharma GmbH.
After holding various research, development and product man-
agement posts in the international pharmaceuticals industry she
was appointed CEO of Fresenius Kabi Austria GmbH in 1997.
In 1999 she became regional manager for Austria and Eastern
Europe. In 2000 she was made a member of the management
board of Fresenius Kabi AG, Bad Homburg with responsibility
for worldwide operations. She has worked as an independent
consultant since 2003, with a focus on strategic business devel-
opment and innovation transfer.

Sabine Fussi, Wolfgang Fleck, Johann Fuchs, and Glinther Wol-
fler have been delegated to the Supervisory Board by the Works
Council.

Employee participation in supervisory boards and their commit-
tees is mandated by law, and forms part of the Austrian corpo-
rate governance system. Employee representatives are entitled
to delegate one representative as a Supervisory Board member
for every two Supervisory Board members elected by the Gen-
eral Meeting. If the number of shareholders’ representatives is
odd, the number of employee representatives is rounded up. This
one-third representation also applies to all supervisory board
committees, with the exception of meetings and votes concern-
ing the relationship between the company and its management
board members. Resolutions appointing or dismissing a man-
agement board member and the granting of stock options in the
company are also excepted. Representatives of the Group hold
regular meetings with the Management Board. These meetings
facilitate the exchange of information on developments in the
Group which have a direct bearing on employees.

Additional information on the Supervisory Board and its com-

position is available online at http://www.ats.net/company/
supervisory-board/.
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Independence of

Supervisory Board members

The OCGK specifies that the majority of Supervisory Board mem-
bers representing the shareholders must be independent. In ac-
cordance with C Rule 53, the Supervisory Board has established
the following criteria to be used in determining the independence
of its members.

Supervisory Board members are to be regarded as independent
if they have no business or personal relationships with the Com-
pany or its Management Board which could be cause for material
conflicts of interest and therefore liable to influence the behav-
iour of the memberin question. The following criteria are applied
in determining the independence of Supervisory Board members:

= The OCGK specifies that the majority of Supervisory Board
members representing the shareholders must be independent.
In accordance with C Rule 53, the Supervisory Board has es-
tablished the following criteria to be used in determining the
independence of its members.

= Supervisory Board members are to be regarded as independ-
ent if they have no business or personal relationships with the
Company or its Management Board which could be cause for
material conflicts of interest and therefore liable to influence
the behaviour of the memberin question. The following criteria
are applied in determining the independence of Supervisory
Board members:

= The Supervisory Board member was neither a member of the
Management Board nor a senior manager of the Company or
one of its subsidiaries in the past five years.

= The Supervisory Board member neither had during the last
financial year nor currently has a business relationship with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries of material significance
to that member. This also applies to business relationships
between AT&S Group and enterprises in which the Supervisory
Board member has a significant economic interest.

= The Supervisory Board memberwas neither a statutory auditor
of the Company, nor a person with an interest in the audit firm,
nor an employee of any such firm during the last three years.

= The Supervisory Board member is not a member of a manage-
ment board of another company where a member of AT&S's
Management Board is a member of that company’s supervisory
board.

= The Supervisory Board member has not been a member of the
Supervisory Board for longer than 15 years. This does not ap-
ply to Supervisory Board members who are shareholders with
entrepreneurial interests in the Company, or who represent
the interests of such shareholders.
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= The Supervisory Board member is not a close family relative
(direct descendant, spouse, lifetime partner, parent, uncle,
aunt, sibling, nephew orniece) of a Management Board member
or of any person in a position described in the foregoing points.

Every member of the Supervisory Board representing share-
holder interests declared whether they were independent in the
meaning of the above criteria at the meeting of 7 March 2013.
Seven of the eight members of the AT&S AG Supervisory Board
representing shareholder interests declared that they were inde-
pendent. Hannes Androsch declared thathe was notindependent.

C Rule 54 specifies that for companies with a free float in ex-
cess of 50%, at least two Supervisory Board members who are
independent should also not be shareholders with interests in
excess of 10%, or representatives of such interests. Five of the
eight Supervisory Board members representing the sharehold-
ers — Willibald Dérflinger, Karl Fink, Albert Hochleitner, Regina
Prehofer and Karin Schaupp - declared themselves independent
within the meaning of C Rule 54.

DIVERSITY Expertise and management experience are vi-
tal considerations when selecting members of the Supervisory
Board. Diversity also has a role to play. Three members of the
Supervisory Board are women, taking the proportion of female
members to 25% — significantly above the Austrian average. The
members of the Supervisory Board are aged between 43 and 75.
All members of the Supervisory Board representing shareholder
interests have extensive experience of international business and
as such have a highly international outlook.

AGREEMENTS REQUIRING APPROVAL In
connection with various acquisitions and projects, AT&S Group
has procured consultancy services from AIC Androsch Interna-
tional Management Consulting GmbH, which is headed by the
Chairman of AT&S's Supervisory Board. In the financial year
2012/13, fees for such services amounted to EUR 365,000.

The Group has procured consultancy services from Dérflinger
Management & Beteilungs GmbH, which is under the direct influ-
ence of Willibald Dérflinger, Deputy Chairman of the Supervi-
sory Board. In the financial year 2012/13, fees for such services
amounted to EUR 6,000.



Committees

In order to provide itself with effective support and to deal with
complex technical matters, the Supervisory Board has estab-
lished two committees which carry out detailed analysis of par-
ticularissues and report their findings to the Supervisory Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE In the financial year under re-

view, the Audit Committee comprised:

= Regina Prehofer (chairwoman)
(until 31 May 2012: Willibald Dérflinger)
= Gerhard Pichler (finance expert)
= Georg Riedl
= Wolfgang Fleck
= Glnther Wolfler

The Audit Committee monitors the accounting process and the
work of the statutory auditor, monitors and reviews the statu-
tory auditor’s independence, reviews the preparation and audit
of the annual financial statements, and reviews the proposed
distribution of profits, the management report and the corporate
governance report. The Committee is responsible for reporting
on the results of its reviews to the Supervisory Board. The Audit
Committee also carries out preparatory work for the Supervisory
Board on allissues in connection with the audit of the consolidat-
ed financial statements, consolidated management report and
the consolidated accounting process. It also submits a proposal
for the appointment of the statutory auditors and reports on
this matter to the Supervisory Board. The Audit Committee is
responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the group-wide
internal control system and, where appropriate, the Company’s
internal audit and risk management systems. The Audit Com-
mittee convened twice in the last financial year. Its activities
focused primarily on the discussion and review of the annual
and consolidated annual financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013, the planning and preparation for the audit of the
annual and consolidated annual financial statements for the fi-
nancial year 2012/13, and the discussion of the risk management,
internal control and internal audit systems. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee was also involved in the quarterly reporting
in the period under review and reported on these matters to the
Audit Committee.

NOMINATIONANDREMUNERATION COM-
MITTEE In the financial year under review, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee comprised:

= Hannes Androsch (chairman)
= Karl Fink

= Albert Hochleitner

= Wolfgang Fleck

= Johann Fuchs

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee submits propos-
als to the Supervisory Board for appointments to fill vacancies
on the Management Board whenever necessary. It deals with
succession planning issues, the remuneration of Management
Board members and the details of their contracts of appoint-
ment. In light of this, the Nomination and Remuneration com-
mittee met twice in the financial year just ended. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee is authorised to make decisions
in cases of urgency. All of the committee members representing
shareholders are former management board chairmen or man-
aging directors with knowledge and experience of remuneration
policies. After the resignation of Thomas Obendrauf from the
Management Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Com-
mittee and the Management Board agreed that Chairman of the
Management Board would assume the managerial responsibili-
ties of the Chief Financial Officer until a new Management Board
member was appointed. The Supervisory Board’'s Nomination
and Remuneration Committee immediately began the process of
identifying a successor and has been making intensive efforts to
secure an appointment.
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Remuneration report

The following report presents the remuneration of AT&S’s Management and Supervisory Board members. It should be read in con-
junction with the explanations in the notes to the 2012/13 annual and consolidated financial statements.

TOTAL REMUNERATION OF MANAGEMENT BOARD MEMBERS

Financial year 2012/13

Financial year 2011/12

In EUR ‘000 Fixed Variable Total Fixed Variable Total
Andreas Gerstenmayer 396 - 396 388 203 591
Heinz Moitzi 310 - 310 308 190 498
Thomas Obendrauf* 499 - 499 322 212 534
Steen E. Hansen* - - - - 242 242

1,205 - 1,205 1,018 847 1,865
* retired
The number of share options allocated to members of the Man-
agement Board is as follows:

Allocated on 1 April
2009 2010 2011 2012 Total

Andreas Gerstenmayer n.a 40,000 40,000 40,000 120,000
Heinz Moitzi 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 120,000
Thomas Obendrauf® 1,500 1,500 30,000 30,000 63,000
Exercise price (EUR) 3.86 7.45 16.60 9.86

! Thomas Obendrauf was previously a member of the Stock Option Scheme
in his senior management position (from which he retired with effect from
31 March 2013). The new allocation of options on 1 April 2011 reflected his

promotion to the Management Board.

The stock option-based system of Management Board remunera-
tion at AT&S is based on the Stock Option Scheme 2009-2012,
which ran from 1 April 2009 to 1 April 2012. The options granted
can be exercised in tranches: up to 20% after two years, up to
30% after three years, and up to 50% after four years following
allotment. Stock options may be exercised in whole or in part
after completion of the vesting period, although not during a
restricted period. Allotted options not exercised within five years
of the date of grant expire without compensation.
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The variable remuneration of the Management Board not con-
sisting of stock options, and of all employees whose remunera-
tion includes variable elements, depended on the achievement
of two performance measures defined in the budget, with equal
weight attached to return on capital employed (ROCE) and cash
earnings. The weighting of these two performance measures for
top management was reduced (from 50% to 45%) and the Innova-
tion Revenue Rate (IRR) was introduced with a 10% weighting
for the first time in the financial year 2011/12. Bonuses were
restricted to a maximum of 200% of the annual bonus set out in
the contract of employment. No variable remuneration was paid
as the relevant performance targets were not met in the finan-
cial year 2012/13.



Management Board members are entitled to termination ben-
efits in accordance with the Salaried Employees Act (AngG) if
their appointments are terminated. In the event of premature
termination of a Management Board member’s appointment for
reasonable cause or where the function disappears for legal rea-
sons, remuneration is payable until the end of the appointment
contract. Where a Management Board member resigns the ap-
pointment or is removed from office for severe breach of duty,
and in case of death, payment of salary ceases at the end of the
applicable month.

SUPERVISORY BOARD REMUNERATION

TOTAL REMUNERATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN THE FI-

Management Board pension entitlements are defined benefit or
defined contribution plans agreed individually. Mr Moitzi was
awarded pension entitlements of 1.2% of his most recent salary
for each year of service, up to a maximum of 40%. A contribution
of 10% of the gross monthly salary of Mr Gerstenmayer and Mr
Obendrauf was paid into a pension fund.

NANCIAL YEAR, AS RECOMMENDED TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, WAS AS FOLLOWS:

Financial year 2012/13

In EUR ‘000 Fixed Committees Variable Meetings Total
Hannes Androsch 30.0 3.0 - 2.0 35.0
Willibald Dérflinger 25.0 - - 2.0 27.0
Georg Riedl 20.0 2.0 - 1.6 23.6
Regina Prehofer 20.0 3.0 - 2.0 25.0
Albert Hochleitner 20.0 2.0 - 2.0 24.0
Karl Fink 20.0 2.0 - 2.0 24.0
Gerhard Pichler 20.0 2.0 - 2.0 24.0
Karin Schaupp 20.0 - - 2.0 22.0

175.0 14.0 - 15.6 204.6

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board receives fixed remunera-
tion of EUR 30,000 per financial year, the first Deputy Chairman
EUR 25,000 and all other elected members EUR 20,000. Chair-
manship of a Committee is remunerated with a fixed amount of
EUR 3,000 per financial year, and membership of a Committee
with EUR 2,000. The attendance fee is generally EUR 400 per
Supervisory Board meeting. The variable element of Superviso-
ry Board remuneration consists of attendance fees and a bonus
based on AT&S's achieving the level of ROCE established in the
budget. In addition, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board re-
ceives an ROCE-based bonus of EUR 10,000 per financial year,
and other members of the Board EUR 5,000 if the budgeted level
is fully achieved. Members of the Supervisory Board do not re-
ceive stock options in the Company. No variable remuneration
was paid as the relevant performance targets were not met in
the financial year 2012/13.

The remuneration for the members of the Supervisory Board is
determined retrospectively for the financial year just ended by

means of a resolution at the Annual General Meeting. Remunera-
tion paid to members of the Supervisory Board in the financial
year 2012/13 for the previous financial year was in accordance
with the resolution passed at the 18th Annual General Meeting of
5 July 2012.

The employee representatives receive no remuneration for their
work on the Supervisory Board.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY IN-
SURANCE (D&0 INSURANCE) The D&0 insurance
at AT&S covers all past, present and future members of the Com-
pany’s and its subsidiaries’ managing and supervisory bodies. The
insurance covers court and all other costs of defence against unwar-
ranted claims, together with the satisfaction of warranted claims
for pure financial loss arising from breaches of duty by the insured
in their managerial or supervisory activities. The insurance is valid
worldwide. The annual premium is paid by AT&S.
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Directors’ holdings and dealings

Shares Options (according to Stock Option Plan)

As of As of As of Allocated/ As of
In EUR ‘000 31 March 2012 Change 31 March 2013 % capital | 31 March 2012 exercised/lapsed 31 March 2013
Heinz Moitzi 1,672 - 1,672 0.01% 114,000 - 114,000
Andreas Gerstenmayer - - - 0.00% 80,000 40,000 120,000
Thomas Obendrauf - - - 0.00% 34,500 -34,500 -
Hannes Androsch 445,853 - 445,853 1.72%
Androsch Privatstiftung 5,570,666 - 5,570,666 21.51%
Dérflinger Privatstiftung 4,594,688 - 4,594,688 17.74%
Gerhard Pichler 19,118 - 19,118 0.07%
Georg Riedl 9,290 - 9,290 0.04%
Johann Fuchs 4 - 4 0.00%
Total - all directors’
holdings and dealings 10,641,291 10,641,291 41.09% 228,500 5,500 234,000
Own shares” 2,577,412 - 2,577,412 9.95%
Other shares in issue 12,681,297 - 12,681,297 48.96%
Total 25,900,000 25,900,000 100.00%

U The nominal value of treasury stock at 31 March 2013 was EUR 2,835,153.

The share options held by Thomas Obendrauf remained exercisable until 31 March 2013, i.e. the date he left the company and the
date his contract expired. Share options granted to him but not exercised by 31 March 2013 expired without compensation.
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Other codes of conduct

INCREASING FEMALE REPRESENTATION
AT BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
LEVEL Two of the eight members of the AT&S Supervisory
Board representing shareholder interests are women, and the
employee representatives delegated a further female member to
the Supervisory Board. At 25%, the proportion of female Super-
visory Board members is significantly above the Austrian aver-
age. 14% of the senior management positions in the two levels
directly below Management Board level are held by women. 36%
of the Group’s employees are female. The Group continues to
make every effort to increase female representation at board and
senior management level.

AT&S CODE OF BUSINESS ETHICS AND
CONDUCT 1n addition to the OCGK, AT&S has established
its own code of business ethics, which describes how AT&S con-
ducts its business in an ethical and socially responsible way.
The guidelines apply to all AT&S'’s activities worldwide, and all
AT&S employees without exception are expected to abide by the
Code in the exercise of their business and professional activities
and their daily work. Stricter or more detailed guidelines may be
established for specific regions, countries or functions, but they
must be consistent with this corporate policy. Under one of the
main provisions of the code, AT&S is committed to avoiding any
form of discrimination on the basis of race, religion, political
affiliation or gender in activities such as recruitment, remunera-
tion and promotion. Performance is the decisive factor.

AT&S COMPLIANCE CODE aTss supports the
Austrian Corporate Governance Code’s aim of raising domes-
tic and foreign investors’ confidence in the Austrian financial
market by enhancing transparency and introducing universal
principles. AT&S attaches great importance to equal treatment
of all investors and the provision of comprehensive information.
The Group has adopted a Compliance Code (“Corporate Directive
Issuer Compliance”) which covers all Supervisory Board mem-
bers and complies with the provisions of the Issuer Compliance
Regulation of the Austrian Financial Market Authority and all
other statutory regulations applicable to the financial markets.
The Group Guidelines on Issuer Compliance were adapted in
the financial year 2012/13 to reflect the changes in the Issuer
Compliance Order (Federal Law Gazette [FLG] II No. 213/2007 as
amended by FLG II No. 30/2012) enacted by the Austrian Finance
Market Authority, which entered into force on 1 December 2012.
The Compliance Officer constantly monitors adherence to these
guidelines. During the 2012/13 financial year there were no in-
stances of violations of the compliance regulations.

Management Board

Andreas Gerstenmayer m.p.

Heinz Moitzi m.p.
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Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss

Financial year ended 31 March

(in EUR 1,000) Note 2013 2012
Revenue 1 541,673 514,180
Cost of sales 2 (464,757) (430,682)
Gross profit 76,916 83,498
Distribution costs 2 (28,195) (25,590)
General and administrative costs 2 (19,102) (21,632)
Other operating result 1,275 5,863
Operating result 30,894 42,139
Finance income 6 527 2,690
Finance costs 6 (15,354) (12,577)
Finance costs - net (14,827) (9,887)
Profit before tax 16,067 32,252
Income taxes 7 (1,965) (5,738)
Profit for the year 14,102 26,514
thereof owners of the parent company 14,101 26,550
thereof non-controlling interests 1 (36)
Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of
the parent company (in EUR per share): 24
- basic 0.60 1.14
- diluted 0.60 1.14

Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income

Financial year ended 31 March

(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Profit for the year 14,102 26,514
Currency translation differences 22,285 34,764
Fair value gains/(losses) of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax (28) (13)
Fair value gains/(losses) on hedging instruments for cash flow hedges,

net of tax 68 (162)
Other comprehensive income for the year 22,325 34,589
Total comprehensive income for the year 36,427 61,103
thereof owners of the parent company 36,423 61,137
thereof non-controlling interests 4 (34)

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013



Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position

(in EUR 1,000) Note 2013 2012
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 437,763 454,466
Intangible assets 9 1,952 2,451
Financial assets 13 96 96
Overfunded retirement benefits 17 538 581
Deferred tax assets 7 21,323 16,819
Other non-current assets 10 9,657 8,730
471,329 483,143
Current assets
Inventories 11 62,417 64,909
Trade and other receivables 12 111,802 115,483
Financial assets 13 770 768
Current income tax receivables 657 617
Cash and cash equivalents 14 80,226 29,729
255,872 211,506
Total assets 727,201 694,649
EQUITY 22
Share capital 23 45,914 45,535
Other reserves 44,877 22,555
Retained earnings 221,713 215,075
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 312,504 283,165
Non-controlling interests (51) (55)
Total equity 312,453 283,110
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 16 168,665 188,729
Provisions for employee benefits 17 15,206 13,895
Other provisions 18 10,437 11,422
Deferred tax liabilities 7 6,386 5,701
Other liabilities 15 3,948 3,641
204,642 223,388
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 77,348 98,037
Financial liabilities 16 129,837 84,399
Current income tax payables 1,299 3,551
Other provisions 18 1,622 2,164
210,106 188,151
Total liabilities 414,748 411,539
Total equity and liabilities 727,201 694,649

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013

51



Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows

Financial year ended 31 March

(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 14,102 26,514
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to cash generated from operating activities:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 70,991 61,217
Changes in non-current provisions 265 1,020
Income taxes 1,965 5,738
Finance costs 14,827 9,887
(Gains)/losses from the sale of fixed assets 777 (726)
Release of government grants (808) (657)
Other non-cash expense/(income), net (692) 1,416
Changes in working capital:
- Inventories 4,154 (8,992)
- Trade and other receivables 1,585 3,416
- Trade and other payables (15,095) 7,690
- Other provisions (551) (518)
Cash generated from operating activities 91,520 106,005
Interest paid (13,102) (9,634)
Interest and dividends received 494 216
Income taxes paid (7,239) (9,380)
Net cash generated from operating activities 71,673 87,207

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (43,959) (113,228)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,500 143
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets 35 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - (473)
Purchases of financial assets (292) (2,193)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets 167 2,162
Net cash used in investing activities (40,549) (113,589)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term bonds - 98,999
Changes in other financial liabilities 23,921 (42,330)
Proceeds from government grants 1,475 2,609
Dividends paid (7,463) (8,396)
Net cash generated from financing activities 17,933 50,882
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 49,057 24,500
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 29,729 4,227
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 1,440 1,002
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 80,226 29,729

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013



Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

Equity
attributable
to owners Non-
Share Other Retained  of the parent controlling Total
(in EUR 1,000) capital reserves earnings company interests equity
31 March 2011 44,475 (12,032) 197,020 229,463 353 229,816
Profit for the year - - 26,550 26,550 (36) 26,514
Other comprehensive income for the year - 34,587 - 34,587 2 34,589
thereof currency translation differences - 34,762 - - 2 34,764
thereof change in available-for-sale financial
assets, net of tax - (13) - - - (13)
thereof change in hedging instruments for cash
flow hedges, net of tax - (162) - - - (162)
Total comprehensive income for the year
2011/12 - 34,587 26,550 61,137 (34) 61,103
Dividends paid relating to 2010/11 - - (8,396) (8,396) - (8,396)
Change in treasury shares, net of tax 1,060 - - 1,060 - 1,060
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - (99) (99) (374) (473)
31 March 2012 45,535 22,555 215,075 283,165 (55) 283,110
Profit for the year - - 14,101 14,101 14,102
Other comprehensive income for the year - 22,322 - 22,322 3 22,325
thereof currency translation differences - 22,282 - - 22,285
thereof change in available-for-sale financial
assets, net of tax - (28) - - - (28)
thereof change in hedging instruments for cash
flow hedges, net of tax - 68 - - - 68
Total comprehensive income for the year
2012/13 - 22,322 14,101 36,423 4 36,427
Dividends paid relating to 2011/12 - - (7,463) (7,463) - (7,463)
Change in treasury shares, net of tax 379 - — 379 — 379
31 March 2013 45,914 44,877 221,713 312,504 (51) 312,453

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013 53



54

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

I. General Information

A. GENERAL AT & S Austria Technologie & Systemtech-
nik Aktiengesellschaft (hereinafter referred to as “the Compa-
ny”, and with its subsidiaries referred to as “the Group”) is
incorporated in Austria. The Company is headquartered in
Austria, Fabriksgasse 13, A-8700 Leoben-Hinterberg.

The Group manufactures and sells printed circuit boards and
provides related services primarily in the segments Mobile
Devices, Automotive, Aviation, Industrial, Medi-
cal & Healthcare and Advanced Packaging. The products are
produced and distributed in the European and Asian market
directly to original equipment manufacturers (OEM) as well as
to contract electronic manufacturers (CEM).

Since 20 May 2008 the Company has been listed in the Prime
Market segment of the Vienna, Austria, Stock Exchange and,
after a period of double listing on the Stock Exchange in
Frankfurt am Main, has been traded exclusively at the Vienna
Stock Exchange since 15 September 2008. Prior to the change
in Stock Exchange, the Company had been listed at the Frank-
furt Stock Exchange, Germany, since 16 July 1999.

According to § 245a of the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) the
consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS
and IAS) and interpretations (IFRIC and SIC) as adopted by the
European Union (EU), set by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

B. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT-
ING POLICIES The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, ex-
cept for securities and derivative financial instruments, which
are measured at their fair values.

a. CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES The balance
sheet date for all consolidated companies is 31 March 2013
with the following exceptions: Due to the legal situation in
China the reporting year of AT&S (China) Company Limited
and AT&S (Chongqing) Company Limited corresponds to the
calendar year (balance sheet date: 31 December 2012), its con-
solidation was performed on the basis of the interim financial
statements as of 31 March 2013.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 7 May 2013. The separate
financial statements of the Company, which are included in
the consolidation after adoption of the applicable accounting
standards, will be presented for approval to the Supervisory
Board on 3 June 2013. The separate financial statements of the
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Company can be modified by the Supervisory Board and - in
case of presentation to the Annual General Meeting — by the
Company's equity holders. This could also affect the presenta-
tion of the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP OF CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES In addition to
the Company itself, the consolidated financial statements
comprise the following fully consolidated subsidiaries as of
the date the Company had the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the subsidiary, regularly accompa-
nied by a voting interest of more than 50%:

= AT&S Asia Pacific Limited, Hong Kong (hereinafter referred
to as AT&S Asia Pacific), share 100%

= AT&S (China) Company Limited, China (hereinafter referred
to as AT&S China), 100% subsidiary of AT&S Asia Pacific

= AT&S (Chongqging) Company Limited, China (hereinafter
referred to as AT&S Chongging), 100% subsidiary of AT&S
Asia Pacific

= AT&S Japan K.K., Japan, 100% subsidiary of AT&S Asia
Pacific

= AT&S (Taiwan) Co., Ltd., Taiwan (hereinafter referred to as
AT&S Taiwan), 100% subsidiary of AT&S Asia Pacific

= ATE&S India Private Limited, India (hereinafter referred to as
AT&S India), share 100%

= AT&S Korea Co., Ltd., South Korea (hereinafter referred to as
AT&S Korea), share 98.76%

= AT&S Americas LLC, USA (hereinafter referred to as AT&S
Americas), share 100%

= AT&S Deutschland GmbH, Germany, share 100%

= C2C Technologie fir Leiterplatten GmbH in Liqu., Austria,
share 100%

= DCC - Development Circuits & Components GmbH in Liqu.,
Austria, share 100%

= AT & S Klagenfurt Leiterplatten GmbH, Austria, share 100%

In the financial year 2012/13 the Company has transferred the
100% share in the AT&S China to AT&S Asia Pacific. Further
the Company contributed the subsidiary AT&S Verwaltungs
GmbH & Co XKG to the Company by transferring the shares of
the existing shareholders. The two subsidiaries C2C Technolo-
gie fiir Leiterplatten GmbH in Liqu. and DCC - Development
Circuits & Components GmbH in Liqu. are in liquidation at the
balance sheet date. All three subsidiaries were non-operating
in the financial year 2012/13.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for busi-
ness combinations. The consideration transferred for the ac-
quisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets trans-
ferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the



acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrange-
ment. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Iden-
tifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabili-
ties assumed in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. For each business
combination, the acquirer shall measure any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets and, accordingly, recognise the full or
proportional goodwill. If the consideration transferred is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence
over a company, any retained interest in the entity is remeas-
ured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount rec-
ognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This means that a profit or loss previously rec-
ognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss.

METHODS OF CONSOLIDATION All significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated so
that the consolidated financial statements present the ac-
counting information of the Group as if it was one single com-

pany.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance
with IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”,
Intercompany accounts receivable and payable as well as ex-
penses and income are eliminated. Unless immaterial, inter-
company results in non-current assets and inventories are
eliminated. Uniform accounting and valuation methods are
applied to all consolidated subsidiaries.

The Group considers transactions with non-controlling inter-
ests as transactions with equity holders of the Group. When

non-controlling interests are acquired, the difference between
the acquisition costs and the attributable share of net assets
acquired in the subsidiary is deducted from equity. Gains or
losses on the sale of non-controlling interests are also recog-
nised in equity.

b. SEGMENT REPORTING An operating segment is a
component of an entity that engages in business activities and
whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the entity's
chief operating decision maker. Business activities involve
earning revenues and incurring expenses, and these may also
relate to business transactions with other operating segments
of the entity. Separate financial information is available for
the individual operating segments. The chief operating deci-
sion maker of the Group is the Management Board of the Com-

pany.

In the financial year 2011/12 the Management Board — with the
Supervisory Board's approval — decided to improve the Group’s
organisational structure with the aim of adapting its opera-
tional processes even more effectively to its customers’ needs.
Three business units were created: Mobile Devices, Industrial
& Automotive and Advanced Packaging.

The business unit Mobile Devices is responsible for the pro-
duction of printed circuit boards for mobile end-user devices
such as smartphones, tablets, digital cameras and portable
media players. The printed circuit boards for these applica-
tions are largely produced in our Shanghai (AT&S China) facili-

ty.

The business unit Industrial & Automotive supplies automo-
tive component suppliers and customers in the industrial,
medical technology, aerospace and other sectors. Production
for this business segment takes place at our plants in India,
Korea and in all of our Austrian facilities.

The business unit Advanced Packaging specialises in new,
technologically highly advanced applications. A variety of
components are integrated directly into printed circuit boards
in order to enable further reductions in the size of end-user
devices while also enhancing the functionality. The new tech-
nology is useful in a wide range of applications. This business
unit is still under development and is therefore not yet shown
separately, but is included in “Others”.

Since the internal reporting was adjusted to suit that struc-
ture, the segment reporting format was changed accordingly.
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Since no comparable information is available for the financial
year 2011/12, no comparative segment operating results for
that year are shown.

c. FOREIGN CURRENCIES The Group's presentation
currency is the Euro (EUR). The functional currency of the
foreign subsidiaries is the respective local currency.

FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES with the exception of equity
positions (historical exchange rate), the balance sheets of
AT&S India, AT&S China, AT&S Asia Pacific, AT&S Japan K.X.,
AT&S Korea, AT&S Americas, AT&S Chongqing and AT&S Tai-
wan are translated at the exchange rates on the balance sheet
date. The income statements are translated at the average
exchange rates of the financial year. Translation adjustments
are recognised in equity and not taken through profit or loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS In the financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities foreign currency
items are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the
day of the transaction. Monetary items are translated at the
respective exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date; non-
monetary items which were recognised according to the histor-
ical cost principle are carried at the rate of their initial recog-
nition. Translation adjustments from monetary items, with the
exception of “available-for-sale financial assets”, are recog-
nised in profit or loss. Translation differences from “available-
for-sale financial assets” are recognised directly in equity and
not in profit or loss.

d. REVENUE RECOGNITION Revenues comprise the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities for the grant of li-
censes, commercialization rights or license options, and for
services performed in collaboration with, or on behalf of, li-
censees or partners, as well as grants from governmental and
non-governmental organizations designated to remunerate
approved scientific research activities. Revenues are recog-
nised net of VAT, discounts and price reductions, and after
elimination of intercompany sales. Revenues are realised as
follows:

REVENUES FROM PRODUCT SALES Revenues from
product sales are recognised when significant risks and re-
wards associated with the goods sold are transferred to the
buyer. This is usually the case when the ownership is trans-
ferred.

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME Interest income is
recognised on a pro rata temporis basis, taking into account

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013

the effective interest rate of the asset. Dividend income from
financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

e. INCOME TAXES The income tax burden is based on

the profit before income tax and accounts for deferred taxes.

The Group provides for deferred taxes using the liability
method on temporary differences arising between the tax ba-
ses of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substan-
tially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Temporary differences arise from the measurement of specific
assets and liabilities, as well as tax loss carryforwards and
amortisation of goodwill.

Deferred taxes on not yet realised profits/losses of available-
for-sale financial assets and on not yet realised profits/losses
from hedging instruments for cash flow hedges that are recog-
nised in equity are also recognised in equity.

In accordance with IFRS, deferred tax assets on loss carryfor-
wards have to be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that they will be utilised against future taxable profits.

Deferred taxes arising on temporary differences relating to
participating interests in subsidiaries are recognised unless
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

f. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Items
of property, plant and equipment are measured at historical
cost. Expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition and
subsequent expenditure are capitalised, repairs and mainte-
nance costs, however, are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, con-
struction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as
part of the acquisition or production costs of this asset. In
these consolidated financial statements, no such borrowing
costs have been capitalised.

From the time of their availability for use, the assets are de-
preciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful
lives. Depreciation is charged on a pro rata temporis basis.
Land is not subject to depreciation.



The depreciation method is uniform for the Group and based
on the following useful lives:

Plants and buildings 10-50 years
Machinery and technical equipment 4-15 years
Tools, fixtures, furniture and

office equipment 3-15 years

Depreciation periods and methods are reviewed annually at
the end of the financial year.

Expected costs for dismantling and removing assets are capi-
talised as part of acquisition costs and accounted for by a
provision, provided that there is a legal or factual obligation
against third parties and that a reasonable estimate can be
made.

In accordance with IAS 17 “Leases”, leased assets for which the
Group bears substantially all the risks and rewards of owner-
ship and which in economic terms constitute asset purchases
with long-term financing are capitalised at their fair value or
the lower present value of the minimum lease payments. De-
preciation is effected over the useful life of the asset. If at the
beginning of the lease it is not sufficiently certain that the title
will pass to the lessee, the leased asset will be depreciated
over the shorter of the two periods, the lease term or useful
life. Financial obligations resulting from future lease pay-
ments are discounted and carried as liability. Current lease
payments are split into repayment and financing costs.

Leased assets under all other lease agreements are classified
as operating leases and attributed to the lessor. Lease pay-
ments are recognised as an expense.

Profits or losses resulting from the closure or retirement of
non-current assets, which arise from the difference between
the recoverable and the carrying amounts, are recognised in
profit or loss.

g. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PATENTS, TRADEMARKS AND LICENSES Expendi-
tures on acquired patents, trademarks and licenses are capital-
ised at cost, including incidental acquisition expenses, and
amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, gen-
erally between 2 and 10 years. Amortisation terms and meth-
ods are reviewed annually at the end of the financial year.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS Research

costs are expensed as incurred and charged to cost of sales.

Development expenditure is also expensed as incurred. An
intangible asset arising from development shall be recognised
if, and only if, an entity can demonstrate all of the following:

= The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale.

= Its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it.

= Its ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

= How the intangible asset will generate probable future eco-
nomic benefits is verifiable.

= The availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset.

= Its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

No capitalised development costs have been considered in
these consolidated financial statements.

h. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND REVERSALS
OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE AS-
SETS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR
SALE The Group regularly reviews the carrying amounts of
its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for
possible impairment. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
below its carrying amount, an impairment loss amounting to
the difference is recognised. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. The value in use corresponds to the estimated future cash
flows expected from the continued use of the asset and its
disposal at the end of its useful life.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. If events during
the financial year or changes in circumstances indicate that
goodwill might be impaired, an impairment test will be carried
out immediately. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale and meas-
ured at the lower of their carrying amounts or fair values less
costs to sell, if their carrying amount will be largely recovered
by sale rather than by continuing use in the business.

If the reason for the impairment recognised in the past no

longer exists, with the exception of goodwill, a reversal of
impairment up to amortised cost is made.
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i. INVENTORIES Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimat-
ed selling price in the ordinary course of business, less varia-
ble costs necessary to make the sale. Cost is determined by the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads, but excludes
interest expense.

j- TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Receiva-
bles are reported at nominal values, less any allowances for
doubtful accounts. Foreign currency receivables are translated
at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Risk
management provides for all recognisable credit and country-
specific risks.

k. FINANCIAL ASSETS The purchase or sale of finan-
cial assets shall be recognised and derecognised, as applicable,
using trade date accounting or settlement date accounting. The
fair values recognised in the statement of financial position
generally correspond to market prices of financial assets. Ex-
cept for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
they are recognised initially including transaction costs.

Financial assets are divided into categories explained below.
The classification depends on the respective purpose of the
financial asset and is reviewed annually.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS Financial instruments acquired primarily
for the purpose of earning a profit from short-term fluctua-
tions of prices or trader margins are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. At the time of their
acquisition they are stated at cost, excluding transaction costs,
in subsequent periods at their respective fair values. Realised
and unrealised gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
in “Finance costs - net”. This relates primarily to securities
held for trading. Derivative financial instruments also fall into
this category, unless hedge accounting is applied (refer to l.
Derivative financial instruments).

SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY Securities held to
maturity are recognised at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Any impairment is recognised in profit or
loss.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES Loans and receivables are

non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. In the
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statement of financial position the respective assets are recog-
nised under the item “Trade and other receivables”.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS Availa-
ble-for-sale financial assets relate to securities available-for-
sale. Securities available-for-sale are instruments which man-
agement intends to sell as a reaction to or due to expected
liquidity requirements or expected changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or share prices. Their classification as non-

current or current assets depends on the expected time to be
held.

At the time of acquisition they are stated at cost, including
transaction costs, in subsequent periods at their respective
fair values. Unrealised gains and losses, net of tax, are recog-
nised in other comprehensive income and not taken through
profit or loss until they are sold or considered as impaired.

Interest income and dividends from available-for-sale securi-
ties are recognised in profit or loss under “Finance costs - net”.

When a security available-for-sale is sold, the accumulated
unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is included in
profit or loss in “Finance costs - net” in the reporting period.

When an available-for-sale security is considered impaired,
the accumulated unrealised loss recognised in equity is recog-
nised in profit or loss in “Finance costs - net”. An asset is im-
paired, if there are indications that the fair value is below its
carrying amount. In particular, this is the case if the decrease
in fair value is of such extent that the acquisition cost is un-
likely to be recovered in the foreseeable future. Recoverability
is reviewed annually at the balance sheet date.

Furthermore, those financial assets are recognised under
available-for-sale financial assets that have not been allocated
to any of the other categories described. If the current fair
value for non-listed equity instruments cannot be determined
reliably, these financial assets will be measured at cost. Im-
pairment losses, if any, are recognised in profit or loss, and the
respective impairment losses shall not be reversed.

1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS The
Group enters into derivative financial instruments to hedge
against foreign currency fluctuations related to transactions in
foreign currencies - in particular the US dollar. These instru-
ments mainly include forward contracts, foreign currency
options and foreign exchange swap contracts and are entered
into in order to protect the Group against exchange rate fluc-



tuations — by fixing future exchange rates for foreign currency
assets and liabilities.

Further the Group manages its interest rate risk by using in-
terest rate swaps.

Value fluctuations of the hedged positions are compensated by
corresponding value fluctuations of the derivatives. The Group
does not hold any financial instruments for speculative pur-
poses.

The first-time recognition at the conclusion of the contract and
the subsequent measurement of derivative financial instru-
ments is made at their fair values. “Hedge accounting” in ac-
cordance with IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, according to which changes in fair values of
hedging instruments are recognised in equity, is applied when
there is an effective hedging relationship pursuant to IAS 39
for hedging instruments for cash flow hedges. The assessment
of whether the derivative financial instruments used in the
hedging relationship are highly effective in offsetting the
changes in cash flows of the hedged item is documented at the
inception of the hedging relationship and on an ongoing basis.
When “Hedge accounting” in equity is not applicable, unreal-
ised gains and losses from derivative financial instruments are
recognised in profit or loss in “Finance costs — net”.

m. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash, time deposits, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of up to three months or less (com-
mercial papers and money market funds).

n. NON-CONTROLLING

controlling interests are as follows:

INTERESTS

Non-

= 1.24% relates to the equity interest in AT&S Korea

The profit for the year and other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent company and the non-
controlling interests. The allocation to the non-controlling
interests is made even if this results in a negative balance of
the non-controlling interests.

0. PROVISIONS Provisions are recognised if the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation to third parties, which is
based on past events, if it is probable that an outflow of re-
sources will be required to settle this obligation and if the
amount can be estimated reliably. The provisions are remeas-
ured at each balance sheet date and adjusted accordingly.

Non-current provisions are reported at the discounted amount
to be paid at each balance sheet date, if the interest effect
resulting from the discounting is material.

P. PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS The Group
operates various defined contribution and defined benefit
pension schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a special purpose entity
(fund). These contributions are charged to staff costs. No pro-
vision has to be set up, as there are no additional obligations
beyond the fixed amounts.

For individual members of the Management Board and certain
executive employees the Group has a defined benefit plan,
under which the pension obligations are valued by qualified
and independent actuaries at each balance sheet date. The
Group's obligation is to fulfil the benefits committed to cur-
rent and former members of the Management Board and execu-
tive employees as well as their dependents. The pension obli-
gation calculated according to the projected unit credit method
is reduced by the plan assets of the fund in case of a funded
pension scheme. The present value of the pension liability is
determined on the basis of years of service, expected compen-
sations and pension adjustments.

To the extent that the plan assets do not cover the obligation,
the net liability is accrued under retirement provisions. If the
net assets exceed the pension obligation, the exceeding amount
is capitalised under “Overfunded retirement benefits”.

Staff costs reported in the respective financial year are based
on expected values and include the acquired claims, the inter-
est expense, the actuarial gains or losses using the corridor
method as well as the investment results of the assets provid-
ed for coverage.

At each balance sheet date, due to the change in actuarial as-
sumptions (turnover rate, current market interest rate of blue
chip fixed-income corporate bonds, compensation level and
actual returns on plan assets) adjustments in value result,
referred to as actuarial gains or losses. These actuarial results
are reported in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
using the corridor method. Actuarial gains or losses exceeding
the corridor (the higher of 10% of the present value of the obli-
gation or the fair value of plan assets) are charged or credited
to income over the expected average remaining working lives
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of the employees covered by the plan; those not exceeding the
corridor are not recognised.

SEVERANCE PAYMENTS Provisions for severance pay-
ments have to be paid primarily on termination of employment
by the employer or on the retirement of an employee according
to labour regulations. At each balance sheet date the liabilities
are remeasured by qualified and independent actuaries.

For employees who joined Austrian companies up to and in-
cluding 2002 direct obligations of the Company exist, which
account for the major part of the Group's severance payment
obligations. In accordance with IAS 19 these liabilities are
calculated using the projected unit credit method, taking into
consideration the corridor method and represent severance
payment obligations not covered by plan assets. Actuarial
gains or losses exceeding the corridor are recognised in profit
or loss over the expected average remaining working lives of
the employees covered by the plan. For employees who joined
as of 1 January 2003 the severance payment obligation is ful-
filled by regular contributions to a staff provision fund (“Mi-
tarbeitervorsorgekasse”). These contributions are included in
staff costs. The Company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.

For employees of the company in India obligations for sever-
ance payments are covered by life insurances. Furthermore,
severance payment obligations exist for employees in South
Korea and China.

Staff costs recognised in the respective financial year are
based on expected values and include entitlements acquired,
interest expense and the actuarial results using the corridor
method.

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other employee benefits
include provisions for anniversary bonuses and relate to em-
ployees in Austria and China.

Anniversary bonuses are special lump-sum payments stipulat-
ed in the Collective Agreement which are dependent on com-
pensation and years of service. Eligibility is determined by a
certain uninterrupted number of service years. The respective
liability is calculated in accordance with the projected unit
credit method based on the same parameters used for sever-
ance payments, however, without taking into consideration the
corridor method.

Staff costs recognised in the respective financial year include
entitlements acquired, interest expense and the actuarial re-
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sults. At each balance sheet date the liabilities are remeasured
by qualified and independent actuaries.

q. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS The Group has issued
stock option plans that are settled either in cash or in treasury
shares, with the choice of settlement being with the entitled
employees. These stock option plans are accounted for in ac-
cordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”.

The share-based payments are structured in a way that both
settlement alternatives have the same fair value. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. Liabilities arising
from share-based payment transactions are recognised initial-
ly and at each balance sheet date until settlement at fair value
using an option price model and are recognised in profit or
loss. Reference is made to Note 15 “Trade and other payables”.

r. LIABILITIES At their initial recognition liabilities are
measured at fair value less transaction cost and in subsequent
periods at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign currency liabilities are translated at the mid-
dle exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date.

s. GOVERNMENT GRANTS Grants from the govern-
ment are recognised at their fair value where there is a reason-
able assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recog-
nised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Govern-
ment grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in liabilities as deferred government grants; they are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets. Government grants relat-
ing to costs and property, plant and equipment are recognised
in the profit or loss in the other operating result.

t. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, CONTINGENT
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER FINANCIAL OB-
LIGATIONS cContingent liabilities are not recognised in the
statement of finacial position, but disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. They are not disclosed, if an outflow of
resources with economic benefit is unlikely.

A contingent receivable is not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements, but disclosed, if the inflow of an econom-
ic benefit is likely.



u. NEW ACCOUNTING REGULATIONS There are
no IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first
time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2012
that would be expected to have a material impact on the con-
solidated financial statements.

The IASB issued additional standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations that are not yet mandatory in
the financial year 2012/13. Some of them have already been
adopted by the European Union. The following standards and
interpretations have already been published by the time these
consolidated financial statements were prepared and are not
yet mandatory; they have not been adopted early in the prepa-
ration of these consolidated financial statements:

Standard/Interpretation Effective
(Content of the regulation) date EU? Expected impacts

IFRS9  Financial instruments 1/1/2015 No Changes in fair values of financial instru-
(amends the classification and measurement of ments currently classified as “available-for-
financial instruments) sale” by the Group will (in part) be recognised

in profit or loss in the future.

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1/1/2014 Yes  The new standard is not expected to have an
(amends the group of consolidated entities) impact on the consolidated financial state-

ments.

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1/1/2014 Yes  The new standard is not expected to have an
(amends the accounting of joint arrangements, such impact on the consolidated financial state-
as e.g. joint ventures) ments.

IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities 1/1/2014 Yes  The impact on the consolidated financial
(amends the disclosure requirements on subsidiar- statements is currently being assessed by the
ies, joint ventures and associates) Group.

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1/1/2013 Yes The new standard is not expected to have an
(amends the determination of the fair value) impact on the consolidated financial state-

ments.

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1/7/2012 Yes  The impact on the consolidated financial
(amends the presentation of other comprehensive statements is currently being assessed by the
Iincome) Group.

IAS 19 Employee benefits 1/1/2013 Yes The corridor method currently used by the

(amends the recognition of actuarial effects and the
disclosures)

Group will no longer be applicable; the actuar-
ial effects not yet realised will then be recog-
nised in full in liabilities. Additional effects
are currently being assessed.

Y The Group intends to apply the new regulations for the first time in the fiscal year beginning subsequent to the effective date.

% status of adoption by the EU.

C. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS The Group uses estimates and
assumptions to determine the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as the disclosure of
commitments and contingent assets and liabilities. All esti-
mates and assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and
are based on past experiences and additional factors, includ-
ing expectations regarding future events that seem reasonable
under given circumstances. In the future actual results may
differ from these estimates. Management believes that the
estimates are reasonable.

PROJECTED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS The present value
of non-current employee benefits depends on various factors
that are based on actuarial assumptions (refer to I.B.p. “Provi-
sions for employee benefits”).
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On 31 March 2013 a reduction of the discount rate (actuarial
parameter) for the Austrian companies by 0.5% from 3.75% to
3.25% would affect the projected retirement and severance
payment obligations as follows:

Retirement Severance
(in EUR 1,000) benefits payments
Increase present
value of obligation 1.082 974

An increase in the interest rate (actuarial parameter) for the
Austrian companies by 0.5% from 3.75% to 4.25% would have
the following effects on the present value of retirement and
severance payment obligations at 31 March 2013:

Retirement Severance
(in EUR 1,000) benefits payments
Reduction present
value of obligation 960 890

Reference is made to Note 17 “Provisions for employee bene-
fits".

MEASUREMENT OF DEFERRED TAXES AND INCO-
ME TAX LIABILITIES Deferred tax assets and liabilities
shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. A future
change in tax rates would also have an impact on the deferred
tax assets recognised at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets in the amount of EUR 39.3 million were not
recognised for tax loss carry-forwards in the Group of
EUR 154.9 million. The major part of these non-capitalised tax
loss carryforwards may be carried forward for an unlimited
period of time. If they were subsequently expected to be real-
ised, these deferred tax assets and a related tax income would
have to be recognised. Reference is made to Note 7 “Income
taxes”.

Moreover, a different interpretation of tax laws by fiscal au-
thorities could also lead to a change in income tax liabilities.

OTHER ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS Further
estimates relate to impairments of non-current assets and
provisions, as well as the measurement of derivative financial
instruments, allowances for doubtful accounts and measure-
ments of inventory. Reference is particularly made to Note 4
“Other operating result”, Note 8 “Property, plant and equip-
ment” and Note 18 “Other provisions”.
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Il. Risk Report

In the following, the financial risks, which comprise of the
financing risk, the liquidity risk, the credit risk, the foreign
exchange risk and the tax risk, are addressed. In the manage-
ment report for the Group, further risk categories and the
related processes and measures are outlined.

Risk management of financial risks is carried out by a central
treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved
by the Management Board. Responsibilities, authorisations
and limits are governed by internal guidelines. Group Treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close coop-
eration with the Group’s operating units.

FINANCING RISK The financing risk relates to secur-

ing the long-term funding of the Group and to fluctuations in
the value of financial instruments.

On the asset side, the Group is exposed to low interest rate
risks with regard to its securities portfolio. Other liquid funds
are mainly invested short-term, and the entire securities port-
folio is available for sale. Reference is made to Note 13 “Finan-
cial assets” and Note 14 “Cash and cash equivalents”.

On the liabilities side, 84% (in 2011/12 85%) of the borrowings
are subject to fixed interest rates, taking into account interest
rate hedging instruments, and most of the remaining 16% vari-
able interest rate loans (in 2011/12 15%) have maturities be-
tween one and three years. Reference is made to Note 16 “Fi-
nancial liabilities”.

LIQUIDITY RISK 1n the Group, liquidity risk refers to
the circumstance of insolvency. Therefore, sufficient liquidity
shall be available at all times to be able to meet the current
payment obligations on time.

As of 31 March 2013 the Group has liquidity reserves in the
amount of EUR 272.1 million (at 31 March 2012 EUR 304.4
million), EUR 81 million (at 31 March 2012 EUR 30.6 million) of
which is accounted for by cash (equivalents) and securities
held for trading and available-for-sale securities, and
EUR 191.1 million (at 31 March 2012 EUR 273.8 million) by
available unused credit facilities. Thus, the liquidity reserves
decreased by EUR 32.3 million year-on-year, with EUR 91.8
million (at 31 March 2012 EUR 31.5 million) included in the
current reserves, which relate to AT&S China and are subject
to specific liquidity requirements.

The Company is authorised, subject to the approval of the
Supervisory Board, to issue up to 12,950,000 new shares from
authorised capital, as well as convertible bonds in a total nom-
inal amount of up to EUR 100 million. Furthermore, the option

exists, subject to approval by the supervisory board, to sell
treasury shares (at the balance sheet date the Group holds
2,577,412 treasury shares). With respect to a detailed explana-
tion of the options regarding capital measures, reference is
made to Note 22 “Share capital”.

The Group has a clearly positive operating cash flow. The net
cash flow from operating activities for the financial year
2012/13 amounts to EUR 71.7 million (in 2011/12 EUR 87.2
million). Thus, the investments made in the reporting year
could be financed from the operating cash flow.

CREDIT RISK 1n the Group, credit risk refers to the po-
tential payment default by customers. The Group always man-
aged to establish strong partnerships with its largest custom-
ers, most of which operate in the mobile devices segment,
which is characterised by high volumes demanded. During the
financial year ended 31 March 2013, 53% of the Group's total
revenue was attributable to its five largest customers with
individual absolute shares ranging from 5% to 23%.

The share in trade receivables outstanding at the balance sheet
date roughly corresponds to the shares in revenue of the indi-
vidual customers. The credit risk is kept at a minimum, on the
one hand, by regular billing of delivered products and, on the
other hand, by credit assessments and credit insurances. In
case of identifiable financial difficulties, deliveries would only
be made against advance payment.

Reference is made to the detailed disclosures in Note 12 “Trade
and other receivables”.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK Transaction, transla-
tion and economic risk are constantly monitored to guard
against currency risk. In the Group transaction risks are ini-
tially managed by closing positions (netting), in general deriv-
ative financial instruments are used to hedge open positions.

Due to its Asian subsidiaries the Group is exposed to local
currency risks. As a result of legal restrictions and the illiquid-
ity of the currencies in question, local hedging transaction are
possible only to a limited extent. Wherever required, the risk is
transferred to Europe and hedged there. Moreover, the Group
attempts to bring about a natural hedge of receivables and
payables.

Sensitivity analyses are performed to assess the foreign cur-
rency risk, with — all else being equal - the effects of percent-
age changes of foreign exchange rates being simulated against
each other.
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TAX RISK The Company operates globally and thus is
subject to different tax systems. As long as the prerequisites
for the establishment of a provision or a liability are not met,
tax risks, i.e. national and international ones, are subsumed
under financial risks and monitored accordingly. The main tax
risks currently relate to the plants in India and China.

FINANCIAL MARKET RISKS Detailed information
on market risks and derivative financial instruments is con-
tained in Note I.B.l. “Summary of significant accounting poli-
cies: Derivative financial instruments” and in Note 19 “Deriva-
tive financial instruments”. The Group uses derivative finan-
cial instruments, such as forward contracts, options and
swaps, exclusively for hedging purposes.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL MARKET RISKS BY
SENSITIVITY ANALYSES The Group applies sensitivity
analyses to quantify the interest rate and currency risks. In so-
called GAP analyses the potential change in profit/loss result-
ing from a 1% change in price (currency rate or interest rate)
with regard to the foreign currency or interest net position is
determined. Correlations between different risk elements are
not accounted for in these analyses. The impact on profit/loss
is determined taking into account income tax effects on the
profit for the year after tax.

If the interest rates at the balance sheet date had been 100
basis points higher (or lower, respectively), based on the fi-
nancing structure at the balance sheet date the annual result
of the Group would have been EUR 0.5 million lower (or higher,
respectively) (in 2011/12 EUR 0.4 million), provided all other
variables had remained constant. This would have mainly been
due to higher (or lower, respectively) interest expenses for
variable interest financial liabilities. Further components of
equity would not be directly affected through this sensitivity
analysis. The result of this interest rate sensitivity analysis is
based on the assumption that the interest rates would deviate
during an entire financial year by 100 basis points and the new
interest rates would have to be applied to the amount of equity
and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

A change in the euro exchange rate of 1% against all other
currencies used in the Group would have had an impact on the
result in the amount of EURO0.2million (in 2011/12
EUR 0.1 million). This effect would have been due to the meas-
urement of trade receivables and payables as well as other
balance sheet items to be measured through profit or loss. This
statement is based on the assumption that there were no other
changes.
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All else being equal, a change in the US Dollar of 1% against
the euro would have had an impact on the result in the amount
of EUR 0.8 million (in 2011/12 EUR 0.8 million). This would
have been due, on the one hand, to the measurement of trade
receivables and payables denominated in US Dollar as well as
financial balances and derivative financial instruments meas-
ured at fair value.

Furthermore, reference is made to the detailed disclosures in
Note 12 “Trade and other receivables”.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT The objectives of
the Group with respect to capital management, on the one
hand, include securing the going concern in order to be able to
provide the equity holders with dividends and the other stake-
holders with appropriate services, and on the other hand,
maintaining an appropriate capital structure in order to opti-
mise capital costs. Therefore, the amount of the dividend pay-
ments is adjusted to the respective requirements, capital is
repaid to equity owners (cancellation of treasury shares), new
shares are issued or the portfolio of other assets is changed.

As is customary in the industry, the Group monitors its capital
based on net gearing, calculated from the ratio of net financial
liabilities to equity. Net financial liabilities are calculated
from financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents as
well as financial assets. The individual amounts for calculat-
ing the net financial liabilities and equity have to be taken
directly from the consolidated balance sheet.

Unchanged on the prior year, the Group basically pursues the
strategy to keep the gearing ratio under 80% in the medium
and long-term, with short-term excesses being accepted. Net
gearing as of 31 March 2013 amounted to 69.6% (at 31 March
2012 85.7%) and is thus well below the prior year level.



lll. Segment Reporting

The segment information has been adapted according to the Management Approach Concept to the changed organisational struc-
ture, which is in use for the internal group reporting and is presented in the following (refer to I.B.b. “Segment reporting”).

The primary reportable segments consist of the business units Mobile Devices, Industrial & Automotive and Advanced Packaging.
The business unit Advanced Packaging is being established and has not yet reached the quantitative threshold for a separate
reporting and is displayed in “Others”. The group management as well as the financial activities are not divided into the men-
tioned segments and are also included in “Others”.

The key factor for the operative management is the operating result. The reconciliation to consolidated amounts also includes the
corresponding consolidation.

Transfers and transactions between the segments are executed at arm’s length, as with independent third parties. The segment
reporting is prepared in accordance with the principles set out in I.B. “Summary of significant accounting policies”.

FINANCIAL YEAR 2012/13:

Industrial & Elimination/

(in EUR 1,000) Mobile Devices Automotive Others Consolidation Group
Segment revenues 334,650 243,745 2,079 (38,801) 541,673

Intersegment revenues (37,364) (1,147) (290) 38,801 -
Revenue from external customers 297,286 242,598 1,789 - 541,673
Operating result 21,175 11,967 (2,393) 145 30,894
Finance costs - net (14,827)
Profit before tax 16,067
Income taxes (1,965)
Profit for the year 14,102
Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 383,203 49,095 7,417 - 439,715
Investments 29,667 4,246 1,544 - 35,457
Depreciation/amortisation 60,833 7,949 2,209 - 70,991

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013

65



FINANCIAL YEAR 2011/12:

Industrial & Elimination/

(in EUR 1,000) Mobile Devices Automotive Others Consolidation Group
Segment revenues 320,392 215,714 1,559 (23,485) 514,180

Intersegment revenues (23,365) - (120) 23,485 -
Revenue from external customers ! 297,027 215,714 1,439 - 514,180
Operating result ? - - - - 42,139
Finance costs - net (9,887)
Profit before tax 32,252
Income taxes (5,738)
Profit for the year 26,514
Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 395,201 53,825 7,891 - 456,917
Investments 88,542 11,154 1,773 - 101,469
Depreciation/amortisation 51,334 8,089 1,794 - 61,217

INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION a presentation of revenues is given based on ship-to-region. Non-

current assets (property, plant and equipment and intangible assets) are presented by the domicile of the Company and the sub-

sidiaries.
Revenues broken down by customer region : Non-current assets broken down by domicile:
Financial year 31 March

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12 (in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Austria 19,884 20,915 Austria 26,056 27,576
Germany 125,589 130,474 China 383,157 395,135
Hungary 21,131 38,808 Others 30,502 34,206
Other European countries 49,669 38,679 439,715 456,917
Asia 255,046 206,612
Canada, USA, Mexico 63,262 72,882
Others 7,092 5,810

541,673 514,180

U As a result of a change in the method of foreign currency translation, there are minor differences in the disclosure of segment revenues compared to the Annual Report 2011/12.
? The operating result for the new segments cannot be calculated retrospectively for the financial year 2011/12, and an alternative presentation of current operating results on the
basis of the old segments is not available for financial year 2012/13. For this reason, no comparative figures are disclosed for financial year 2011/12, and there is no alternative

presentation of the operating result for financial year 2012/13.
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IV. Notes to the Consolidated Statement

of Profit or Loss

1. REVENUE
Financial year
(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Main revenue 541,363 513,902
Incidental revenue 310 278
541,673 514,180

2. TYPES OF EXPENSES The expense types of cost

of sales, distribution costs and general and administrative
costs are as follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Cost of materials 205,180 196,535
Staff costs 110,275 101,968
Depreciation/amortisation 70,970 61,206
Purchased services incl. leased personnel 34,019 30,490
Energy 32,398 30,505
Maintenance (incl. spare parts) 29,879 30,280
Transportation costs 10,372 9,598
Rental and leasing expenses 5,214 5,067
Change in inventories 1,444 (4,518)
Other 12,303 16,773

512,054 477,904

In the financial years 2012/13 and 2011/12, the item “other”
mainly relates to travel expenses, insurance expenses, IT ser-
vice costs as well as legal and consulting fees.

3. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
The Group incurred research and development costs in the
amount of TEUR 24,684 and TEUR 32,895 in the financial years
2012/13 and 2011/12, respectively. The above amounts repre-
sent only costs which can be directly allocated and which are
recognised as expenses in cost of sales.

4. OTHER OPERATING RESULT

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13  2011/12

Income from the reversal of

government grants 626 151

Government grants for expenses 1,537 4,228

Expenses from

foreign exchange differences (489) (595)

Gains/(losses) from the sale of

non-current assets (777) 726

Start-up losses (890) (1,770)

Miscellaneous other income 1,268 3,123
1,275 5,863

In the financial years 2012/13 and 2011/12, government grants
for expenses mainly relate to export refunds as well as re-
search and development awards. In both financial years the
start-up losses relate to the construction of the plant in
Chongging, China. As in the financial year 2011/12, the item
“miscellaneous other income” mainly relates to subsequent
incoming receivables and the derecognition of other liabilities
written off.

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013

67



5. NON-RECURRING ITEMS In the past and pre-

vious financial year, no non-recurring costs or income were
incurred.

6. FINANCE COSTS - NET

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13  2011/12
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-

for-sale financial assets 5 90
Other interest income 489 127
Gains from the sale of cash equivalents 3 -
Gains from the sale of available-for-sale

financial assets 30 -
Realised losses from derivative financial

instruments, net - (32)
Gains from the measurement of derivative

financial instruments at fair value, net — 35
Foreign exchange gains, net - 2,470
Finance income 527 2,690

Interest expense on bank borrowings and

bonds (13,860) (12,197)
Realised losses from derivative financial
instruments, net (125) -

Losses from the sale of cash equivalents and
financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss - (154)
Foreign exchange losses, net (1,037) -
Other financial expenses (332) (226)
Finance costs (15,354)  (12,577)
Finance costs - net (14,827) (9,887)
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7. INCOME TAXES The income taxes are broken down

as follows:

Financial year
(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Current income taxes 5,185 9,533
Deferred taxes (3,220) (3,795)
Total tax expense 1,965 5,738

The difference between the Group's actual tax expense and the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Austrian statu-
tory tax rate is as follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13  2011/12

Expected tax expense at standard Austrian

tax rate 4,017 8,063
Effect of different tax rates in foreign coun-

tries (1,700) (4,105)
Non-creditable foreign withholding taxes 201 2,000
Effect of change in previously unrecognised

tax losses and temporary differences (1,966) 3,862

Effect of the change in tax rate (922) (3,023)
Effect of permanent differences 2,323 (1,093)
Effect of taxes from prior periods 13 23

Other tax effects, net (1) 11

Total tax expense 1,965 5,738

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following
items and loss carryforwards:

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carryforwards including taxable
goodwill 6,201 5,366
Non-current assets 13,357 10,591
Inventories 1,946 1,700
Trade and other receivables 680 31
Provisions for employee benefits 880 990
Temporary differences arising from shares
in subsidiaries 629 979
Losses not yet realised from hedging in-
struments for cash flow hedges, recognised
in equity 30 52
Others 1,292 544
Deferred tax assets 25,015 20,253
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current assets (2,765) (2,610)
Provisions for employee benefits (135) (115)
Other provisions (115) (84)
Trade payables (659) (455)
Temporary differences arising from shares
in subsidiaries (6,300) (5,670)

Unrealised gains from securities available-

for-sale, recognised in equity (1) (10)
Losses not yet realised from hedging in-

struments for cash flow hedges, recognised

in equity - (1)
Others (103) (190)
Deferred tax liabilities (10,078) (9,135)
Deferred tax assets, net 14,937 11,118
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted if there is an
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they are levied by the same taxation
authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:
- non-current 16,141 13,205
- current 5,182 3,614

21,323 16,819

Deferred tax liabilities:
- non-current - -
- current (6,386) (5,701)

(6,386) (5,701)
Deferred tax assets, net 14,937 11,118

At 31 March 2013 the Group has tax loss carryforwards and
tax-deductible amortisation of goodwill amounting to a total
of TEUR 174,218 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 181,567), which for
the most part can be carried forward for an unlimited period
of time. For loss carryforwards amounting to TEUR 154,895 (at
31 March 2012 TEUR 164,701), included in this figure, deferred
tax assets in the amount of TEUR 39,315 (at 31 March 2012
TEUR 41,667) were not recognised since it is unlikely that they
could be realised in the foreseeable future. Of this amount,
deferred tax assets in the amount of TEUR 1,052 (at
31 March 2012 TEUR 1,431) account for the measurement of
treasury shares. Thus tax assets would have to be recognised
directly in the Group's equity.

Deferred taxes (net) changed as follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13  2011/12
Carrying amount at the beginning of the

financial year 11,118 6,498
Currency translation differences 608 772
Income recognised in profit or loss 3,220 3,795
Income taxes recognised in equity (9) 53
Carrying amount at the end of the finan-

cial year 14,937 11,118
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Income taxes in connection with the components of other comprehensive income are as follows:

Financial year

2012/13 2011/12

Income/ Tax Income/ Income/ Tax Income/

(expense) income/ (expense) (expense) income/ (expense)
(in EUR 1,000) before taxes (expense) after taxes  before taxes (expense) after taxes
Currency translation differences 22,285 — 22,285 34,764 - 34,764
Gains/(losses) from the fair value measurement
of available-for-sale financial assets (41) 13 (28) (13) - (13)
Gains/(losses) on the measurement of hedging
instruments for cash flow hedges 90 (22) 68 (216) 54 (162)
Other comprehensive income 22,334 (9) 22,325 34,535 54 34,589
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V. Notes to the Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(in EUR 1,000)

Land, plants

Machinery and

Tools, fixtures,
furniture and

Prepayments and
construction

and buildings technical equipment office equipment in progress Total
Net carrying amount
31 March 2012 55,713 359,465 5,166 34,122 454,466
Exchange differences 2,326 15,253 45 1,713 19,337
Additions 107 16,313 1,121 17,554 35,095
Disposals (36) (926) (50) - (1,012)
Transfers - 18,544 - (18,544) -
Depreciation, current (3,698) (64,685) (1,740) - (70,123)
Net carrying amount
31 March 2013 54,412 343,964 4,542 34,845 437,763
At 31 March 2013
Gross carrying amount 79,484 837,580 22,081 34,845 973,990
Accumulated depreciation (25,072) (493,616) (17,539) — (536,227)
Net carrying amount 54,412 343,964 4,542 34,845 437,763

Tools, fixtures, Prepayments and

Land, plants Machinery and furniture and construction
(in EUR 1,000) and buildings technical equipment office equipment in progress Total
Net carrying amount
31 March 2011 55,620 291,256 4,638 33,996 385,510
Exchange differences 4,292 27,755 82 2,896 35,025
Additions 614 61,945 2,291 32,223 97,073
Disposals (2,194) (409) (98) - (2,701)
Transfers 784 34,175 34 (34,993) -
Depreciation, current (3,403) (55,257) (1,781) - (60,441)
Net carrying amount
31 March 2012 55,713 359,465 5,166 34,122 454,466
At 31 March 2012
Gross carrying amount 76,118 787,756 21,996 34,122 919,992
Accumulated depreciation (20,405) (428,291) (16,830) — (465,526)
Net carrying amount 55,713 359,465 5,166 34,122 454,466

The value of the land included in “Land, plants and buildings”
amounts to TEUR 1,576 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 1,509).

Depreciation of the current financial year is recognised in cost
of sales, distribution costs, and general and administrative

costs.

ENCUMBRANCES In connection with the provision of col-
lateral for various financing agreements, property, plant and
equipment in the amount of TEUR 1,684 (at 31 March 2012
TEUR 1,843) has been pledged as collateral. Reference is made

to Note 16 “Financial liabilities”.
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Industrial property and similar rights and assets,

(in EUR 1,000) and licenses in such rights and assets Goodwill Total

Net carrying amount

31 March 2012 2,451 — 2,451

Exchange differences 7 - 7

Additions 362 - 362

Amortisation, current (868) — (868)

Net carrying amount

31 March 2013 1,952 — 1,952

At 31 March 2013

Gross carrying amount 14,486 6,478 20,964

Accumulated amortisation (12,534) (6,478) (19,012)

Net carrying amount 1,952 - 1,952
Industrial property and similar rights and assets,

(in EUR 1,000) and licenses in such rights and assets Goodwill Total

Net carrying amount

31 March 2011 2,543 — 2,543

Exchange differences 114 - 114

Additions 570 - 570

Amortisation, current (776) — (776)

Net carrying amount

31 March 2012 2,451 — 2,451

At 31 March 2012

Gross carrying amount 14,420 6,136 20,556

Accumulated amortisation (11,969) (6,136) (18,105)

Net carrying amount 2,451 — 2,451

Amortisation of the current financial year is charged to cost of
sales, distribution costs and general and administrative costs.
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10. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Prepayments 6,011 5,847
Deposits made 3,646 2,883
Carrying amount 9,657 8,730

The prepayments relate to long-term rent prepayments for the
factory premises in China.

11. INVENTORIES

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Raw materials and supplies 25,769 26,818
Work in progress 16,282 16,555
Finished goods 20,366 21,536
Carrying amount 62,417 64,909

The balance of write-downs of inventories recognised as ex-
pense amounts to TEUR 9,806 as of 31 March 2013 (at 31
March 2012 TEUR 8,931).

In connection with various financing agreements, inventories

in the amount of TEUR 0 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 8) serve as
collateral. Reference is made to Note 16 “Financial liabilities”.
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12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES The

carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are as follows:

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Trade receivables 90,919 84,611
VAT receivables 11,521 16,676
Other receivables from authorities 3,728 6,049
Prepayments 3,187 2,699
Energy tax refunds 1,508 777
Deposits 420 356
Insurance reimbursements - 194
Other receivables 600 4,204
Impairments (81) (83)
111,802 115,483

At 31 March 2013 other receivables mainly include prepaid
expenses and at 31 March 2012 in addition receivables from
asset sales.

In connection with various financing agreements trade receiv-
ables amounting to TEUR 32,000 (at 31 March 2012
TEUR 40,000) serve as collateral. Reference is made to Note 16
“Financial liabilities”.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables with
consideration of impairments approximately correspond to
their respective fair values.

REMAINING MATURITIES OF RECEIVABLES All
receivables at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 have remain-
ing maturities of less than one year.

FACTORING At the balance sheet date 31 March 2013 re-
ceivables in the amount of TEURO (TEUR 8,551) had been
transferred to a bank under a non-recourse factoring arrange-
ment and derecognised.



DEVELOPMENT OF PAST DUE RECEIVABLES AND
IMPAIRMENTS OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

At 31 March 2013: Carrying thereof:
amount not impaired and
not past due or

thereof: not impaired and not insured and past due for the
following periods

insured between between
less than 3and 6 6 and 12 more than
(in EUR 1,000) 3 months months months 12 months
Trade receivables 90,919 89,784 1,004 50 — —
At 31 March 2012: Carrying thereof: thereof: not impaired and not insured and past due for the
amount not impaired and following periods
not past due or
insured between between
less than 3 and 6 6 and 12 more than
(in EUR 1,000) 3 months months months 12 months
Trade receivables 84,611 83,553 536 439 - -

There were no indications at the balance sheet date that not
impaired and overdue trade receivables would not be paid.

Impairments of trade receivables changed as follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Impairments at the beginning of

the financial year 83 89
Currency translation differences (2) (6)
Impairments at the end of

the financial year 81 83
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13. FINANCIAL ASSETS The carrying amounts of

the financial assets are as follows:

31 March thereof thereof
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 non-current current
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss 770 - 770
Available-for-sale finan-
cial assets 96 96 —
866 96 770
31 March thereof thereof
(in EUR 1,000) 2012 non-current current
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss 732 - 732
Available-for-sale finan-
cial assets 132 96 36
864 96 768

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Bonds 770 732

All bonds are denominated in euro.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Carrying amount at the beginning of the

financial year 132 156
Disposals (5) -
Unrealised gains/(losses) from the cur-

rent period, recognised in equity - (20)
Realised gains/(losses) from the current

period, removed from equity (30) -
Currency translation differences (1) (4)
Carrying amount at the end of the

financial year 96 132

All available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in euro.
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14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Bank balances and
cash on hand 80,225 29,729
Restricted cash 1 -
Carrying amount 80,226 29,729

At 31 March 2013 restricted cash relates to AT&S India.

The reported carrying amounts correspond to the respective
fair values.



15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Remaining maturity
Between

(in EUR 1,000) 31 March 2013 Less than 1 year 1 and 5 years More than 5 years
Trade payables 55.129 55.129 - -
Government grants 3.417 317 1.693 1.407
Liabilities to fiscal authorities and

other state authorities 1.520 1.520 - -
Liabilities to social security authorities 1.912 1.912 - -
Liabilities from unconsumed vacations 3.582 3.582 - -
Liabilities from stock options 180 119 61 -
Liabilities to employees 9.051 9.051 - -
Other liabilities 6.505 5.718 787 —
Carrying amount 81.296 77.348 2.541 1.407

Remaining maturity
Between

(in EUR 1,000) 31 March 2012 Less than 1 year 1 and 5 years More than 5 years
Trade payables 68.927 68.927 - -
Government grants 2.650 146 788 1.716
Liabilities to fiscal authorities and

other state authorities 1.997 1.997 - -
Liabilities to social security authorities 1.712 1.712 - -
Liabilities from unconsumed vacations 3.436 3.436 - -
Liabilities from stock options 421 73 348 -
Liabilities to employees 13.564 13.564 - -
Other liabilities 8.971 8.182 789 -
Carrying amount 101.678 98.037 1.925 1.716

The carrying amounts of the reported liabilities approximate
the respective fair values.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS Government grants mainly relate
to grants for land-use rights and property, plant and equip-
ment and are released to income according to the useful life of
the related property, plant and equipment.

Furthermore, the Group has received grants for project costs
for several research projects, which are recognised in income
on a pro rata basis according to the costs incurred and the
grant ratio, or, if necessary, the accrual amount is included in
the liabilities, respectively.

LIABILITIES FROM STOCK OPTIONS At the Superviso-
ry Board Meeting held on 8 November 2004 a stock option plan
(2005-2008) was approved, which allows the Company to grant

stock options to the Management Board and executive employ-
ees, which can be settled in cash or by issuing equity instru-
ments.

Each of these options entitles the holder to the right to either:

* purchase a share (equity-settled share-based payment trans-
actions) or

= be settled in cash (cash-settled share-based payment trans-
actions) at the remaining amount between exercise price and
the closing rate of AT&S shares at the stock exchange with
the main quotation of AT&S shares respectively at the date
the option is exercised by the beneficiary.

The stock options may be granted between 1 April 2005 and 1
April 2008.
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The exercise price is determined at the respective date of
grant, representing the average AT&S share price over a period
of six months prior to the date of grant plus 10%. The exercise
price corresponds at least to the nominal value of a share of
the Company.

Granted options vest gradually with 20% of the options after
two years, 30% of the options after three years and 50% of the
options after four years. The stock options may be exercised in
full or in part after completion of the vesting period, not how-
ever during a restricted period. Options not exercised can be
exercised after the expiration of the subsequent waiting peri-
od. Options not exercised within five years after the grant date
lapse without compensation.

The following table summarises information about all stock
options granted until 31 March 2013.

In the 1st meeting of the nomination and compensation com-
mittee of the Supervisory Board on 17 March 2009 an addition-
al stock option plan was approved, after it had been submitted
for examination in the 55th Supervisory Board Meeting on
16 December 2008. This stock option plan 2009-2012 for the
grant of stock options to be settled either in cash or equity
instruments to members of the Management Board, managing
directors and executive employees is consistent with the stock
option plan 2005-2008.

The stock options may be granted in the period between 1

April 2009 and 1 April 2012. A new stock option plan starting
with 1 April 2013 was not completed.

Date of grant

1 April 2012

1 April 2011 1 April 2010 1 April 2009 1 April 2008

Exercise price (in EUR) 9.86 16.60 7.45 3.86 15.67
31 March 2011 - - 135,000 65,000 92,000
Number of options granted - 118,500 - - -
Number of options forfeited - - - - -
Number of options exercised - - 35,000 13,100 -
Number of options expired - - - - 30,000
31 March 2012 - 118,500 100,000 51,900 62,000
Number of options granted 118,500 - - - -
Number of options forfeited - - - - -
Number of options exercised — — 10,000 10,000 —
Number of options expired 30,000 30,000 1,500 1,500 62,000
31 March 2013 88,500 88,500 88,500 40,400 -
Remaining contract period of stock options 4 years 3 years 2 years 1 year -
Fair value of granted stock options at the bal-

ance sheet date (in EUR 1,000)

31 March 2012 - 120 222 269 3
31 March 2013 65 7 46 118 -

Reference is made to Note 27 “Related party transactions”.
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The weighted average share price on the day of execution of all
options executed in the financial year is EUR 9.55 in the finan-
cial year 2012/13 (in 2011/12 EUR 14.55).

These stock options are measured at fair value at the respec-
tive balance sheet date, using the Monte Carlo method and
based on model assumptions and valuation parameters stated
below. These may differ from the values realised on the market
for all stock options granted as of 1 April 2009, 1 April 2010,
1 April 2011 and 1 April 2012:

Risk-free interest rate 0.02-0.29%
Volatility 32.562-37.41%

Volatility is calculated based on the daily share prices from
1 October 2009 until the balance sheet date.

The fair value of the stock options granted is recognised as
expense over their term

At 31 March 2013 the stock options exercisable intrinsic value
is TEUR 47 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 90).

At 31 March 2013 16,150 stock options are exercisable from the
grant of 1 April 2009. At 31 March 2012 11,900 stock options
are exercisable from the grant of 1 April 2009 and 10,000 stock
options from the grant of 1 April 2010.

OTHER LIABILITIES Other liabilities mainly include debt-
ors with credit balances, accrued legal, audit and consulting
fees, as well as other accruals.
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16. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Remaining maturity

Between 1 and 5

(in EUR 1,000) 31 March 2013 Less than 1 year years More than 5 years Interest rate in %
Bonds 184,810 85,527 99,283 - 5.00-5.50
Export loans 32,000 32,000 - - 0.84
Loans from state authorities:

- Public authorities 409 161 248 - 2.00-2.50
Other bank borrowings 81,165 12,031 46,134 23,000 2.00-6.15
Derivative financial instruments 118 118 — —

Carrying amount 298,502 129,837 145,665 23,000

Remaining maturity

Between 1 and 5

(in EUR 1,000) 31 March 2012 Less than 1 year years More than 5 years Interest rate in %
Bonds 184,539 5,561 178,978 - 5.00-5.50
Export loans 40,000 40,000 - - 1.72
Loans from state authorities:

- Public authorities 404 161 243 - 2.00-2.50
Other bank borrowings 47,977 38,677 9,300 - 2.50-6.10
Derivative financial instruments 208 - 208 -

Carrying amount 273,128 84,399 188,729 -

) Reference is made to Note 19 “Derivative financial instruments”.

The bond with a total nominal value of EUR 80 million was
placed by the Company on the Third Market of the Vienna
Stock Exchange on 27 May 2008 with a maturity of five years.
The bond is divided into amounts of EUR 50,000 and is exempt
from the prospectus requirement pursuant to § 3 (1) 9 KMG
(Austrian Capital Market Act). The annual fixed interest in the
amount of 5.50% of the nominal value is payable subsequently
on 27 May of each year.

The bond with a total nominal amount of EUR 100 million was
placed by the Company on 18 November 2011 with a term to
maturity of five years and is listed on the Second Regulated
Market of the Vienna Stock Exchange. The bond has a denomi-
nation of EUR 1,000 and the annual fixed interest in the
amount of 5.00% of the nominal value is payable on
18 November of each year in arrears.

Both bonds are subject to the following terms and conditions:
The bondholders do not have an ordinary cancellation right.
An extraordinary cancellation right has been agreed in case of
the following events occurring at the Company or one of its
main subsidiaries:
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= Cessation of payments or announcement of insolvency or
over-indebtedness,

= Bankruptcy or other insolvency proceedings (exception:
court settlement) or liquidation,

= Significant deterioration of the financial position and per-
formance due to the discontinuation of the major part of op-
erations, sale of major parts of assets or non-arm'’s length
transactions with related parties

= Change of control as stipulated in the Austrian Takeover Act,
if this significantly affects the ability to meet the bond obli-
gations.

Other bank borrowings include long-term financing in addition
to the current liquidity needs.

For the plant in South Korea and the expansion in India, long-
term financing was raised in the financial year 2009/10, which
has to be repaid in semi-annual instalments until 31 March
2014. The variable interest was fully hedged by interest rate
swaps. The main contract terms are as follows:

= Maintaining the 98.76% investment in AT&S Korea and the
100% investment in AT&S India
= No encumbrances on the investments



In order to refinance the capital need for the plant in Chong- cent a variable interest rate, with the variable portion sched-
ging, a long-term loan was raised under an OeKB equity fi- uled to be repaid first. The main contract terms are as follows:
nancing program. The loan will be repaid in semi-annual in-

stalments between September 2014 and February 2020. = Net debt/EBITDA max. 3

80 percent of the loan carries a fixed interest rate and 20 per- = Equity ratio at least 30%

The contractually agreed (undiscounted) interest and redemption payments of the financial liabilities at 31 March 2013 in consid-
eration of interest rate hedging are as follows in the next financial years:

Derivative
Loans from state Other bank financial

(in EUR 1,000) Bonds Export loans authorities borrowings instruments
2013/14

Redemption 80,000 32,000 161 12,031 118

Fixed interest 9,400 - 6 2,492 -

Variable interest - 273 - 370 -
2014/15

Redemption - - 177 11,634 -

Fixed interest 5,000 — 2 2,127 —

Variable interest — — — 230 -
2015/16

Redemption - - - 11,500 -

Fixed interest 5,000 - 1 2,066 -

Variable interest - - - 23 -
2016/17

Redemption 100,000 - 71 11,500 -

Fixed interest 5,000 — 1 1,662 —

Variable interest — — — — —
2017/18

Redemption - - - 11,500 -

Fixed interest - - - 1,219 -

Variable interest - - — _ _
after 2017/18

Redemption - - - 23,000 -

Fixed interest - - - 1,089 —

Variable interest - - - _ _

No significant deviations from the agreed interest and capital payments are expected regarding term or amount.
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At the prior-year balance sheet date 31 March 2012 the contractually agreed (undiscounted) interest and redemption payments of
the financial liabilities in consideration of interest rate hedging were as follows for the next financial years:

Derivative
Loans from state Other bank financial

(in EUR 1,000) Bonds Export loans authorities borrowings instruments
2012/13

Redemption - 40,000 161 38,677 -

Fixed interest 9,400 - 9 2,151 -

Variable interest - 698 - 87 -
2013/14

Redemption 80,000 - 172 9,300 208

Fixed interest 9,400 - 2 301 -

Variable interest — — — - -
2014/15

Redemption - - - - -

Fixed interest 5,000 - 1 - -

Variable interest - - - - -
2015/16

Redemption - - - - -

Fixed interest 5,000 - 1 - -

Variable interest - - - - -
2016/17

Redemption 100,000 - 71 - -

Fixed interest 5,000 - 1 - -

Variable interest — - - - -
The bonds, export loans, loans from state authorities and other
bank borrowings in part carry interest rates that differ from
market interest rates. For this reason differences between their
fair values and carrying amounts can arise.

Carrying amounts 31 March Fair values 31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Bonds 184,810 184,539 200,924 198,185
Export loans 32,000 40,000 32,000 40,000
Loans from state authorities 409 404 414 410
Other bank borrowings 81,165 47,977 89,671 48,628
Derivative financial instruments 118 208 118 208
298,502 273,128 323,127 287,431

The determination of the fair values is based on the discounted
value of future payments, and is calculated using current mar-
ket interest rates.
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The carrying amounts of financial liabilities according to cur-
rencies are as follows:

31 March

(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Euro 295,842 251,065
US Dollar 883 17,713
Chinese Renminbi Yuan 134 2,516
Indian Rupee - 38
Korean Won 1,631 1,750
Japanese Yen 12 46

298,502 273,128

Bank borrowings are secured as follows:

= through property, plant and equipment in the amount of
TEUR 1,684 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 1,843). Reference is
made to Note 8 “Property, plant and equipment”;

* by inventories and trade receivables amounting to
TEUR 32,000 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 40,008). Reference is
made to Note 11 “Inventories” and Note 12 “Trade and other
receivables”.

The Group's unused credit lines are as follows:

LEASES Total future minimum lease payments recognised
from non-cancellable operating leases and rental expenses are
as follows:

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
Less than 1 year 2,707 3,098
Between 1 and 5 years 8,407 8,144
Later than 5 years 4,468 6,852
15,582 18,094

The Group entered into various operating lease agreements for
the rental of office space, properties and production facilities,
as well as factory and office equipment and technical equip-
ment.

The obligations from operating leases are affected by a sale
and lease back transaction concluded in the financial year
2006/07 for the properties and buildings in Leoben-Hinterberg
and Fehring, Austria, with non-cancellable lease period until
December 2021. The stated amounts also include TEUR 6,770
at 31 March 2013 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 9,085) attributable
to minimum lease payments from the operating lease for no
longer used building spaces in Leoben-Hinterberg, which has

31 March already been included in the statement of financial position as
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012 other provisions. Reference is made to Note 18 “Other provi-
Export credit lines - sions”.
secured 8,000 -
Other credit lines - The payments recognised as expense for non-cancellable lease
secured 163,071 253,819 d tal foll .
Credit lines - and rental expenses are as follows: . .
unsecured 20,000 20,000 Financial year
191,071 273,819 (in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Leasing and rental expenses 2,914 3,451
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17. PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENE-

FITS The provisions for employee benefits relate to pension,
severance payments and other employee benefits.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS The majority of the
Group's employees in Austria and part of its employees in
India are covered by defined contribution plans that have been
transferred to a pension fund. For employees in Austria, the
pension plans are supplemented by death and endowment
insurances. Employer contributions are determined on the
basis of a certain percentage of current salary and the Compa-
ny’'s profit for the year. Contributions under these plans
amounted to TEUR 503 in the financial year 2012/13 and to
TEUR 509 in the financial year 2011/12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS The Group operates non-
contributory defined benefit plans for several members of the
management board and other executive employees with no
employees contribution required. The board members’ and
other executive employees’ plans are funded and unfunded.
Retirement benefits of board members and executive employ-
ees are based on their salaries and years of service.

FUNDED SEVERANCE PAYMENTS The employees in
India are entitled to severance payments upon retirement or,
under certain circumstances, upon leaving the company, the

EXPENSES for (defined benefit) retirement, severance pay-
ments and other employee benefits consist of the following:

Retirement benefits

amount of which depends on years of service and compensa-
tion level. The severance payments range between half of a
monthly salary per year of service and a fixed maximum. The
obligations are covered by a life insurance.

UNFUNDED SEVERANCE PAYMENTS Employees in
Austria, South Korea and China are entitled to receive sever-
ance payments, which are based upon years of service and
compensation levels and are generally payable upon retire-
ment and, under certain circumstances, upon leaving the com-
pany. In Austria the severance payments range from 2 to 12
months of final monthly salary depending on years of service,
in South Korea and China a fixed amount is paid depending
also on years of service.

For employees who joined on or after 1 January 2003, regular
contributions are paid to a staff provision fund (“Mitarbeiter-
vorsorgekasse”) without any further obligations on part of the
Group. The contributions for the financial year 2012/13
amounted to TEUR 263 and for the financial year 2011/12 to
TEUR 272.

OTHER BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS The employees of the
companies in Austria and in China are entitled to anniversary
bonuses for long-term service, in Austria the eligibility to and
amount of which are stipulated in the Collective Agreement.

Other

Severance payments employee benefits

Financial year

Financial year Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12
Current service cost 69 10 1,192 1,075 868 759
Interest expense 496 486 598 530 132 118
Settlements - - 239 - - -
Expected return on plan assets (386) (459) (52) (47) - -
Actuarial losses/(gains) 356 19 169 44 797 545
Total expenses 535 56 2,146 1,602 1,797 1,422

Expenses for retirement, severance and other employee bene-
fits are recognised in cost of sales, distribution costs and gen-
eral and administrative costs.
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Amounts accrued in the STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION are:

31 March
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012
(Overfunded) retirement benefits (538) (581)
Unfunded retirement benefits 1,175 1,053
Unfunded severance payments 10,238 9,701
Other employee benefits 3,793 3,141
Provisions for employee benefits 15,206 13,895
Accrued retirement, severance payment and other employee benefits, net 14,668 13,314

Retirement benefits and severance payments in the statement
of financial position are as follows:

Retirement benefits

Severance payments

31 March 31 March

(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012 2013 2012

Present value of funded obligations 11,949 10,078 723 614
Fair value of plan assets (9,479) (8,377) (610) (589)
Funded status funded obligations 2,470 1,701 113 25
Present value of unfunded obligations 1,175 1,052 14,656 12,954
Unrealised actuarial gains/(losses) (3,008) (2,281) (4,531) (3,277)
Unrecognised past service costs - - - 1)
Provisions/(receivables) reported in the statement of financial position, net 637 472 10,238 9,701
thereof receivables (overfunded benefits) (538) (581) - -
thereof provisions (unfunded benefits) 1,175 1,053 10,238 9,701
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The present value of projected retirement benefit obligations,
the movement in plan assets and funded status are as follows:

Funded

retirement benefits

Unfunded
retirement benefits

Financial year

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12
Present value of retirement benefit obligation

Present value at beginning of year 10,078 9,145 1,053 984
Current service cost 69 10 - -
Interest expense 450 437 47 49
Actuarial losses/(gains) 1,517 912 271 20
Benefits paid (165) (426) (196) -
Present value at end of year 11,949 10,078 1,175 1,053
Fair value of plan assets

Fair value at beginning of year 8,376 9,890

Contributions to plan assets 176 32

Expected return on plan assets 386 459

Actuarial gains/(losses) 706 (1,579)

Benefits paid (165) (426)

Fair value at end of year 9,479 8,376

Funded status funded retirement benefits 2,470 1,702

Plan assets held to cover the pension obligations have been
transferred to pension funds. The diversification of the portfo-
lio is as follows:

31 March
(in %) 2013 2012
Debt securities 36% 46%
Equity securities 41% 29%
Real estate 6% 4%
Cash and cash equivalents 17% 21%
100% 100%

The expected return on plan assets is determined by consider-
ing the expected returns available on the assets underlying the
current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest
investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
end of the reporting period. Expected returns on equity and
property investments reflect long-term real rates of return
experienced in the respective markets.
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The aggregate movement in funded and unfunded severance
payments is as follows:

Funded
severance payments

Unfunded
severance payments

Financial year

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12
Present value of severance payment obligation

Present value at beginning of year 614 628 12,954 10,236
Exchange differences (15) (44) 37 21
Current service cost 45 48 1,147 1,027
Interest cost 49 49 549 481
Actuarial losses/(gains) 46 20 1,377 1,846
Settlements - - 239 -
Benefits paid (16) (87) (1,646) (657)
Present value at end of year 723 614 14,657 12,954
Fair value of plan assets

Fair value at beginning of year 589 575

Exchange differences (15) (42)

Contributions to plan assets - 96

Expected return on plan assets 52 47

Benefits paid (16) (87)

Fair value at end of year 610 589

Funded status 113 25

The aggregate movement in other employee benefits (anniver-
sary bonuses) is as follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Present value at beginning of year 3,141 2,338
Exchange differences 66 112
Service cost 868 759
Interest expense 132 118
Actuarial losses/(gains) 797 545
Benefits paid (1,211) (731)
Present value at end of year 3,793 3,141
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The following actuarial parameters were used for the meas-
urement at the balance sheet date:

Retirement benefits

Other employee benefits

Severance payments (anniversary bonuses)

31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 3.75% 4.5% 3,75-8% 4.5-8.5% 2.5-3.75% 2.8-4.5%
Expected return on plan assets 4.65% 4.65% 8% 8% - -
Expected rate of compensation
increase 2.25% 2.25% 3-7.75% 3-7.75% 3-13% 3-11%
Expected rate of pension increase 2% 2% - - - -
Retirement age 65 65 Individual Individual - -
according to according to
respective local respective local
legislation legislation
18. OTHER PROVISIONS
Restructuring
(in EUR 1,000) Total Warranty Leoben Others
Carrying amount 31 March 2012 13,586 732 12,347 507
Utilisation (1,350) (112) (789) (449)
Reversal (705) (350) - (355)
Addition 865 137 - 728
Interest effect (348) - (348) -
Exchange differences 11 (2) - 13
Carrying amount 31 March 2013 12,059 405 11,210 444
Restructuring
(in EUR 1,000) Total Warranty Leoben Others
Carrying amount 31 March 2011 14,665 927 12,883 855
Utilisation (1,883) (196) (760) (927)
Reversal (718) (63) - (655)
Addition 1,313 77 - 1,236
Interest effect 224 - 224 -
Exchange differences (15) (13) - (2)
Carrying amount 31 March 2012 13,586 732 12,347 507
31 March WARRANTY PROVISION The provision for warranty re-
(in EUR 1,000) 2013 2012 lates to the costs for already existing and expected complaints
thereof non-current 10,437 11,422 about pI‘OdL.lCtS still under warranty. The accrued a.mount is
the best estimate of these costs based on past experience and
thereof current 1,622 2,164 . .
- actual facts, which due to the uncertainty as to amount and
Carrying amount 12,059 13,586
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timing are not yet recognised as liabilities.

PROVISION FOR THE RESTRUCTURING LEOBEN
This provision relates to future vacancy costs for no longer
used building space based on the non-cancellable property



lease obligation. The provision was largely recognised in the =~ OTHER PROVISIONS Other provisions relate to provisions
amount of the present value of the expenses expected to be for other onerous contracts.

incurred until the end of the non-cancellable property lease
obligation in December 2021.

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS The derivative financial instruments mainly relate to currency

swaps and interest rate swaps. Hedged items are primarily trade receivables and payables, as well as payments in connection

with loans.

The carrying amounts of the Group's derivative financial instruments correspond to their fair values. The fair value corresponds
to the amount that would be incurred or earned, if the transaction was settled at the balance sheet date.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are as follows at the balance sheet date:

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
(in EUR 1,000) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate swaps at fair value - 118 - 208
Total market values - 118 - 208
Net of current portion:
Interest rate swaps at fair value - 118 - -
Current portion - 118 - -

Non-current portion - - - 208
The nominal amounts and the fair values of derivative finan-
cial instruments relating to hedges against interest rate fluc-
tuations are as follows at the balance sheet date, presented by
currency:
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Nominal amount Market value Nominal amount Market value
Currency (in 1,000 local currency) (in EUR 1,000) (in 1,000 local currency) (in EUR 1,000)
Euro 9,300 (118) 15,500 (208)

The remaining terms of derivative financial instruments are as
follows at the balance sheet date:

31 March
(in months) 2013 2012
Interest rate swaps 12 24

At 31 March 2013, the fixed interest rates for interest rate
swaps are 2.34% and 1.84%, the variable interest rate is based
on the 6-month EURIBOR.
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20. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES ON FI-

NANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CARRYING AMOUNTS AND AMOUNTS STATED BY
MEASUREMENT CATEGORY The carrying amounts and
amounts stated of financial instruments included in several
items in the statement of financial position by measurement

category are as follows at the balance sheet date:

Fair values

(in EUR 1,000) through profit Fair values Amortised
31 March 2013 or loss in equity cost Total
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets - 96 - 96
Current assets
Trade and other receivables - - 91.438 91.438
Financial assets 770 - - 770
Cash and cash equivalents - - 80.226 80.226
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities - - 168.665 168.665
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 64.180 64.180
Financial liabilities — 118 129.719 129.837
Fair values
(in EUR 1,000) through profit Fair values Amortised
31 March 2012 or loss in equity cost Total
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets - 96 - 96
Current assets
Trade and other receivables - - 88.925 88.925
Financial assets 732 36 - 768
Cash and cash equivalents - - 29.729 29.729
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities - 208 188.521 188.729
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 82.490 82.490
Financial liabilities - - 84.399 84.399
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VALUATION HIERARCHIES OF FINANCIAL IN-
STRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE Three val-
uation hierarchies have to be distinguished in the valuation of
financial instruments measured at fair value.

= Level 1: The fair values are determined based on quoted
market prices in an active market for identical financial in-
struments.

= Level 2: If there are no quoted market prices in an active
market, fair value is established by using a valuation tech-
nique that makes maximum use of market inputs.

= Level 3: In this case, valuation methods to establish the fair
value are based on non-market data.

The allocation of financial instruments measured at fair value
to the three measurement hierarchies are as follows at the
balance sheet date:

(in EUR 1,000)
31 March 2013

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

- Bonds

Available-for-sale financial
assets 96 - - 96

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

770 - - 770

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments - 118 - 118

(in EUR 1,000)
31 March 2012

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss:

- Bonds 732 - - 732
Available-for-sale financial

assets 132 - - 132

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments - 208 - 208

NET RESULTS RELATING TO FINANCIAL INSTRU-
MENTS BY MEASUREMENT CATEGORY Net gains or
net losses relating to financial assets and liabilities by meas-
urement category are as follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12

Loans and receivables (450) (2,029)

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (89) 19

Available-for-sale financial assets 37 7

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (14,897) (9,728)
(15,399) (11,731)

The net results relating to financial instruments include divi-
dend income, interest income and expenses, foreign exchange
gains and losses, realised gains and losses on the disposal and
sale, as well as income and expenses recognised in profit or
loss from the measurement of financial instruments.

TEUR -942 in net expense (in 2011/12 TEUR -2,156 in net ex-
pense) of the total net result from financial instruments is
included in the operating result, and TEUR -14,457 (in 2011/12:
TEUR -9,575 in net expense) in “Finance costs — net”.
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21. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTH-
ER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS Regarding
non-cancellable leasing and rental agreements, reference is
made to Note 16 “Financial liabilities”. At 31 March 2013 the
Group has other financial commitments amounting to
TEUR 16,854 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 20,499) in connection

22. SHARE CAPITAL

with contractually binding investment projects. Furthermore,
at the balance sheet date the Group has contingent liabilities
to customs authorities and from bank guarantees in the
amount of TEUR 1,424 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 3,590). Other
guarantees or contingencies relating to the ordinary business
operations do not exist at the balance sheet date.

Outstanding Treasury shares,

shares Ordinary shares Share premium net of tax Share capital

(in 1,000 shares) (in EUR 1,000) (in EUR 1,000) (in EUR 1,000) (in EUR 1,000)
31 March 2011 23,323 28,490 63,542 (47,557) 44,475
Change in treasury shares, net of tax - - - 1,060 1,060
31 March 2012 23,323 28,490 63,542 (46,497) 45,535
Change in treasury shares, net of tax - - - 379 379
31 March 2013 23,323 28,490 63,542 (46,118) 45,914

ORDINARY SHARES At 31 March 2013 the share capital in
the amount of TEUR 28,490 is made up of 25,900,000 no-par
value shares with a notional value of EUR 1.10 per share.

OUTSTANDING SHARES The number of shares issued
amounts to 25,900,000. At the balance sheet date
31 March 2013 2,577,412 treasury shares were held by the
Group, 23,322,588 shares were outstanding.

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL By a resolution passed
at the 16th Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2010 the Man-
agement Board was authorised to increase the share capital by
a nominal amount of up to TEUR 14,245 until 6 July 2015, if
required, in several tranches upon approval by the Supervisory
Board by issuing up to 12,950,000 no-par value bearer shares
paid for in cash or contribution in kind, partially or entirely
excluding the existing shareholders’ subscription rights, and
to set the detailed issue conditions in agreement with the Su-
pervisory Board. The Supervisory Board is authorised to adopt
changes to the articles of association that are due to the issu-
ance of shares from the authorised capital.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS A resolution passed at the 16th
Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2010 authorised the Man-
agement Board upon approval by the Supervisory Board to
issue convertible bonds in accordance with § 174 (2) AktG
(Austrian Stock Corporation Act) at a maximum nominal value
of TEUR 100,000 (in several tranches) until 6 July 2015, to set
the issue conditions and the conversion method and to exclude
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the existing shareholders’ subscription rights. This authorisa-
tion may be exercised in full or in part.

CONDITIONAL CAPITAL INCREASE A resolution was
passed at the 16th Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2010 to
perform a conditional capital increase in accordance with §
160 (2) AktG (Austrian Stock Corporation Act) and to grant
stock options and conversion rights to creditors of convertible
bonds by a nominal amount of TEUR 14,245 by issuing up to
12,950,000 new common bearer shares. Furthermore, the Man-
agement Board was authorised to set the further details of the
conditional capital increase. The Supervisory Board is author-
ised to adopt changes (due to the issuance of shares from the
conditional capital increase) to the articles of association. The
new issued shares resulting from the conditional capital in-
crease are fully entitled to dividends for the financial year in
which they were issued.

TREASURY SHARES At the 16th Annual General Meeting
on 7 July 2010 the Management Board in accordance with § 65
(1) 8 AktG (Austrian Stock Corporation Act) was authorised
again to acquire treasury shares of up to 10% of the share
capital within 30 months as of the date the resolution was
passed (the purchase price per no-par value share to be ac-
quired shall not be below EUR 1.10 and shall not exceed EUR
110) and to cancel the treasury shares acquired without an
additional shareholders’ resolution, or to use them for the
Group’s stock option plan. The Supervisory Board is author-
ised to pass amendments to the articles of association, which
result from the issue of shares from authorised capital.



Since 15 May 2006, the Group has purchased a total of
2,632,432 treasury shares at the prevailing market price
amounting to a total of TEUR 47,484. In the financial year
2012/13 shares were neither sold nor used for servicing the
Company'’s stock option plan. At 31 March 2013 the Group still
holds 2,577,412 treasury shares (unchanged to prior year)
(9.95% of the share capital) with a total purchase price of
TEUR 46,577. The change in treasury shares (net of tax) in the
financial year 2012/13 and 2011/12 exclusively relates to taxes
attributable to this equity instrument.

At the 16th Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2010 the Man-
agement Board in accordance with § 65 (1b) AktG was author-
ised again, for a period of five years as of the date the resolu-

tion was passed, i.e. up to and including 6 July 2015, upon
approval by the Supervisory Board, to sell the purchased
treasury shares also in a different way than via the stock ex-
change or by public offer, in particular to service stock op-
tions, convertible bonds, as consideration for the acquisition
of companies, investments or other assets and for the sale by
means of an accelerated book-building procedure. In doing so,
the subscription rights of existing shareholders’ may be ex-
cluded in accordance with §§ 169 to 179 AktG and the authori-
sation exercised in its entirety or in several parts.

DIVIDEND PER SHARE In the financial year 2012/13 a
dividend of EUR 0.32 was paid per share (in 2011/12 EUR 0.36).

23. OTHER RESERVES The reclassification adjust-

ments of the other comprehensive income realised in the profit
for the year and the movement in other reserves are as follows:

Hedging

Currency translation Available-for-sale instruments for Other
(in EUR 1,000) differences financial assets cash flow hedges reserves
Carrying amount as of 31 March 2011 (12,081) 44 5 (12,032)
Balance of unrealised changes before reclassification,
net of tax 34,762 (13) (160) 34,589
Transfer of realised changes recognised in the profit
for the year, net of tax — - (2) (2)
Carrying amount as of 31 March 2012 22,681 31 (157) 22,555
Balance of unrealised changes before reclassification,
net of tax 22,282 (8) 5 22,279
Transfer of realised changes recognised in the profit
for the year, net of tax - (20) 63 43
Carrying amount as of 31 March 2013 44,963 3 (89) 44,877

With regard to the presentation of income taxes attributable to
the individual components of the other comprehensive income,
including reclassification adjustments, reference is made to
Note 7 “Income taxes”.
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VI. Other Disclosures

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE Earnings per share is

calculated in accordance with IAS 33 ,Earnings Per Share”.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE OF OUTSTANDING SHARES
The number of shares issued is 25,900,000. At 31 March 2013
2,577,412 treasury shares are held, which are deducted in the
calculation of earnings per share.

The weighted average number of outstanding shares for the
basic earnings per share calculation amounts to 23.3 million in
the financial year 2012/13 and to 23.3 million in the financial
year 2011/12.

The weighted average number of outstanding shares for the
diluted earnings per share calculation amounts to 23.3 million
in the financial year 2012/13 and to 23.4 million in the finan-
cial year 2011/12.

The following table shows the composition of the diluted
weighted average number of outstanding shares in the respec-

tive periods:

Financial year

(in 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12
Weighted average number of shares out-

standing - basic 23,323 23,323
Diluting effect of options 17 48
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding - diluted 23,340 23,371

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic earnings per share
are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributed
to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of outstanding ordinary shares of the same period.

Financial year

2012/13 2011/12
Profit for the year (in EUR 1,000) 14,101 26,550
Weighted average number of outstanding
shares - basic (in 1,000) 23,323 23,323
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) 0.60 1.14

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE Diluted earnings per
share are calculated by dividing the profit for the period at-
tributed to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of outstanding shares including the number of
potentially outstanding ordinary shares. The potentially out-
standing ordinary shares comprise the additional shares to be
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issued for exercisable options and are included in diluted
earnings per share under the assumption that these shares are
diluted.

Financial year

2012/13 2011/12
Profit for the year (in EUR 1,000) 14,101 26,550
Weighted average number of outstanding
shares - diluted (in 1,000) 23,340 23,371
Diluted earnings per share (in EUR) 0.60 1.14

According to IAS 33 the treasury shares which are held to fulfil
the stock option plan do not dilute the outstanding shares.

25. PROPOSAL ON PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
According to the provisions of the Austrian Stock Corporation
Act (“Aktiengesetz”) the local financial statements of AT & S
Austria Technologie & Systemtechnik Aktiengesellschaft as of
31 March 2013 prepared under Austrian GAAP serve as the
basis for the distribution of dividends. These financial state-
ments reported retained earnings amounting to TEUR 19,383
at 31 March 2012 (at 31 March 2012 TEUR 24,237).

The distribution is subject to the resolution of the General
Meeting. The Management Board and the Supervisory Board
propose to the General Meeting to distribute a dividend of
TEUR 4,665 from retained earnings and to carry forward the
remaining balance. This profit distribution corresponds to a
dividend of EUR 0.20 per outstanding no-par value share enti-
tled to dividend at 31 March 2013 (with a total of 23,322,588
no-par value shares entitled to dividend at 31 March 2013).

26. MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE BAL-
ANCE SHEET DATE After balance sheet date no ma-

terial events occurred.



27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 1m
connection with various projects the Group received services
from legal and consulting companies owned by the chairman
of the Supervisory Board (AIC Androsch International Man-
agement Consulting GmbH, Vienna) or by Supervisory Board
members (Dorflinger Management & Beteiligungs GmbH, Vien-
na and Rechtsanwiélte Riedl & Ringhofer, Vienna). The fees
charged are as follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12

AIC Androsch International Management

Consulting GmbH 365 385

Rechtsanwalte Riedl & Ringhofer - 4

Dorflinger Management & Beteilungs

GmbH 6 4
371 393

At the balance sheet date, there are no outstanding balances or
obligations to the above mentioned legal and consulting com-
panies.

MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 1n the financial
year 2012/13 and until the date of issuance of these consoli-
dated financial statements the following persons served on the
MANAGEMENT BOARD:

= Andreas Gerstenmayer (Chairman)

* Heinz Moitzi

= Thomas Obendrauf (until 31 March 2013)

In the financial year 2012/13 the following persons were elect-
ed members of the SUPERVISORY BOARD:

= Hannes Androsch (Chairman)

= Willibald Dérflinger (First Deputy Chairman)

= Regina Prehofer (Second Deputy Chairman)

= Karl Fink

= Albert Hochleitner

= Gerhard Pichler

= Georg Riedl

= Karin Schaupp

Delegated by the Works Council:
* Wolfgang Fleck

= Johann Fuchs

= Sabine Fussi

= Glinther Wolfler
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The number of outstanding stock options and staff costs from
stock options granted are as follows:

Staff costs

Number of outstanding stock options Financial year

31 March (in EUR 1,000)

2013 2012 2012/13 2011/12

Andreas Gerstenmayer 120,000 80,000 (41) (43)
Heinz Moitzi 114,000 114,000 (67) (170)
Thomas Obendrauf - 34,500 (18) -
Steen Ejlskov Hansen - - - (19)
Total Management Board 234,000 228,500 (126) (232)
Total other executive employees 71,900 103,900 (37) (101)
305,900 332,400 (163) (333)

The stock options of Thomas Obendrauf were exercisable until
the retirement date (expiration of employment contract) on 31
March 2013. Granted stock options not exercised until 31
March 2013 lapsed without compensation. In addition, refer-
ence is made to the comments on the stock option plans under
Note 15 “Trade and other payables”.

Total remuneration paid to the members of the Management
Board and to executive employees:

Financial year 2012/13 Financial year 2011/12

(in EUR 1,000) Fixed Variable Total Fixed Variable Total
Andreas Gerstenmayer 396 - 396 388 203 591
Heinz Moitzi 310 - 310 308 190 498
Thomas Obendrauf 499 - 499 322 212 534
Steen Ejlskov Hansen - - - - 242 242
Executive employees 3,446 124 3,570 3,445 711 4,156

4,775 6,021
The fixed compensation in the financial year 2012/13 of Thom-
as Obendrauf includes contractual severance payments and
other claims in connection with the early termination of the
management contract.
Expenses for severance payments and retirement benefits for
members of the Management Board and executive employees
are as follows:

Severance payments Retirement benefits
Financial year Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12
Management Board and executive employees 186 114 645 218
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Total remuneration for services rendered personally by mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board attributable to the financial year

and proposed to the Annual General Meeting:

Financial year 2012/13

Financial year 2011/12

(in EUR 1,000) Fixed Variable Total Fixed Variable Total
Hannes Androsch 35 - 35 33 11 44
Willibald Dérflinger 27 - 27 29 6 35
Regina Prehofer 25 - 25 15 6 21
Karl Fink 24 - 24 24 6 30
Albert Hochleitner 24 - 24 23 6 29
Gerhard Pichler 24 - 24 23 6 29
Georg Riedl 24 - 24 23 6 29
Karin Schaupp 22 - 22 16 6 22

205 - 205 186 53 239

Shareholdings and stock options of members of the Manage-
ment Board and the Supervisory Board as of 31 March 2013:

Total shares and

Shares Stock options stock options % capital
Management Board members 1,672 234,000 235,672 0.91
Supervisory Board members:
Hannes Androsch 445,853 - 445,853 1.72
Other members of the Supervisory Board 28,412 - 28,412 0.11
Total Supervisory Board members 474,265 - 474,265 1.83
Private foundations:
Androsch Privatstiftung 5,570,666 - 5,570,666 21.51
Dorflinger Privatstiftung 4,594,688 - 4,594,688 17.74
Total private foundations 10,165,354 - 10,165,354 39.25
10,641,291 234,000 10,875,291 41.99
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28. EXPENSES FOR THE GROUP AUDITOR

The expenses of the financial year for the group auditor are as
follows:

Financial year

(in EUR 1,000) 2012/13 2011/12

Audit of consolidated and

separate financial statements 147 123

Other assurance services 19 29

Other services 22 5
188 157

This item does not include expenses for other network mem-
bers of the group auditor, e.g. for the audit of financial state-
ments of subsidiaries or tax consulting services.

29. NUMBER OF STAFF The average numbers of

staff in the financial year are as follows:

Financial year

2012/13 2011/12
Waged workers 5,802 5,928
Salaried employees 1,519 1,489
7,321 7,417

The calculation of the number of staff includes an average of
3,455 temporary workers for the financial year 2012/13 and an
average of 3,730 for the financial year 2011/12.

Leoben-Hinterberg, 7 May 2013

The Management Board

Andreas Gerstenmayer m.p.

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 March 2013

Heinz Moitzi m.p.
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1. COMPANY PROFILE ATsS is one of the market

leaders in the industry worldwide and the largest manufactur-
ers of printed circuit boards in Europe and India. The plant in
Shanghai is the largest plant in China specializing in HDI
technology. The product portfolio of AT&S includes single-
sided, double-sided, multi-layer, HDI (High Density Intercon-
nection, a multi-layer printed circuit board with extremely fine
structures), flexible, rigid-flexible and semi-flexible types of
printed circuit boards. The service spectrum includes various
technologies for the treatment of printed circuit boards using
various base materials.

The trend towards miniaturization and more complex compo-
nents characterizes the main technological challenges in the
printed circuit board industry. Smartphones, for instance, are
equipped with new additional functions, computers like note-
books, ultrabooks, and multimedia tablets are becoming ever
more powerful while at the same time getting constantly light-
er. In industrial electronics, medical technology, aviation, and
industrial computers, the technological progress will also
result in a wider range of applications for high-tech circuit
boards. In the automotive segment, the proportion of electron-
ics is also constantly rising, not least due to the ever increas-
ing demands on security systems and car infotainment. The
trend towards miniaturization and more complex components
generally characterizes the technological challenges for print-
ed circuit board manufacturers.

Think global — act local: With manufacturing plants in Europe
and Asia as well as a distribution network spanning four con-
tinents, AT&S supplies internationally operating corporations.
At the same time, AT&S also serves the demand from smaller
companies and produces prototypes and small series. With its
current production capacities, AT&S is able to service the
volume production existing mainly in Asia, as well as the Eu-
ropean niche business. The products are sold directly to origi-
nal equipment manufacturers (OEM) and contract electronic
manufacturers (CEM).

In terms of technology, AT&S is also one of the leading printed
circuit board manufacturers. The excellent performance in the
area of research and development is an important prerequisite
for that. AT&S is working in networks of customers, suppliers
and research institutions on the latest innovative techniques.
In addition, the Company has profound long-term experience
in the area of industrial large series production. The ongoing
optimization of the business processes is one of the major core
elements of the corporate strategy.

2. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND CLI-
MATE 1n the past calendar year, the global demand for
printed circuit boards in the high technology sector continued
to rise, whereas the demand for technologically simpler print-
ed circuit boards declined. The price pressure is generally
increasing in the industry. For the medium to long term, we
continue to expect attractive growth rates in the markets ad-
dressed by us - mobile devices, automotive and medical tech-
nology.

The mobile devices segment with the applications
smartphones and tablet PCs will continue to be an important
growth factor. The share of smartphones in the entire mobile
phone market will increase further. A good development is also
expected in the automotive segment, especially in China. Mod-
erate growth is expected for the industrial sector, primarily in
Europe.

The past financial year also saw the industry-specific seasonal
fluctuations, even though the fluctuations in the past financial
year were significantly lower than in the previous financial
year. Due to delayed project starts at major customers, the first
and second quarters were characterized by fairly low utiliza-
tion, whereas in the third quarter we managed to generate the
highest quarterly revenue in AT&S history of EUR 150.3 mil-
lion. The main reason for the lower seasonal fluctuations in
the current financial year is the more-than-proportional in-
crease in sales in the industrial & automotive segment, which
is characterized by a fairly stable development.

For the entire financial year 2012/13, revenue increased by
EUR 27.5 million or 5% to EUR 541.7 million.

In geographical terms, a further shift of production activity
from Europe to Asia becomes apparent as a result of the addi-
tionally installed capacities. Thus, the share of the segment
net revenue of Asia in total revenue already amounts to 74% in
the financial year (in the previous year: 73%). In the Europe
segment, we managed to win additional interesting contracts
in the area of small series and niche products.

The business unit mobile devices with a share in sales of 55%
(prior year: 58%) continues to be the segment of the AT&S
Group with the highest sales. The generated revenue at EUR
297.3 million was slightly higher than in the year before. As in
the previous year, the geographical distribution of revenue
continued to shift towards Asia.

With revenue reaching EUR 242.6 million, the business unit

industrial & automotive managed to generate an increase of
12%. In the past financial year, this segment also saw the trend
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towards a growing demand in the Asia region. In particular the
demand for printed circuit boards for the automotive industry
increased significantly in Asia. At the same time, demand in
the industrial as well as automotive segments declined slightly
in Europe.

Gross profit declined year-on-year from EUR 83.5 million to
EUR 76.9 million, thus by EUR 6.6 million, due primarily to the
capacity expansions completed in the financial year 2011/12
and the resulting higher annual depreciation in the past finan-
cial year. This negative effect of EUR 9.9 million could be
compensated only in part through efficiency measures. Admin-
istrative and distribution costs remained unchanged over the
previous year, other comprehensive income declined EUR 4.6
million mainly due to the decrease in research funds and posi-
tive one-off effects from the sale of a property in the financial
year 2011/12. Overall, EBIT declined to EUR 30.9 million (prior
year: EUR 42.1 million). The EBIT margin thus amounts to 5.7%
and is down 2.5% on the 2011/12 financial year.

The segment result of the business unit mobile devices
amounted to EUR 21.2 million, with an EBIT margin of 7.1%.
The business unit industrial & automotive generated an EBIT
of EUR 12.0 million and thus an EBIT margin of 4.9%. At the
balance sheet date 31 March 2013, consolidated equity
amounts to EUR 312.5 million and increased EUR 29.4 million
year-on-year. The increase is due to the profit for the year of
EUR 14.1 million, whereas other comprehensive income de-
creased to EUR 22.3 million mainly due to currency differ-
ences. The equity ratio of 43% at the balance sheet date equals
an increase of around 2 percentage points over the previous
balance sheet date and continues to show a strong equity posi-
tion.

In the financial year 2012/13, net debt of the AT&S Group de-
creased by EUR 25.1 million to EUR 217.4 million. Due to the
high operating cash flow of EUR 71.7 million, investment ex-
penses of EUR 40.6 million could be funded through current
operations. The gearing ratio at the balance sheet date of 69.6%
is significantly lower than the prior year figure of 85.7%. For
details on the calculation method of the ratios and additional
explanations, reference is made to the notes to the consolidat-
ed financial statements, section “II. Risk report”.

Under the investing activities of AT&S, additions to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets totalled EUR 35.5
million in the financial year 2012/13. The investments relate to
the construction of the site in Chongqing, China, but also to
equipment for new technologies and innovation projects in
Shanghai and in the Austrian plants.
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On an annual average, AT&S had 7,321 employees (including
leased personnel) in the financial year 2012/13, and thus 96
less than the prior-year average (2011/12: 7,417).

Well trained and motivated staff is a key factor in keeping up
with international competition. Therefore, AT&S pays special
attention to training and education programmes that are de-
signed to promote intercultural skills in addition to profes-
sional competencies. In technical trainings, intercultural train-
ings, and special management and executive development
programs AT&S staff is adequately prepared for current and
future challenges. In order to promote young talent apprentic-
es are trained in five different fields of specialization in Aus-
tria, and in India AT&S is heavily involved in a training pro-
gram for industrial workers.

A transparent and performance-oriented compensation system
promotes the entrepreneurial thinking and acting of staff.
Since the financial 2010/11, the bonus system has been based
on the key ratios EBIT, cash earnings and ROCE, and thus has
remained unchanged over the previous year.

Sustained management and economical use of available re-
sources are of the highest priority for AT&S. To that end, it is
necessary to create a good basis in order to manage processes
efficiently. AT&S created an integrated management system as
basis, which combines the factors quality, environment and
safety. The fact that AT&S attaches great importance to envi-
ronmental management is demonstrated by the introduction of
the management system ISO14001 already in the 1996/97 fi-
nancial year. ISO9001 and ISOTS16949 (Quality Management —
norms) and OHSAS18001 (Occupational Health and Safety -
norm) complement the spectrum. Regular internal audits and
annual monitoring and triannual recertification audits monitor
the implementation of the regulatory requirements. In the
financial year 2012/13, the compliance with all requirements
was again confirmed by independent third parties.

A key component of the norms is the continuous development
and improvement of existing systems. Projects implemented at
various locations in the world to enhance safety and health
protection are reflected in the key ratios. A multi-year compar-
ison showed that the accident rate could be reduced continu-
ously as a result. The efficient use of resources is another
component of a continuous development in the environmental
field. The focus is on improving processes, procedures and
products in order to produce with the lowest possible impact
on the environment and human beings. In order to achieve
that, there are global goals, such as the reduction of CO2 emis-
sions per m2 printed circuit board, the minimization of fresh
water consumption and improvements in waste management,



such as recycling of reusable materials or waste avoidance. As
umbrella for all measures on that subject, AT&S launched the
project “sustainable AT&S" in the past year, aimed at integrat-
ing sustainability into all processes. A first step was success-
fully completed in March 2013 with the internal sustainability
report, confronting the employees for the first time directly
with the concept and future measures, and subsequently inte-
grating them into the activities.

At all locations, AT&S exceeds the statutory minimum re-
quirements regarding environment and safety. In the course of
external audits, AT&S was already regarded as industry
benchmark by certification as well as local authorities. This is
also reflected by numerous awards and distinctions received
by AT&S in China, India, and Austria for their commitment to
environmental protection and occupational safety.

The main raw materials used in the financial year 2012/13
included approx. 585 kg of pure gold (2011/12: 645 kg), 2,014
tons of copper (2011/12: 2,001 tons), 11.2 million m2 of lami-
nates (2011/12: 10.8 million m2), and approx. 53,260 tons of
different chemicals (2011/12: 53,200 tons). The electricity de-
mand in the financial year 2012/13 amounted to around 342
GWh (2011/12: 309 GWh).

Regarding material events after the balance sheet date, refer-
ence is made to the disclosures in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, Note 26 “Material events after the bal-
ance sheet date”.

3. SUBSIDIARIES AND REPRESENTATIVE
OFFICES In the past financial year, AT&S decided to enter
into a new business field with its subsidiary AT&S (Chongqging)
Company Limited. It is planned to produce high-tech IC sub-
strates (integrated circuit substrates) in the new plant in
Chongqing, China. The building in Chongqing has already been
completed. In January, the Management Board successfully
concluded negotiations on an agreement with a strategic part-
ner. The investment phase will be 3 years and will entail ex-
penditure of approximately EUR 350 million. First revenues
are expected to be generated in the year 2016.

In the financial year 2012/13, AT&S Austria Technologie &
Systemtechnik Aktiengesellschaft transferred the 100% stake in
AT&S (China) Company Limited to AT&S Asia Pacific Limited.

The subsidiary AT&S Korea Co., Ltd. experienced a very posi-
tive development in the past financial year. Revenue could be
increased significantly due in particular to new contracts in
the medical technology segment. In line with the revenue, the
result also saw a positive development.

AT&S India Private Limited also experienced a positive devel-
opment. Although revenue could not be increased considera-
bly, the result improved significantly due to efficiency
measures and a now stable energy supply for the production
location.

The plant in Leoben successfully continued its development
from niche to prototype production in the past years. The utili-
zation in the Fehring plant is positive again, following the
change from a 4-shift to a 3-shift operation.

In the past financial year, the subsidiary AT & S Klagenfurt
Leiterplatten GmbH faced underutilization and growing price
pressure.

In order to even better attend to our American customers, a
new sales office was opened in Chicago in spring 2012. As part
of the subsidiary AT&S Americas LLC, this office is the second
location in the U.S.A.

4, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DISCLO-
SURES ON SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS as of 31
March 2013, the share capital of AT&S amounts to EUR
28,490,000 and is made up of 25,900,000 no-par value shares
with a notional value of EUR 1.1 per share. The voting right at
the annual general meeting is exercised according to no-par
value shares, with one par-value share entitling to one vote. All
shares are bearer shares.

Significant shareholdings in the group parent AT&S AG are as
follows at the balance sheet date:

Shares % Capital % Voting rights
Dorflinger Privatstiftung: 4.594.688 17,74% 19,70%
Karl-Waldbrunner-Platz 1
A-1210 Vienna
Androsch Privatstiftung: 5.570.666 21,51% 23,89%

Franz-Josefs-Kai 5
A-1010 Vienna

At the balance sheet date, 2,577,412 treasury shares (9.95% of
the share capital) are held. The authorisation last granted on
7 July 2010 to the Management Board to repurchase up to 10%
of the share capital of AT&S AG on the market within 30
months was thus valid until 6 January 2013. The treasury
shares may be used to service the stock option plan of the
Company or they may also be sold.

Until 6 July 2015, the Management Board is authorised, with
the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase the share
capital by up to EUR 14,245,000 through the issue of up to
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12,950,000 no-par value bearer shares, partially or entirely
excluding the subscription rights of existing shareholders.

Until 6 July 2015, the Management Board is authorised, with
the approval of the Supervisory Board, to issue convertible
bonds of up to EUR 100,000,000, excluding the subscription
rights of existing shareholders, if required. To grant subscrip-
tion or exchange rights to the creditors of the convertible
bond, the Management Board is authorised to increase the
share capital by up to EUR 14,245,000 through the issue of up
to 12,950,000 new bearer shares.

For further details, reference is made to the disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 22 “Share
capital”.

5. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT within
AT&S, research and development (R&D) is the driving force in
the identification of new and development of applied technolo-
gies. Through sustained successes, AT&S managed to achieve
the position of technology leader in the high-end printed cir-
cuit board manufacture.

AT&S has a two-step innovation process. In the research facili-
ties of the also technological headquarters Leoben-Hinterberg
the developments in the areas of materials, processes and
applications are conducted to the point where the basic feasi-
bility of the technology is reached. This area of activity thus
includes applied research and technology evaluation. Subse-
quently, it is up to the local department for technology devel-
opment and implementation in the plants of AT&S and the
subsidiaries to advance the processes and products through
experimental development and to integrate new processes in
the existing production process so that an optimised output
can be produced.

In order to maintain its position among the global technology
leaders also in the future, AT&S is cooperating with numerous
external partners. On the one hand, requirements and ideas for
future products are communicated by customers, and on the
other hand, AT&S derives new technologies from future appli-
cations, such as for instance the Embedding Component Pack-
aging technology (ECP® technology). In addition to the own
resources, cooperations are also entered into with research
institutions or suppliers, if required.

The core of the technology strategy can be subdivided into 3
main goals:
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= Focus on the high-technology segment: new products and
technologies developed at AT&S are used in the high-
technology segment of the respective market.

= Greater contribution to the value creation chain: new prod-
ucts and technologies developed at AT&S cover a greater
portion of the value creation chain in the manufacture of
electronic devices.

= Lower use of natural resources: new products and technolo-
gies developed at AT&S use less natural resources (e.g. mate-
rials, water, energy) than traditional products/technologies.

Based on these strategic principles, customer demands and
developments with suppliers, 4 core development areas were
identified:

1. Interconnect density:

In this area, the goal is to constantly miniaturize the circuit
board and increase the complexity. The challenge is to minia-
turize the structures of the circuit board and to reduce its
thickness.

2. Mechanical integration:

The goal is an improved integration of the printed circuit
board as component of the electronic device. Rigid-flexible
printed circuit boards, cavities, mounting technologies up to
fully flexible printed circuit boards are being developed.

3. Functionality integration

This development area focuses on the integration of additional
functionalities in the printed circuit board. In addition to the
current AT&S ECP® technology, further solutions are to be
found for embedding the components in the printed circuit
board.

4. Printed solutions:

Here, the focus is on new solutions that reduce the consump-
tion of water and other natural resources (e.g. copper). New
processes based on the printing technology are developed in
order to minimize the use of natural resources.

In the past financial year, an important step was made primar-
ily for the core development field “interconnect density” by the
decision to enter into the business field of IC substrates. Sub-
strates are the connection between the nano world of silicon
and the micro world of printed circuit boards. With the deci-
sion to also offer substrates in the future, AT&S consistently
continues its step towards miniaturization in order to push the
limits of technical feasibility in the printed circuit board tech-
nology even further through new, special materials and pro-
duction procedures.



Total expenses for research & development amounted to
EUR 24.7 million in the financial year 2012/13 over EUR 32.9
million in the previous year. In relation to sales, this corre-
sponds to a ratio of 4.6% or 6.4% in the previous year.

6. MATERIAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES
AND OPPORTUNITIES AT&S has implemented a

company-wide risk and opportunity management system.

In this context, risk is generally defined as a negative devia-
tion from the business plan. Consequently, opportunity refers
to a positive deviation from business objectives. The individu-
ally identified and evaluated risks and opportunities whose
impact on the budgeted annual result is greater than EUR 0.25
million and whose probability of occurrence greater than 1%
are aggregated into the Group’s total risk exposure using a
stochastic process (Monte Carlo simulation). In each assess-
ment of individual risks, values are determined for the worst
case, the best case and the most likely case.

In terms of organisation, the responsibility for risk manage-
ment is with the CFO, who is also in charge of its supervision.
The Management Board as a whole is briefed quarterly in a
structured manner by risk management, which in turn reports
to the supervisory board of AT&S.

The strong capitalisation, the technological top position and
the positioning of AT&S through the combination of group
locations in Austria and Asia are considered an advantage over
competitors. The European and the American market can be
serviced by swift production and short delivery terms of the
Austrian plants as well as low-cost production capacities in
Asia. For the global market, the Group has long years of expe-
rience in the HDI technology, and the plant in Shanghai is not
only the largest plant of the AT&S Group, but actually the
largest plant in China specializing in HDI technology. As a
result of the current expansion of the Group's existing plants
and the construction of an additional plant in China (Chong-
ging) and, accordingly, additional capacities, ample opportuni-
ties arise for sales and profit increases.

The risks, uncertainties and opportunities of AT&S are basical-
ly characterised by the global developments on the printed
circuit board market.

Regarding market and technology, it can be noted that the
trend towards increased functionality of devices and the pene-
tration of electronic systems into our daily lives continues. In
the entire mobile devices segment, AT&S with its subsidiaries
has already consistently focused on the high-end segment. In
addition to smartphones and tablet PC, this segment also in-

cludes other products such as game consoles, digital cameras
and portable music players. For the coming years, this seg-
ment will continue to be regarded as growth driver. With its
capacities in China, manufacturing technologies and highest
quality standards in particular, AT&S is able to globally ser-
vice the most renowned providers of these products world-
wide. Uncertainties and opportunities depend on the market
development itself as well as on the extent to which the Com-
pany will be able to distinguish itself successfully from com-
petitors.

In the past financial year, AT&S decided to enter into a new
technology. The new plant in Chongqging will be equipped and
qualified in such a way that it will be possible to produce IC
substrates as from 2016. In order to facilitate the entry into
the substrate business, AT&S has entered into a strategic
partnership with a globally operating manufacturer of printed
circuit boards. The location in Chongqging, China, offers com-
petitive advantages over predominantly Japanese competitors.
With this strategic partnership, the next step in integrating
semiconductors and printed circuit boards is made. The mate-
rial risks with regard to the entry into a new business field are
to be identified in the area of quality of the manufactured
products

The industrial market is characterised by various technology
requirements from a variety of customers. Utmost flexibility
and the ability to adjust very quickly to changing specifica-
tions and technologies constitute a basic requirement to be
successful in this segment. The Austrian plants of AT&S in
particular are very well prepared for these requirements. In
close cooperation with various customers, new technologies
and other projects are constantly developed. The product life
cycles in the industrial segment are longer as compared to
those in the mobile devices segment. The Indian location offers
the possibility to produce these projects cost-effectively. The
product portfolio is complemented in the industrial segment
by the plant in South Korea, which is specialised in flexible
printed circuit boards and printed circuit boards for the use in
medical technology. The plant specialization offers great po-
tential opportunities for AT&S.

In the automotive segment, further potential for growth and
development arises due to the constantly rising proportion of
electronics that has to meet ever more complex requirements
and, consequently, the requirements for printed circuit boards
are also constantly rising. As in previous years, AT&S again
was the leading manufacturer of printed circuit boards in the
automotive segment in its European core market in the past
fiscal year. In order to be able to grow further, the expansion
into other markets is promoted. In doing so, existing struc-

Group Management Report 2012/13

103



tures are used. Additional investments are required only to a
limited extent. Stepping out of the core market offers further
potential for opportunities.

The Advanced Packaging segment, a technology which was
brought to market maturity by AT&S, offers enormous poten-
tial for opportunities. In the past financial year, the first serial
products were delivered. Further promising negotiations are
currently underway with potential customers

At present, the Group generates the major part of its revenue in
the mobile devices, automotive and industrial segments. A
reduction in the future volume growth in these three segments
may have negative effects on the quantities produced and,
subsequently, on the profit/loss of the Group. The mobile de-
vices segment in particular with a share of 55% in total reve-
nue has a relatively large leverage effect in this context.

In the past financial year, AT&S supplied approx. 630 custom-
ers, with the 5 major customers contributing around 53% to
total revenue. Even though AT&S builds business relationships
with new customers, it has to be assumed that the customer
concentration will remain high in the next few years. Conse-
quently, sales risks arise as a result of negative deviations in
volumes sold to major customers. Significant declines in busi-
ness with our major customers as well as deteriorations in the
business relationships with our main customers may ultimate-
ly result in a decline in units sold.

On the part of the customers, ever higher requirements are
imposed on plant safety, data security and social responsibil-
ity towards employees. Therefore, regular audits performed by
customers take place in the plants of AT&S. In order to
strengthen customer relations, the identified suggestions for
improvement are implemented as far as possible.

In addition to deviations in quantities, negative price devia-
tions also have a direct negative impact on the profit/loss of
the Group. The price level for printed circuit boards is deter-
mined largely by global demand and by available production
capacities. In particular, the demand, which has risen signifi-
cantly over the past years, for printed circuit boards of the
high-end segment in mobile devices that are used in so-called
smartphones had a positive impact on the price level in the
previous year. A slowdown in this trend towards higher-
quality smartphones may have negative effects with regard to
the profitability of the Group. Already today it is apparent that
the smartphone market is developing into a mass market.
Therefore, it is crucial for the future success of AT&S to tap
into other or new niche markets.
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With regard to the financing risk, liquidity risk, credit risk,
and foreign exchange risk, reference is made to the risk report
under section II in the notes.

7. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND
RISK MANAGEMENT WITH REGARD TO
ACCOUNTING AT&S has adopted a code of ethics and
conduct which sets out how AT&S conducts its businesses in
an ethical and socially responsible manner. These guidelines
apply to all activities of the AT&S Group worldwide, with each
employee being responsible to comply with this code without
exception in the performance of his profession and the daily
work.

The accounting-related internal control and risk management
system is an integral part of the group-wide risk management
system. According to the framework concept of COSO (The
Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Com-
mission), under the concept of company-wide risk manage-
ment, the risk management proper as well as the internal con-
trol system (ICS) are subsumed. The main criteria of the risk
management, the internal control system and the internal
audit of AT&S are specified in a group-wide risk management
and audit manual.

The documentation of the internal controls (business process-
es, risks, control measures and responsibles) is made princi-
pally in the form of control matrices, which are archived in a
central management database. The accounting-related internal
control system includes principles, procedures and measures
to ensure the compliance of accounting in terms of the control
objectives described for financial reporting.

The accounting procedures are documented in separate pro-
cess instructions. As far as possible, these processes are
standardized across the Group and are presented in a stand-
ardized documentation format. Additional requirements for
accounting procedures result from specific local regulations.
The basic principles of accounting and reporting are docu-
mented in the process descriptions and also in detailed pro-
cess instructions, which are also filed in the central manage-
ment manual. In addition, guidelines on measurement proce-
dures and organisational requirements in connection with the
processes of accounting and preparing the financial state-
ments are compiled and updated on a regular basis. Dates are
set in accordance with group requirements.

The internal financial reporting is made on a monthly basis as
part of the group reporting, with the financial information
being reviewed and analyzed by the Group Accounting de-
partment (part of Group Finance). The monthly budget/actual



variance with corresponding comments on the results of the
business units, of the plants as well as of the company is re-
ported internally to the executives and to the members of the
Supervisory Board.

The annual preparation of the budget is made by the Group
Controlling department, which also reports to the Chief Finan-
cial Officer. Based on the quarterly results and current plan-
ning information, quarterly forecasts are drawn up during the
year for the remaining financial year. The forecasts with com-
ments on the budget comparison and presentations on the
impact of opportunities and risks up to the end of the financial
year are reported to the Supervisory Board. In addition to
regular reporting, multiple-year planning, project-related fi-
nancial information or calculations on investment projects are
prepared and submitted to the Supervisory Board.

8. OUTLOOK The still rising demand for electronic end
devices and the generally rising proportion of electronics in
various applications will continue to result in an increase in
the demand for printed circuit boards. In order to counter the

increasing price pressure in the industry, the focus will con-
tinue to be on high-tech products. With the continued focus on
the production of high-tech printed circuit boards, especially
in Shanghai and Austria, management is optimistic to be able
to lay the basis for the continued positive development of
AT&ES.

The entry into the IC substrate market also has to be seen in
this context, which constitutes a development of the current
high-technology market of HDI printed circuit boards for
AT&S. The entry into this segment will provide for significant
growth impulses for AT&S. Furthermore, a considerably im-
proved profitability and a significant increase in the company
value are expected. From a strategic perspective, this step
represents an extraordinary opportunity for the development
of AT&S.

Overall, management expects increasing revenue and a posi-
tive development in Austria as well as in the subsidiaries.

Leoben-Hinterberg, 7 May 2013

The Management Board

Andreas Gerstenmayer m.p.

Heinz Moitzi m.p.
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Statement of
all Legal Representatives

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the consolidated  group management report gives a true and fair view of the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, development and performance of the business and the position
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group as  of the group, together with a description of the principal risks
required by the applicable accounting standards and that the and uncertainties the group faces.

Leoben-Hinterberg, 7 May 2013

The Management Board

Andreas Gerstenmayer Heinz Moitzi
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board
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Auditor’s Report

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FI-
NANCIAL STATEMENTS we have audited the

accompanying consolidated financial statements of AT&S
Austria Technologie & Systemtechnik Aktiengesellschaft, Leo-
ben-Hinterberg, for the financial year from 1 April 2012 to
31 March 2013. These consolidated financial statements com-
prise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consoli-
dated statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity for the financial year ending
31 March 2013, and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CON-
SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FOR
THE ACCOUNTING SYSTEM The Company’s management
is responsible for the group accounting and for the preparation
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial state-
ments in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making account-
ing estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY AND DESCRIPTION
OF TYPE AND SCOPE OF THE STATUTORY AUDIT
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consoli-
dated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with laws and regulations applicable
in Austria and Austrian Standards on Auditing, as well as in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board (IAASB) of the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC). Those standards require that we comply with profes-
sional guidelines and that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated finan-
cial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evi-
dence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to

the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the consoli-
dated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the pur-
pose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasona-
bleness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION Our audit did not give rise to any objections. In our
opinion, which is based on the results of our audit, the consol-
idated financial statements comply with legal requirements
and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as of 31 March 2013 and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the financial year from 1 April 2012 to
31 March 2013 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU.

COMMENTS ON THE MANAGEMENT RE-
PORT FOR THE GROUP Pursuant to statutory pro-
visions, the management report for the Group is to be audited
as to whether it is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements and whether the other disclosures in the manage-
ment report for the Group do not give rise to a misstatement of
the Group's financial position. The auditor’s report also has to
contain a statement as to whether the management report for
the Group is consistent with the consolidated financial state-
ments and whether the disclosures pursuant to Section 243a
UGB are appropriate.

In our opinion, the management report for the Group is con-
sistent with the consolidated financial statements. The disclo-
sures pursuant to Section 243a UGB are appropriate.

Vienna, 7 May 2013

PwC Wirtschaftspriifung GmbH
Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

signed:
Mag. Christian Neuherz
Austrian Certified Public Accountant

We draw attention to the fact that the English translation of this auditor’s report is presented for the convenience of the reader only and that the German wording is the only legally binding version.

Disclosure, publication and duplication of the financial statements together with the auditor’s report according to Section 281 (2) UGB in a form not in accordance with statutory requirements and differing from the
version audited by us is not permitted. Reference to our audit may not be made without prior written permission from us.
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New technology developed by AT&S that incorporates structural cavities into and onto printed
circuit boards. It can also be used to produce rigid-flex printed circuit boards for flex-to-install
applications

AT&S and Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Ltd., have concluded an agreement under which
ATE&S is licenced to use Any Layer Interstitial Via Hole (ALIVH®), Panasonic’s unique technology
for multilayer printed circuit boards

® ALIVH registered brand AT 173113 et al.

A Vienna Stock Exchange capital-weighted index comprising all securities traded in the Prime
Market segment. It is a broadly-based index for all stocks that meet the minimum capitalisation
requirements and satisfy the stricter disclosure and reporting obligations

Shareholders’ interest in net income, plus depreciation, amortisation and impairment, less reversal
of impairment of non-current assets and assets held for sale

A set of rules for the responsible management and control of business enterprises. Companies
voluntarily undertake to comply with the principles of the Code.

The contribution of a business enterprise to sustainable development, over and above the statu-
tory requirements. CSR should promote responsible corporate behaviour in business activities —
with respect to the environment, relationships with staff (the workplace), and with other stake-
holders and interest groups.

Number of deliveries shipped on time and meeting customer quantity requirements, as a percent-
age of total deliveries

Embedded component packaging technology developed by AT&S in order to embed active and/or
passive components inside PCBs
® registered trade mark AT 255868

EN ISO 13485 is an internationally recognised standard that defines the requirements for the
quality management systems used by companies which develop, manufacture, install or maintain
medical products



NucleuS®

Trading in the printed circuit boards of partner companies. These activities were discontinued at
the end of the 2008/09 financial year due to the inadequate earnings potential relative to the risks
involved.

Printed circuit boards with structures smaller than 100 micrometers (0.1 mm) — high density inter-
connection

Technical interpretation of ISO 2000 reflecting the requirements of international automotive
manufacturers

AT&S business segment that includes mobile telephones, PDAs, portable music players and digital
cameras

Capital expenditure net of receipts from the disposal of property, plant and equipment and intan-
gible assets

Technology for series production of individual printed circuit boards that makes optimal use of
the production format. The printed circuit boards are only connected to their frames immediately
before being shipped to subcontract assemblers for population.

® registered trade mark AT 255767
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OCGK Austrian Corporate Governance Code (Osterreichischer Corporate Governance Kodex)

PCB Printed circuit board

PDA Small, portable computer (personal digital assistant)

Prime Market Stocks admitted to trading on the Vienna Stock Exchange on the Official Market or the Semi-Offi-

cial Market and subject to additional, more stringent requirements

Return on equity (ROE) Shareholders’ interest in net income + (shareholders’ equity at the begin of the financial year +
shareholders’ equity at the end of the financial year) / 2

ROCE Return on capital employed: a measure of how effectively and profitably a company uses its capi-
tal
(EBIT - taxes on income) / (net debt + shareholders interests in equity of parent company)

Sale and lease back Special form of leasing: an enterprise sells property or a movable asset to a leasing company and
leases it back for use in the business

SAP One of the world's largest software producers (systems analysis and program development)
Smartphone Combines the advantages of a mobile telephone with those of a PDA

Stock options Options to purchase shares

TecDAX Specialised Frankfurt Stock Exchange stock index of medium-sized companies in technology sec-

tors: 30 stocks from the Prime Standard segment of the Regulated Market

Trading see “Foundry Services”

VDA German Association of the Automotive Industry (Deutscher Verband der Automobilindustrie)

va German Printed Circuit Board Association (Deutscher Verband der Leiterplattenindustzie)
Vendor managed ventory  ATSS assumes responsibility for the logistics and storage for products and ensures that agreed

maximum and minimum inventory levels are maintained
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